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REPORTING SUITE AND 
REPORT NAVIGATION
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The reporting suite comprises of the:

• Annual Report, which serves as the primary reporting tool to  

Ntinga’s stakeholders and it records the activities of the entity in 

the period under review.

• Annual Financial Statements, to provide a comprehensive report 

of the entity’s financial performance for the year.

• Annual Performance Report, to report on the performance of the 

entity against the service delivery and budget implementation plan 

for the financial year.

The reports are in compliance with the:

• Companies Act 71 of 2008 (Companies Act)

• Local Government: Municipal Finance Management   

Act 56 of 2003 (MFMA)

• Local Government: Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000 (MSA)

• King IV Report on Corporate Governance for    

South Africa 2016 (King IV)

• Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP)

Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd 
(Ntinga/the entity) is proud to table its Annual Report 
for the 2019/2020 financial year to its stakeholders. 
Ntinga is committed to reporting transparently, 
honestly and in line with the legislative prescripts 
pertaining to its status as a State-Owned Company 
(SOC) and municipal entity of its parent municipality, 
the O.R Tambo District Municipality (ORTDM).

REPORT NAVIGATION 

The following icons are used in the report to show the links 

and relationships between the different areas of the report. 

The icons will further illustrate the connection between Ntinga’s 

strategic goals, resources and performance indicators.

Capitals: 

Human capital

Financial capital

Intellectual capital

Manufactured capital

Natural capital

Social and relationship capital

STRATEGIC GOALS 

Goal 1: 

Sustainable water services (water supply and 

sanitation) systems. 

Goal 2: Enhanced and enabled full value chains (upstream 

and downstream) for agricultural produce, markets, abattoirs 

and aquaculture. 

Goal 3: Diversified partnerships that promote inclusive 

socio-economic development and growth. 

Goal 4: Dynamic, capable and sustainable state 

owned company.

KEY PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS 

Achieved

Overachieved

Partially achieved

Not achieved

REPORTING BOUNDARY 

The 2019/2020 Annual Report covers the reporting period from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020. The reporting boundary includes preparation in 

accordance with the prescripts of the relevant legislation and the introduction of chosen elements of the Integrated Reporting Framework. 

Feedback on this Report

Ntinga welcomes feedback on this Annual Report. Please provide written feedback to Cassandra Mfana at cassandram@ntinga.org.za

Please also visit the website and social media pages to learn more about Ntinga. 



76

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION 
OF ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm the following;

All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report is consistent with the annual financial 

statements audited by the Auditor General.

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report 

issued by National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Rec-

ognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) Standards applicable to the public entity.

The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements 

and the judgements made in this information.

The accounting authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal 

control to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance 

information, human resources information and the annual financial statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial 

statements.

In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the 

human resource information and the financial affairs of the public entity for the financial year 

ended 30 June 2020. 

Yours faithfully

Chairperson of the Board

Sitembele Mase

Acting Chief Executive Officer

Loyiso Mbiko
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5,109.43 tons sold
Ntinga commission from sales R909 075

KEI FRESH PRODUCE MARKET

745 cattle produced for sale to Umzikantu Abattoir 

638 pigs sourced and supplied to the Umzikantu Abattoir

85 sheep sourced and supplied to the abattoir

R3,9 million total revenue from livestock sales

R699 892 total crop sales 

ADAM KOK FARMS

2019/20 HIGHLIGHTS
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01

02

142 Cattle Slaughtered for public

1343 Pigs Slaughtered for public

384 Sheep Slaughtered for Public

R10,8 million revenue generated from meat sales and slaughter fees 

783 Cattle Slaughtered for sale

638 Pigs Slaughtered for Sale

85 Sheep Slaughtered for Sale

UMZIKANTU ABATTOIR

27 water schemes refurbished

94 breakdowns at the schemes resolved

R9,4 million revenue generated by 
Ntinga for water services from ORTDM

WATER SERVICES

Investment brochure developed for the district

Co-operatives indaba convened 

Hydroponics infrastructure established at Ultra City 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT

REPAIRED

03

04

05
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PART A 
ORGANISATIONAL 
OVERVIEW

ABOUT NTINGA O.R TAMBO 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

STRATEGIC OVERVIEW 

Vision

Ntinga is a wholly-owned municipal entity of the O.R. Tambo District Municipality (ORTDM). The Ntinga O.R. Tambo Development Agency was 

established in 2006 by the ORTDM as a service utility which serves as a special purpose vehicle that is responsible for driving local economic 

development in the O.R Tambo district. The agency was converted into a State-Owned Company (SOC) Limited in 2016.

As established by the ORTDM, the agency is thus mandated:

To perform activities which fall within the functions and powers of 

district municipalities as contemplated in Section 84(1) of the Munic-

ipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act 117 of 1998), in particular Section 84 

(1). These activities are:

•  Integrated Development Planning;

•  Potable Water Supply Systems;

•  Domestic and Industrial Waste-water and    

Sewage Disposal Systems;

•  Fresh Produce Markets and Abattoirs;

•  Local Tourism Promotion;

•  Municipal Public Works;

•  Taxes, Levies and Duties, and

•  Discretionary Activities.

The Ntinga O.R. Tambo Development Agency has responded to the 

unique challenges facing the district by adopting the following strategic 

approach toward local economic development:

•  Effective harnessing of tangible and intangible resources  

in the district

•  Mobilisation and leveraging of financial and other resources

•  Spearheading of a sustainable human capital resource   

development

•  Pursuance of innovation and best practise including   

indigenous system

•  Effective planning and consultation 

The agency drives local economic development through  

structured support packages in the following areas:

•	Agriculture

•	 Sustainable water services and infrastructure development

•	 Tourism

•	 Trade

•	 Investment Promotion

“Vibrant and Sustainable 
Communities”

Mandate
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

Company 
Secretary

Corporate
Services

Water
Services

Trading 
Enterprise

NTINGA BOARD

CEO

Internal Audit• Nurture and care

• Leadership

• Agility

• Innovation and creativity

• Growth and development

• Accountability and transparency

• Good governance

1312

Values

Goals

•	GOAL 1: Sustainable water services (water supply and sanitation) systems.

•	GOAL 2: Enhanced and enabled full value chains (upstream and downstream) for agricultural produce,  

 markets, abattoirs and aquaculture.

•	GOAL 3: Diversified partnerships that promote inclusive socio-economic development and growth.

•	GOAL 4: Dynamic, capable and sustainable state owned company.

Project 
Management

Manager:
Office of the CEO

Finance
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The Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency has a broad and em-

powering socio-economic development mandate bestowed upon it 

by its sole shareholder, the O.R Tambo District Municipality. The OR-

TDM is the executive authority and it is charged with providing over-

sight over the municipal entity. The ORTDM Council has delegated 

this oversight responsibility to the Rural Economic and Development 

Programmes (REDP) and the Municipal Public Accounts Committee 

(MPAC). As a State-Owned Company, Ntinga has its own governance 

structures, namely; the Board of Directors as the Accounting Author-

ity and the Chief Executive Officer as the Accounting Officer. The 

mandate places the 1,5 million citizens of the O.R Tambo District 

Municipality (ORTDM) at the epicentre of the development agenda 

which includes the extension of improved access to clean potable 

water in terms of the Constitution of the Republic. The agency’s 

strategic posture is thus informed by the need to accelerate inclu-

sive economic growth and to harness human endeavours which are 

aimed at building an enterprising and connected O.R Tambo District 

Municipality. The Ntinga mandate is thus informed by the provincial 

Vision 2030 which is anchored on six strategic goals, namely:

1. An innovative and inclusive economy, 

2. Enabling infrastructure,

3. Rural development, and an innovative and high value   

    agriculture sector, 

4. Environmental sustainability,

5. Capable democratic state, and

6. Human development.

The agency has thus adopted a four-pronged-goal 
strategy that is aimed at balancing financial viability 
against the requisite non-income generating 
socio-economic dividend in response to the 2030 
vision.

The first goal or pillar relies on the provision of water-related techni-

cal support in the rural and peri-urban water schemes. This includes 

repairs, refurbishment, maintenance and operation of water-related 

infrastructure supporting rural and peri-urban water schemes in the 

district. In this mandate, the obligation to provide safe, clean and 

reliable potable water rests with the district municipality as a water 

services authority. Ntinga’s exclusive role is in the repair, refurbish-

ment and maintenance of the infrastructure that ensures that water 

schemes are functional and that they are not in a state of disrepair.

Ntinga is expected to effectively discharge this maintenance obliga-

tion by conducting maintenance and repairs on 93 schemes within 

the King Sabatha Dalindyebo Local Municipality (KSD). The effective 

implementation of this maintenance obligation ensures consistency 

in the supply of potable water which in turn supports the growth and 

development of local industries. KSD has been the pilot site to test 

the effectiveness of the mandate and it remains Ntinga’s endeavour 

to reach all the communities of the ORTDM.

The second goal rests on the exploitation of the economic potential 

and comparative advantages of the O.R Tambo region through the 

stimulation of key sectors of its economy such as agriculture and 

agro-processing, ocean economy, alternative energy, tourism, infra-

structure built and others in order to contribute to the Gross Domes-

tic Product (GDP). 

In this regard, Ntinga SOC inherited enterprise development assets 

which are the 2,600 hectares (ha) Adam Kok Farms, a dairy farm 

in Ikhwezi, Umzikantu Abattoir and the Kei Fresh Produce Market. 

These assets form a central cog and anchor in effecting the desired 

mandate outcomes and they serve as enhanced and enabled full val-

ue chains. This pillar seeks to locate and align the district within the 

provincial Vision 2030 of the Eastern Cape which is to become the 

“food basket of South Africa and the Southern Africa Development 

Community (SADC) during the next 30 years.”

Thirdly, Ntinga SOC acknowledges that the two goals mentioned 

above will be given impetus through well-structured and well-func-

tioning strategic partnerships and projects. Some of the strategic 

partnerships are envisaged to take the shape of strategic alliances 

while some may take the form of a joint venture. The purpose and 

objective of strategic alliances and partnerships is value addition ei-

ther in the form of new investments, new technology, skills improve-

ment and or new processes.

The last and most important pillar is to build the 
capability of a democratic state. This pillar directly 
aligns to and is anchored on the Provincial Develop-
ment Plan (PDP Vision 2030). In this regard, strategic 
capability refers to corporate strategy, human capi-
tal, financial and management systems, information 
systems, policies and standard operating procedures 
as well as the building of an effective, efficient and 
development-oriented public service. These key 
interrelationships are shown in the diagrams that follow.

Ntinga aligns itself with the provincial Integrated Development Plan (IDP) 

and the District Development Plan (DDP) and its strategy connects and 

provides synergy between these for the benefit of Ntinga’s stakeholders.

BUSINESS AND STRATEGY OVERVIEW
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GOAL 4

GOAL 3

MANDATE

NTINGA STRATEGY DEVELOPMENT PROCESS

MISSION
Being a catalyst for innovation in promoting socio-economic 

development and sustainable services to communities, through 
strategic partnerships and new investments.

PROVINCIAL GROWTH & DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT PLAN ORTDM IDP

VISION

Vibrant and Sustainable Communities.

STRATEGIC GOALS

GOAL 1: Sustainable Water Services (water supply and 
sanitation) Systems

GOAL 2: Enhanced and Enabled Full Value Chains (upstream 
and downstream) for Agricultural Produce, Markets, Abattoirs 

and Aquaculture.

GOAL 3: Diversified Partnerships that Promote Inclusive 
Socio-economic Development and Growth.

GOAL 4: Dynamic, Capable and Sustainable State Owned Company.

GOAL 1

GOAL 2

NTINGA O.R TAMBO DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY STRATEGY OVERVIEW

1716

ALIGNMENT WITH IDP & DDP OF ORTDM TO NTINGA STRATEGIC GOALS

Local Government KPA’s 
(Integrated Development Plan)

Ntinga (SOC) Ltd Strategic Goals ORTDM District Development Plan

1. Basic Service Delivery and 
Infrastructure.

Goal 1: Sustainable Water Services   
(water supply and sanitation) Systems

Goal 1:  A substantial improvement in the provision 
of public infrastructure and services, and a 
vast increase in support for livelihood.

Goal 3:  Well protected environmental assets.

2. Local Economic 
 Development.

Goal 2: Enhanced and Enabled Full Value 
Chains (upstream and downstream)  
for Agricultural Produce, Markets,  
Abattoirs and Aquaculture.

Goal 3:  Diversified Partnerships that Promote 
Inclusive Socio-economic Development 
and Growth.

Goal 4:  A growing, innovative/responsive and 
 inclusive economy.

3. Municipal Financial Viability 
 and Management.

Goal 4:  Dynamic, Capable and Sustainable 
State-Owned Company.

Goal 5:  An efficient and effective public sector, able to 
provide strong economic governance leadership.

4.  Good Governance and  
Public Participation.

Goal 4:  Dynamic, Capable and Sustainable 
State-Owned Company.

Goal 5:  An efficient and effective public sector, able to 
provide strong economic governance leadership.

5. Municipal Transformation and   
Organisational Development.

Goal 4: Dynamic, Capable and Sustainable  
State-Owned Company.

Goal 5:  An efficient and effective public sector, able to 
provide strong economic governance leadership.

These goals are interconnected and interdependent on the six capitals to execute the strategy
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PART B 
CHAIRPERSON’S 
FOREWORD Despite these challenges, during the period under review, Ntinga has 

maintained its focus on the most urgent task of bringing the region 

and its people into the mainstream economy in order to improve 

the livelihoods of those on the fringes of the formal economy and 

to improve their income generation capabilities. The key challenge 

has been to ensure that Ntinga strikes a delicate balance between 

financial sustainability versus its development imperatives. As such, 

the scope and extent of the Ntinga mandate require a very clear 

assessment of the carrying costs for socio-economic development 

and the allocation of adequate capital as well as income generation 

to effect a pronounced development impact.

GOVERNANCE, SHAREHOLDER 
RELATIONS & SUSTAINABILITY

The efficacy of the Ntinga mandate rests on the continuous devel-

opment of sound relations with the shareholder which are charac-

terised by open, frank and robust dialogue which is aimed at the 

enhancement of mandate delivery. This is coupled with the Board’s 

continued commitment to responsible leadership and building a 

unique company culture of good governance and a sustainable op-

erational environment.

The agency is acutely aware that its existence lies in the consolida-

tion of a structured and well-thought-out shareholder relationship 

with the rapport and common purpose which should yield the req-

uisite socio-economic development impetus. The agency’s relation-

ship with the shareholder is represented in its warm relations with 

the shareholder representative, Her Worship the Executive Mayor, 

Councillor Thokozile Sokanyile, the Deputy Executive Mayor, Council-

lor Robert Nogumla and Member of the Mayoral Committee, Council-

lor Dumani Zozo, REDP director Mrs Andiswa Dunywa and the Acting 

Municipal Manager, Basil Mase.

I am therefore pleased that governance protocols exist which al-

low for inspired shareholder engagement. The epitome of this, is 

the ongoing capitalisation discussions with the shareholder which 

are aimed at injecting the necessary liquidity and buoyancy into the 

agency’s mandate delivery aspirations. The required capitalisation is 

critical to the sustainability and viability of the agency as well as 

that of its going concern status. Adequate capitalisation means the 

agency will be primed to generate and grow its own cash revenues 

to wean itself off its dependency on shareholder currency.

Ntinga SOC operates a high-cost structure which is characterised by 

high costs of employment and high costs of doing business in view 

of its distance from suppliers, customers and other major inputs into 

its business model. An assessment of the entity’s billable versus 

non-billable staff complement revealed that only 39% of staff are 

classified as billable and income-generating. This means that there 

are certain development activities that do not generate income. It is 

these activities that require consistent and continuous grant funding 

by the shareholder. It is of great concern to the Board that without 

the grant funding covering the costs of the unbillable business, Nt-

inga will face financial sustainability challenges which would prove 

a hindrance to the attainment of its socio-economic development 

mandate. Failure to appreciate this optimal funding and capitalisa-

tion challenge carries significant sustainability risks.

Dear stakeholder

The 2019/2020 financial year has been characterised by the entity’s continued efforts to fully integrate into 
a state-owned company, expanding its reach into the communities of the district and a special focus on 
improved governance and shareholder relations. The advent of the COVID-19 pandemic further presented 
unique challenges which the agency responded to with the required resolution.

1918
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I am delighted that in response to these concerns, the shareholder 

and the Board engaged at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the 

company to ensure that the legislative service delivery agreement 

will be in place. The agreement details the funding of the annual plan 

and the priorities agreed to in the shareholder compact. The share-

holder compact has been reviewed annually and submitted together 

with the service level agreement outlining key priorities to be imple-

mented and funded. The conclusion of these key governance instru-

ments remains critical. 

Furthermore, the shareholder is continuously persuaded to consider 

the anomalies in the funding structure of the entity and the alloca-

tion of grant funding vis-à-vis the need to adequately capitalise the 

entity. These funding requirements are based on the demands of

the Ntinga mandate as well as to compensate for those grant funds 

which were withdrawn during the repositioning of the entity into an 

SOC. It is therefore important that the Board and the shareholder 

revisit these matters and adequately address the initial capitalisation 

to guarantee Ntinga’s going concern status, financial sustainability 

and the delivery of the socio-economic development dividend.

The Board and I are confident that these deliberations signal a new 

era for Ntinga which is based on the development of a world-class 

and fit-for-purpose development outfit that places people at the 

heart of the agency’s development philosophy. I also believe that 

the shareholder will continue to ensure that it provides the neces-

sary governance and financial commitment to ensure that Ntinga 

can execute its mandate. The conclusion of this process should have 

a significant bearing on the financial commitments needed to fund 

the mandate.

For its part, Ntinga is also acutely aware that in a period character-

ised by fiscal and budgetary constraints, special purpose vehicles 

of government are required to do more with less. Notwithstanding 

these capitalisation challenges, Ntinga is thus continuously investi-

gating inventive and innovative solutions to pressing development 

imperatives.

STRATEGIC POSTURE

Furthermore, the agency has adopted a four-pronged strategy that 

is aimed at balancing financial viability against the requisite non-in-

come generating socio-economic dividend. The first fundamental pil-

lar of the strategy is the provision of water-related technical support 

in the rural and peri-urban water schemes, second the exploitation 

of the economic potential and comparative advantages of the O.R 

Tambo region through the stimulation of key sectors of its economy 

such as agriculture and agro-processing, ocean economy, alternative 

energy, tourism, built infrastructure and others to contribute to the 

Gross Domestic Product (GDP).

The third pillar is the establishment of well-struc-
tured and well-functioning strategic partnerships 
and alliances. The last and the most important 
pillar is to build the capability of a democratic state 
through a dynamic, capable and sustainable SOC. 

COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The onset of the COVID-19 global pandemic and the subsequent na-

tional lockdown presented a formidable challenge to the operational 

efficacy of the agency, with operational targets and revenues having 

been negatively affected in some areas of the business. The resolve 

and resilience of Ntinga staff was severely tested. However, I am 

pleased that Ntinga staff continued to ensure that strategy imple-

mentation is not severely affected. They responded with agility and 

focus and they have acquitted themselves well in the new ways of 

doing business. Ntinga staff have put their lives on the line to ensure 

that the people of the district enjoy an improved socio-economic 

landscape. The agency is eternally grateful to its employees. 

The Board is also saddened by the passing of a ded-
icated staff member Mncedisi Xaji who was cate-
gorised as an essential services worker. On behalf 
of Ntinga, the Board wishes to express its heartfelt 
condolences to the Xaji family. The agency is deeply 
appreciative to have shared Xaji’s life with you in his 
quest to help reshape the socio-economic fortunes 
of the district. Four other staff members tested 
positive with COVID-19 during the review period. 
Ongoing support is being provided to all affected 
and infected staff. All the necessary protocols are in 
place to act as safeguards against the debilitating 
effects of this virus.

R909 075

5,109.43 tons

R3,9 million

R9,4 million

5% commission earned by Ntinga 
from the fresh produce sales

of produce sold by the Kei Fresh Produce 
Market in the year under review

Total revenue from livestock sales 

in 2019/20

Revenue generated by Ntinga for 

water services from the ORTDM

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

I am equally pleased that, despite an especially challenging 

service delivery environment which was largely a result of 

the COVID-19 pandemic and the subsequent stringent lock-

down regulations which affected the agency’s ability to con-

duct business, Ntinga has continued to deliver shareholder 

value in the 2019/20 financial year.

During the period under review, the Kei Fresh Produce 

Market sold 5,109.43 tons of produce. The 5% commission 

earned by Ntinga from the fresh produce sales is R909 075.

Total revenue from livestock sales was R3,9 million in the 

2019/20 financial year. Total crop sales were R699 892. Rev-

enues generated from meat sales and slaughter fees was 

R10,8 million. 

Revenue generated by Ntinga for water services from the 

ORTDM was R9,4 million versus a target of R16,2 million. This 

is because the municipality did not have sufficient funds to 

fund the water services work assigned to Ntinga.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Finally, Ntinga will be agitating for the establishment of a project 

management function which should unlock the immense potential 

within the identified Special Economic Zone in the district. Further-

more, Ntinga has developed a system flexible enough to receive, 

manage and discharge its responsibilities and ad hoc project-related 

mandates that will ensure such projects are properly planned and 

funded prior to execution. The agency will also further strengthen 

its governance processes to ensure that they support the prudent 

management of public resources. It is with great pleasure that I an-

nounce that Ntinga financial statements have received an unquali-

fied audit opinion from the Auditor General of South Africa.

APPRECIATION

I extend my appreciation to the Honourable Executive Mayor Coun-

cillor Thokozile Sokanyile for her steadfast support as well as the 

mayoral committee for a frank and open relationship. I extend my 

gratitude to the shareholder representative appointed by the may-

or’s office Robert Nogumla for his guidance. I thank the MMC port-

folio head for local economic development Councillor Dumani Zozo 

and REDP director Mrs Andiswa Dunywa for their support. My appre-

ciation also goes to the Board of Directors and its sub-committees 

for their diligent pursuit of a responsive and equitable development 

mandate. Finally, I am thankful to the former Chief Executive Officer 

Pakamile Pongwana, the acting Chief Executive Officer Loyiso Mbiko, 

the management team, the Company Secretary, Cassandra Mfana 

and Ntinga employees for their commitment to the realisation of 

sustainable socio-economic development within the ORTDM.

Mr Sitembele Mase

Chairperson of the Board of Directors
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In the year under review, Ntinga’s external environment 
has been challenged and changed by the various factors 
which influence the business. Despite these complexities, 
management has remained focussed on the delivery 
of the strategy and ensuring an efficient operational 
environment.

External Environment

Political Factors

While democracy is one of the best political systems, 
it has inherent risks, particularly in a developing country 
like South Africa. Of concern are developing trends 
of mass action, coupled with the destruction of infra-
structure by communities demanding service delivery. 
The changes in political leadership on the horizon can 
also affect Ntinga.

The national, provincial and local governments remain challenged to en-

sure that they provide the necessary infrastructure and support to com-

munities through robust investment, the careful allocation of the fiscus 

and job-creation. The introduction of the Special Economic Zones (SEZ’s) 

Bill, which aims at accelerating industrialisation, regional development 

and job creation in non-Industrial Development Zone (IDZ) areas, is an 

advantage for the region.

Economic Factors and COVID-19

The advent of the COVID-19 pandemic has affected what was an already 

receding economy due to factors such as the fluctuation of the rand, in-

creasing globalisation and the country’s status as an emerging economy. 

The pandemic caused uncertainty with the lockdowns restricting move-

ment, gatherings and supplier demand for Ntinga’s goods and services. 

Ntinga has focussed on the health and well-being of its staff and the 

ability and agility of the head office support staff to adapt to new ways 

of work such as remote working, increased ICT capacities and business 

continuity.

Environmental Factors

Climate change remains a significant threat for the agricultural sec-

tor on which the rural economy depends. Furthermore, the continued 

drought and lack of consistent potable water supplies pose a threat to 

communities in the ORTDM. This requires increased resolve in Ntinga’s 

continued efforts of ensuring the efficient repair and maintenance of 

water schemes.

Legal Situation

The Conversion of Ntinga into a SOC has demanded more compliance 

and reporting requirements in terms of the Companies Act 71 of 2008. 

The management of the fresh produce market and the abattoir has 

further introduced its own regime of laws, regulations and compliance 

requirements. To be able to succeed at the highest level, Ntinga will 

have to comply with these requirements. All these factors are therefore 

relevant for Ntinga in attaining its goals and objectives. 

Operating optimally within this external environment is an imperative 

for Ntinga’s business and its position as a socio-economic development 

agency. In addition, Ntinga has to ensure that it takes its stakeholders 

along on its journey of growth, and its mission to positively impact the 

O.R Tambo district.

NTINGA’S OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

 Stakeholder Their Expectations Ntinga’s response Modes of engagement

Shareholder and the 
Board

• Support the initiatives of the Council 
to bring about sustainable social 
and economic development in the 
district

• Effective execution of the mandate
• Strong operational performance
• Experienced management with 

strong track record

• Robust Board leadership focused 
on the execution of the mandate 
and strategy

• Continued improvements on 
certain areas of operations

• Experienced and skilled  
management team with all key 
management roles filled

• Frequent engagements between 
the Board Chair and ORTDM 
Political Leadership

• Attendance by Accounting  
Officer of all MANCO, MAYCO 
and Council meetings

Local Municipalities 
and their Municipal 
Entities

• Cooperation and coordinated efforts 
to provide the best outcomes for the 
region

• Finding partnerships and synergies 
for the betterment of the communities 
of the region

• Various partnership agreements 
involving fellow local Municipal 
entities

• Collaboration on various   
agricultural and enterprise  
projects 

• Meetings
• MOUs and Partnership  

agreements

Regulators and 
National & Provincial 
Government

• Compliance with all legislative  
and compliance requirements of  
regulators

• Participation and execution of  
Ntinga’s role in national and  
government initiatives such as the 
District Development Model

• Adhering to regulatory and  
compliance requirements

• Participation in all meetings, 
engagements and workshops of 
the shareholder on the DDM

• Meetings, workshops and  
engagements

Business Organisa-
tions

• Supporting businesses, farmers,  
agricultural producers, cooperatives 
and SMMEs through our strategy

• Sharing skills and expertise

• Supporting business through 
Ntinga’s social economic  
development programmes and 
preferential procurement  
strategy

• Continuous support provided to 
farmers through tours, provision 
of inputs, technical advice, Heifer 
exchanges etc

• Meetings
• Study tours
• Ongoing technical advice 

Employees • Safe and healthy work environment
• Fair, equitable remuneration
• Career development and enhance-

ment opportunities
• Job security

• Continuously aiming to provide a 
safe working environment

• Open organised labour
• Ongoing training and support 

of Interns and workplace skills 
development 

• Regular meetings such as  
Workplace Forums

• Staff communication groups 
• Emails and Notices

Traditional leaders 
and communities

• Consultation and engagement on 
activities of the entity that affect 
communities

• Recognition of status as leaders that 
are a repository of land and value 
systems that may accelerate and/or 
frustrate socio-economic development

• Social facilitation programmes 
and engagements

• Prior consultation and engagement 
on projects relating to agriculture, 
crop production

• Provision of agricultural inputs, 
technical advice and monitoring 
for emerging farmers and  
agricultural producers

• Employ of social facilitators 
at grassroots level in water 
services

• Constant engagement, meetings 
and consultation prior to project 
engagement 

Customers • Safe and reliable provision of goods 
and services

• Excellent customer service and 
response times

• Continuous striving for best 
customer service

• Provision of quality meat, agricul-
tural produce and water services

• Customer surveys
• Customer engagements
• Market days

STAKEHOLDER ANALYSIS

Ntinga’s stakeholders are of critical to its survival. The agency’s relationships, rapport and continued engagements will determine its 

success. Ntinga regularly engages these key stakeholder groups and it strives to maintain and build relationships that will be of benefit to 

the agency and its legacy over time.
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NTINGA’S BUSINESS CASE

VALUE PROPOSITION: 

“PROMOTION OF 

SOCIO-ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT”

Mandate

Strategy

Goals

Governance

CAPITAL INPUTS:

Human capital

Financial capital

Intellectual capital

Manufactured capital

Natural capital

Social and relationship capital

ACTIVITIES:

Water 

Projects

Abattoir

Farms

Fresh produce 

Market

Head office support 

Ntinga’s business model rests on the 
value proposition on the promotion of 
socio-economic development. 

Ntinga’s capital inputs and their value creation
Human capital • Responsible and accountable leadership

• 126 committed and motivated employees at end June 2020

Financial capital • R41 million grant funding from the parent municipality

• R80.4 million revenue in the year under review

• R15 million in biological assets owned by the entity

Intellectual capital • Standard Operating Procedures in all Ntinga’s operations

• Policies, procedures and frameworks

• Unique and specialised water systems engineering capabilities gained through the 
   water services funciton

Manufactured capital • Property, plant and equipment valued at R59,4 million

• Own the only high throughput abattoir in the region

• Running the only fresh produce market in the region

Natural capital • Water and Ntinga’s role played in the provision thereof through the maintenance and 
   repairs of water schemes

• Air, land, waste and the environment

Social and 
relationship capital

• Ntinga’s relationships with the parent municipality and stakeholders

• Ntinga’s socio-economic and development mandate and impact on the district
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These capitals as main contributors 
to the Ntinga business and four 
strategic goals

G1 G2 G3 G4

NTINGA’S BUSINESS CASE 

FOR VALUE CREATION 

As an emerging development agency, Ntinga is a fertile and promising 

investment case. Ntinga’s main value proposition lies in its promotion 

of socio-economic development, coupled with a commercial business 

case for the high throughput areas of the business.

Ntinga’s investment case

As an SOC, Ntinga’s shareholder mandate requires that it ensures 

the delivery of the specific areas of the mandate bestowed upon it 

and to support the parent municipality in effective and efficient ser-

vice delivery. Despite the challenges brought about by the COVID-19 

pandemic, the agency believes its strategic business model provides 

for a viable and high potential business and investment case. In line 

with government imperatives, Ntinga’s focus on agriculture, projects 

and cooperatives support makes investing in Ntinga and the region 

a key reason to invest. Ntinga’s investment case is strengthened by 

the relationship between its use of the capitals to create value for 

its stakeholders.

INVESTMENT CASE:

Sector expertise

Enterprise infrastructure

ORTDM support and capitalisation

Project management and implementation expertise

Good governance

Shareholder mandate

Strategic partnerships and high stakeholder engagement

High throughput abattoir

High potential expansion of crop production 

Water services technical expertise

Resilience under pressure

Business with a conscience 
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While government responded swiftly to cushion citizens and busi-

nesses from a crippling but necessary lockdown through a series 

of economic stimulus packages, the pandemic had already led to 

widespread destruction which resulted in massive job losses in all 

areas of the economy. For Ntinga, the effects on operations were im-

mediately felt at its trading enterprises whose busiest trading period 

includes the Easter break which was lost due to the lockdown. This 

adversely affected performance and revenue generation.

SERVICE DELIVERY ENVIRONMENT

However, at the beginning of the review period, Ntinga had already 

taken the preparatory steps toward the establishment of a fit-for-

purpose special purpose vehicle of government which possesses the 

wherewithal to deliver on a broad and bulky mandate. The effective 

discharge of such a mandate requires inspired, incisive and innova-

tive leadership acumen. In this regard, the Board, instructed man-

agement to use its service delivery apparatus to effect the desired 

socio-economic returns through the deployment of its enterprise de-

velopment assets, investment and trade promotion as well as social 

development tools. 

In a period characterised by a declining national, provincial and dis-

trict-wide fiscus, this meant the agency had to devise innovative 

strategies to optimise spend in order to broaden the extent and 

reach of the development impact. Ntinga is faced with a precarious 

liquidity position which is worsened by a mismatch between own 

generated revenue and budget allocations from the shareholder due 

to a heavy cost structure. This cost structure includes high employee 

costs, and an inadequately funded mandate of water schemes repairs 

and maintenance. This imbalance requires urgent shareholder interven-

tion which should ensure the continued sustainability of the agency.

SHAREHOLDER COMPACT

I am therefore pleased with the ongoing capitalisation discussions 

with the shareholder which will lead to the establishment of a share-

holder compact and the resultant service delivery agreement which 

spells out the roles and responsibilities of Ntinga as an implement-

ing agent and the ORTDM as the shareholder. The finalisation of these 

conversations should lead to clarity of the mandate as well as a ca-

pacitated Ntinga which has the resources to stimulate the growth and 

development of the regional economy. I am pleased with the R41 mil-

lion budget allocation from the shareholder for the 2019/20 financial 

year. Although it falls short of Ntinga’s desired financial injection, it has 

allowed the agency to respond to mandate delivery demands.

Dear Stakeholder

The 2019/20 financial year was a period which tested the resilience and character of the Ntinga O.R Tambo 
Development Agency. This was further exacerbated by a hard lockdown in the last quarter of the financial 
year which was necessitated by the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic which battered the global economy. 
The effects of the lockdown and the subsequent crash of the stock market did not leave an already vulner-
able South African economy unscathed. These effects extended to the micro level affecting the very liveli-
hoods of ordinary folk particularly of those who reside in the rural hinterland. 

R41 million
budget allocation from the 
shareholder for the 2019/20 
financial year



2928

HUMAN CAPITAL

Part of Ntinga’s strategy continues to be hinged on the development 

of a competent and well-equipped cadre of employee which has the 

skills to operate in an increasingly challenging development land-

scape. The strategy acknowledges that the efficacy of the organisa-

tion will be determined by the constitution of a human capital contin-

gent which has the right skills and inspired work culture. This should 

be achieved by continuously building and promoting the internal 

capacity of the agency as an able agent of socio-economic redress.

Furthermore, Ntinga is augmenting its people, financial and manage-

ment processes such that they are responsive to the demands of the 

strategy while promoting good corporate governance principles. The 

entity’s performance in terms of its management of its people and 

human capital is further addressed in the Human Resources Report 

on page 63 of the report.

AUDIT OPINION

In this regard, I am pleased with the unqualified audit opinion from 

the Auditor-General. This audit outcome confirms the agency’s com-

mitment to the sensible management of the public purse. The effi-

cient and honest management of public assets builds shareholder 

and funder confidence and this should bolster the case for further 

financial support. 

MANDATE DELIVERY

The review period further resulted in the consolidation of Ntinga’s 

strategic posture which includes the judicious management of its 

trading enterprises. The trading enterprises are structured in a man-

ner which supports primary production in the region as well as pro-

cessing and value addition activities. The idea is to ensure that the 

region produces and consumes its own food in order to ensure that 

money circulates within the local economy for as long as possible. 

On the social front, the agency continues to support the provision of 

consistent, safe and reliable potable water to communities through 

repairs and maintenance of water schemes. The agency currently 

conducts maintenance on 93 water schemes in the KSD Local Mu-

nicipality. This is a crucial support role to the ORTDM as a water ser-

vices authority as Ntinga avails its technical resources to ensure the 

consistency of supply and for the refurbishment of ailing infrastruc-

ture. A total of 90,000 people receive water from the 93 schemes we 

service per year. 

Every year, Ntinga produces 2,581 million litres of water per year 

from the schemes. The challenge remains in ensuring that business-

es and those households which are not indigent actually pay for the 

water they use. The agency has embarked on a process to develop a 

database of water users for billing and revenue generation purposes. 

The development of this database and billing capability is a central 

component in ensuring that repairs and maintenance work contin-

ues at the schemes.

The agency has encountered resistance from some communities to 

this process. However, Ntinga is encouraged that the shareholder 

and other partners are collaborating in order to ensure this process 

is realised.

In the 2019/20 financial year, Ntinga also continued its focus on the delivery of its strategic goals which 
include the development of sustainable water services, full value chains for agricultural produce, markets 
and abattoirs. The agency is also advocating for the establishment of strategic alliances which drive inclusive 
growth and development as well as the realisation of a dynamic, capable and sustainable state-owned 
company. The interconnectedness and relationship of the Ntinga strategy has been clearly depicted in the 
strategy and business overview on page 14 - 17 of the report.

STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION

90 000 people
receive water from the 93 schemes 
serviced by Ntinga per year. 
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2,581 million
litres of water produced from the 
schemes per year

5,109.43 tons
of produce at the Market

Potatoes and 
onions accounted 
for the bulk of the 
sales.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE      

In the 2019/20 financial year, there was an improvement in 

financial performance compared with the 2018/19 financial 

year with reported losses before tax reducing from R11,9 

million to R6,1 million. Current year total revenue amount-

ed to R80.4 million versus the R75,8 million recorded in the 

previous year.

Excluding revenue from non-monetary transactions in the 

form of asset gains, that is assets transfers and donations 

received as well as value appreciation of biological assets, 

current year revenue amounted to R71 million versus R60,8 

million in the previous year. 

There was an improvement in grant financial support re-

ceived from the parent municipality for operations. It in-

creased from R27 million in the previous year to R41 million 

in the current year. The continued support from the parent 

municipality assists in ensuring that the agency delivers on 

its mandate.

R80,4 million

R41 million

Current year total revenue versus 
R75,8 million in the previous year.

Grant financial support received from the parent 
municipality for operations versus R27 million in the 
previous year

Kei Fresh Produce Market

In 2019/20, the Kei Fresh Produce Market which has a trading floor 

space of 3,400 square metres sold 5,109.43 tons of produce. The 

commission earned by Ntinga from the sale of fresh produce in 

2019/20 is R909 075.

Potatoes and onions accounted for the bulk of the sales. The ma-

jority of the sales went to the informal market. The Spar stores in 

Engcobo and Mthatha were also significant clients of the KFPM. 

The agency is still committed to attracting three market agents to 

the KFPM in order to improve trading performance.

Adam Kok Farms

The 2,600ha Adam Kok Farms which have an irrigation system 

that covers nine to 11 hectares produced 745 cattle for sale to the 

Umzikantu Abbattoir during the review period. The cattle were a 

combination of the bonsmara and brahman breeds. A total number 

of 173 pig units which translates to 682 pigs were sourced from local 

suppliers and sent to Umzikantu Abattoir. Of this figure, 159,5 units 

were slaughtered which translates to 638 pigs. 

A total of 14,7 units of sheep were also sourced from breeders and 

sent to Umzikantu Abattoir. The supply of sheep remains a challenge. 

Ntinga is continuing conversations with local farmers in order to 

improve the condition of their sheep.

Total revenue from livestock sales was R3,9 million in the 2019/20 

financial year. Total crop sales were R699 892. 
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Umzikantu Abattoir

The Umzikantu Abattoir which has a capacity to slaughter 50 cows a 

day, slaughtered 541,7 livestock units for butcheries and communities 

among others. A unit is equivalent to one cow or six sheep or four 

pigs. The abattoir charged R540 to slaughter a cow during the period. 

A total of 956,67 units were slaughtered for meat sales towards the 

abattoir’s full capacity. The lower-than-expected figure was a result 

of the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic regulations which limited 

the size of gatherings permitted. This was particularly felt during the 

lucrative Easter period. During this period, the abattoir slaughters for 

weddings, funerals and other rituals. Revenue generated from meat 

sales and slaughter fees was R10,8 million. 

541,7 cowsR10,8 million
Slaughtered by Umzikantu for 
butcheries and communities

Revenue generated from meat sales 
and slaughter fees

956,67 units

27 water schemes 94 breakdowns

or meat sales towards the 
abattoir’s full capacity

refurbished by Ntinga repaired by Ntinga

During the period under review, the agency continued to maintain the 

93 rural and peri-urban water schemes located in the KSD Local Munic-

ipality which has a population exceeding 400 000 residents. In 2019/20, 

Ntinga refurbished 27 water schemes. During the period under review, 

the agency responded to 94 breakdowns at the schemes. This figure is 

comprised of repeat scheme breakdowns which requires repairs to a 

particular scheme more than once.

Revenue generated by Ntinga for water services from ORTDM was R 9,4 

million versus a target of R16,2 million. The target was not met due to 

the inability of the parent municipality to fund the water services work 

assigned to Ntinga.

The development of a database for the billing of consumers remains 

a challenge. The agency could not create a comprehensive database 

due to resistance from consumers to provide the required information. 

In the interim, Ntinga has identified 158 businesses, 381 households; 

five churches and five schools by using coordinates provided by google 

maps. 

Water services

R9,4 million
Revenue generated by Ntinga for 

water services from the ORTDM

REFURB
REPAIR
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Over and above its empowering development mandate which is pre-

mised on the delivery of water services as well as competent trading 

enterprises, Ntinga also provides project management expertise to the 

ORTDM. Ntinga discharges its project management support through the 

inspired implementation of discretionary interventions or initiatives in 

order to allow the agency to focus on its core business offering. The 

ORTDM has defined discretionary initiatives as those services falling 

outside the scope of trading enterprises and water services.

In the 2018/19 financial year, the ORTDM resolved to 
host an O.R Tambo land and Investment Summit. Sub-
sequently, in 2019/20, Ntinga received R200 000 from 
the district municipality to develop an investment 
brochure for the district. In consultation with the 
Eastern Cape Socio-Economic Consultative Council 
(ECSECC), Ntinga completed the investment brochure.

In the 2019/20 financial year a co-operatives indaba was convened 

which was designed to identify the development needs required by 

co-operatives. The outcomes of the indaba have begun to shape a 

five-year strategic plan for the O.R Tambo Co-operative Development 

Centre. An incubation programme has been identified for co-operatives 

within the district and sites have already been earmarked. 

In the 2019/20 financial year, Ntinga also established hydroponics in-

frastructure at Ultra City with the planting to be done by the Chris Hani 

Co-operative Development Centre. The hydroponics will produce seed-

lings which will be sold to the local market through primary co-opera-

tives in the local municipalities. 

The entity’s comprehensive report on the performance of its operations 

is found in the Operations Report and Annual Performance Report on 

pages 37 and 47 respectively.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

As we move forward to the next period, Ntinga is to play a pivotal 

role in the economic development of the O.R Tambo region. This we 

will do working with the parent municipality, local municipalities and 

in partnership with the public and private sectors. This will also entail 

mobilising financial resources in order to drive the entity’s strategy.

The entity has demonstrated its capability in delivering on the water 

services mandate. Ntinga is ready to extend its services to the KSD 

Local Municipality. Ntinga welcomes partnerships, investment and 

collaboration with all stakeholders who share Ntinga’s values of an 

inclusive and empowered O.R Tambo region. A summary of Ntinga’s 

business and investment case appears on pages 24 - 25 of the report.

APPRECIATION

I am grateful to the Honourable Executive Mayor Councillor Thokozile 

Sokanyile, Deputy Executive Mayor Councillor Robert Nogumla and 

the municipality’s senior management for their enduring support. I 

am thankful to the Board of Directors for its empowering oversight 

role. I am grateful to the Ntinga management team for its diligence in 

the execution of the mandate and for their confidence and support. 

I also thank all Ntinga staff for their fortitude and dedication to the 

Ntinga business. I also extend my appreciation to all Ntinga’s part-

ners who continue to support the agency’s efforts in a challenging 

development arena.

Loyiso Mbiko

Acting Chief Executive Officer

Project management

R540
Is how much the abattoir charged in the 
year under review to slaughter a cow
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As of the end of the financial year, the entity was in a net asset posi-

tion amounting to R79.2 million. This implies that Ntinga had enough 

assets to cover its liabilities. However, when comparing short-term 

(current) assets with short-term liabilities, the picture is not very 

good. Current assets amounted to R18,4 million whereas current lia-

bilities amounted to R21.4 million. When compared with the previous 

financial year, current assets increased by 3% from R17.8 million to 

R18,4 million. 

 

Included in current liabilities is R4,5 million being a provision for staff 

leave. This balance has increased by 21% when compared with the 

previous financial year. One of the contributing factors is remote 

working arrangements and staff taking fewer vacation leave days. 

In the next financial year, Ntinga is going to put in place measures to 

bring the leave provision balance into a reasonable amount.

Dear Stakeholder

It is with great pleasure to present the financial 
report for the 2019/20 financial year. Ntinga began 
the period under review with a great sense of enthu-
siasm having set a clear strategy and developed a 
budget to support its implementation. The lockdown 
restrictions in the second half of the financial year 
negatively impacted Ntinga’s plans as well as the 
financial results. Despite this, Ntinga has managed to 
achieve a stable set of financial results. The company 
is proud that it continues to play its role in pro-
moting local economic development in the district. 
Through sound budgeting principles and financial 
discipline, Ntinga has been able to remain afloat. 
Sound financial management remains a key focus 
area and this is evidenced by the admirable track 
record of good audit outcomes.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets decreased from R82.7 million in the pre-

vious financial year to R82,4 million in the current year. Land 

and buildings, as well as plant and equipment, make up 72% 

of non-current assets with carrying values of R18,6 million 

and R40.7 million respectively. Included in these assets are 

Adam Kok Farms, Mzikantu Abattoir, Kei Fresh Produce Mar-

ket properties as well as agricultural equipment. This year 

the parent municipality constructed on our behalf staff hous-

es at Adam Kok Farms to the value R2,4 million.

R82,4 million

R300 000

72% 

R18,6 million

R40,7 million

Non-current assets value for the 
year 2019/20

decrease from R82,7 million

of non-current assets 
are made up of land 
and buildings as well 
as plant and 
equipment assets

value of land and buildings

value of plants and equipment
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The value of the entity’s livestock increased by 12% from R13,2 million 

in the previous year to R15 million in the current year. This was com-

prised of 1,269 herd of cattle at year-end. Cattle is bred primarily for 

use as a feeder to the abattoir.

12% increase
in the entity’s livestock value 
from R13,2 million to R15million

Description 2019/20 2018/19

ASSETS

Current Assets R18,454,272 R17,865,560

Non-current Assets R82,400,579 R82,753,737

TOTAL ASSETS R100,854,851 R100,619,297

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities R21,455,742 R15,227,850

Non-current Liabilities R122,420 -

TOTAL LIABILITIES R21,578,162 R15,227,850

NET ASSETS R79,276,689 R85,391,447

50 000 000

40 000 000

30 000 000

20 000 000

10 000 000

-

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The 2019/20 financial performance shows an improvement when com-

pared with the previous financial year with reported losses before tax 

reducing from R11,9 million to R6,1 million. Current year total revenue 

amounted to R80,3 million and in the previous year it was R75,8 million. 

Total revenue is graphically summarised as follows:

Excluding revenue from non-monetary transactions 
in the form of asset gains, that is assets transfers 
and donations received as well as value appreciation 
of biological assets, current year revenue amounted 
to R71,2 million whereas in the previous year it was 
R60,8 million.  

There was improvement in grant financial support received from the 

parent municipality for operations. It increased from R27 million in the 

previous year to R41 million in the current year. The continued support 

from the parent municipality assists in ensuring that the entity delivers 

on its mandate. 

Ntinga’s strategy entails building and operating a sustainable state-

owned company. In pursuit of this goal, Ntinga generates its own reve-

nue by providing water services in the form of water schemes repairs, 

and maintenance to the parent municipality. In addition, Ntinga is turn-

ing the trading enterprises into viable trading centres that can generate 

revenue and be self-sustainable. Year to year revenue generation from 

main source is summarised as follows:

2019/20 Transfers and Subsidies

2019/20 Exchange Revenue (Own generated revenue)

2019/20 Assets Gains

2018/19 Transfers and Subsidies

2018/19 Exchange Revenue (Own generated revenue)

2018/19 Assets Gains

Revenue Summary

Description 2019/20 2018/19

a. Consulting (Water Services) R9,467,045 R10,479,300

b. Abattoir meat sales and 
    slaughter services

R10,873,350 R7,848,902

c. Fresh Produce Market 
    commission and rentals

R1,571,310 R963,068

c. Livestock and crop sales R1,334,445 R4,759,027

Total expenditure incurred amounted to R86,4 million compared to 

the R87,8 million of the previous year. The highest expenditure item 

is employee-related costs amounting to R45 million which consti-

tutes 52% of total expenditure and 56% of total revenue. It is for 

this reason that new staff appointments are for critical positions and 

those that are revenue generating in nature.  

In the current year, the municipality assigned Ntinga to implement 

special projects and amounts received after VAT were as above.

As at the end of the year, stages of implementation and expenditure 

incurred varied per project.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The advent of the pandemic, declining revenues from operations and 

reduced funding from the parent municipality have been the stark 

realities of an emerging economy. Despite these challenges, the entity 

remains committed to the realisation of its goals as both a commercial 

driver in the region and socio-economic development agent. Ntinga 

remains committed to the realisation of this vision.

Mncedisi Mpatheni

Acting Chief Financial Officer

SPECIAL PROJECTS

01 R2,173,913
Wool improvement

R962,828
Zandukwana agricultural Project02 R4,990,294

RAFI Project 03
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OPERATIONS

ROBUST LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

TRADING ENTERPRISES

The development of a thriving agriculture value chain 
remains at the epicentre of vibrant and robust local 
economic development efforts within the O.R Tambo 
District Municipality (ORTDM). The establishment of this 
value chain should inject the requisite buoyancy into 
the regional economy through the introduction of
inventive development instruments which are aimed 
at restructuring the socio-economic architecture of 
the district. Ntinga’s efforts are thus geared toward 
the creation of a full value chain comprised of effective 
backward and forward linkages. While primary agricul-
ture continues to drive local economic activity, the 
development of the region’s processing and benefici-
ation capacity should result in a general improvement in 
revenue generation and new employment opportunities.

The O.R Tambo region possesses an infinite agricultural potential 

which should position the district at the top of the provincial eco-

nomic pecking order. As such, Ntinga is regularly concerned with 

the investigation of tools which should further unlock the latent po-

tential of the region’s often fallow land assets. This should lay the 

foundation, and ultimately, consolidate the status of the district as a 

bread basket of South Africa.

This development posture seeks to infuse a commercial farming 

ethos into the region’s largely subsistence farming rural communi-

ties. The prevalent traditional farming practices significantly curtail 

the ability of rural communities to earn top dollar for their econom-

ic assets which are often in the form of livestock and land assets. 

Therefore, Ntinga’s efforts are aimed at improving their income gen-

eration potential through the introduction of value addition practices 

and more importantly, access to markets. The lack of market access 

opportunities denies local producers crucial income generation op-

portunities and ultimately improved livelihoods. The net effect of a lack 

of market access is livestock and produce whose condition and age 

erodes their quality and therefore fetch lower prices in the market. 

In response to these challenges, the ORTDM instructed Ntinga to de-

velop programmes which are aimed at erasing the market access 

and beneficiation deficit in the region. As a result, Ntinga established 

a trading enterprises programme in 2017 which is aimed at opening 

up markets for products which emanate from the ORTDM. 

The resulting enterprises are the Kei Fresh Produce Market in 

Vulindlela, Mthatha, the 2,600 hectare (ha) Adam Kok Farms in Kokstad 

and the Umzikantu Abattoir in Zimbane.

KEI FRESH PRODUCE MARKET (KFPM)

The KFPM plays a significant market access role for local producers 

whose products would otherwise find no space in the local and re-

gional markets. As one of 24 national fresh produce commission mar-

kets in South Africa, the KFPM encourages local farmers to supply 

quality produce to the market in order to boost economic activity in 

the district. With a trading floor space of 3,400 square metres, The 

KFPM receives produce from local farmers, nationwide and further 

from Southern African countries such as Mozambique.

3,400
square metres of trading 
floor space at KFPM
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The fresh produce market sells fresh agricultural produce such as a vari-

ety of edible fruits and vegetables through accredited agricultural fresh 

produce market agents to retailers, hawkers and spaza shops among 

others. To safeguard the produce and sales of farmers, Ntinga employs 

the services of an IT system which maintains records and makes daily 

payments to farmers for produce sold. The market also has cold storage 

facilities to accommodate fresh produce from farmers.  

All national fresh produce markets are using Market Agents (MA) and 

KFPM is no different. The market agent is responsible for getting pro-

duce from farmers, negotiate price and sell the produce to retailers, 

hawkers and the public. The agent receives trading space from KFPM 

and handles the produce from the farmers. Revenue from fresh produce 

sales is paid into the Ntinga account. Ntinga receives a 5% commission 

from the sales of produce and it pays farmers through the market agent 

which retains a 7,5% commission. This requires a relationship of trust 

between the agent and the farmers it serves. 

However, challenges exist. The majority of the fresh produce at the 

KFPM is sourced from outside the province as a result of an inconsis-

tency of supply by local farmers. The majority of bananas at KFPM are 

sourced from Mozambique and other fruit varieties are from the West-

ern Cape, Mpumalanga, Limpopo, KwaZulu-Natal and some parts of the 

Eastern Cape. Potatoes are sourced from the Northern Cape and most 

vegetables also come from outside the Eastern Cape. While the Eastern 

Cape has the Sundays River Valley that produces quality fruits and veg-

etables, the farmers in that region prefer to send their produce where 

they get good prices such as the Johannesburg market, Buffalo City and 

Nelson Mandela Bay fresh produce markets. This results in surplus pro-

duce being sourced from the Southern African market.

Despite the fact that the Eastern Cape possesses the capacity to sup-

ply South Africa with fresh produce all year round, the challenges in 

the ORTDM lie in the manner in which land is demarcated. The land is 

owned by chiefs, individuals and families which presents a significant 

curtailment of the economic potential in the region. This is further exac-

erbated by infrastructure challenges such as a lack of irrigation systems. 

There is inconsistency of supply of produce on the trading floor. Expe-

rience teaches us that the strength of fresh produce markets lies in 

informal traders. However, the KFPM cannot retain the informal trader 

market in the absence of a reliable supply of fruit and vegetables. The 

lack of supply on a daily basis from local farmers drives informal traders 

to other markets.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 2019/20

Despite these challenges, the KFPM continues to deliver the required 

economic dividend to local producers. During the period under review, 

the KFPM sold 5,109.43 tons of produce. The 5% commission earned by 

Ntinga from the fresh produce sales is R909 075.

The biggest sellers in the 2019/20 financial year were potatoes and on-

ions and the O.R. Tambo district has a potential to produce potatoes as 

per the survey done by Potato South Africa. The majority of the sales 

went to the informal market. The Spar stores in Engcobo and Mthatha 

were also significant clients of the KFPM. 

However, the inconsistency of supply means the majority of retailers in 

the region buy their produce from East London and Durban. This was 

worsened by a lack of a competent market agent during the review 

period. The KFPM was only able to secure a second market agent in 

October 2019 which led to the underperformance. The agency is still 

committed to attracting competent market agents to the KFPM in order 

to improve trading performance.

In addition, rural farmers are not producing good quality potatoes. 

Furthermore, a major part of rural land is owned by individual families 

which cannot assure consistency of supply. The situation is worsened 

by inadequate infrastructure, lack of irrigation systems as well as unre-

liable water supply.

The agency is therefore driving an unfunded mandate by striving to as-

sist rural farmers to produce the required quality by the market. The re-

sultant effect is that small scale farmers are unable to supply the KFPM 

consistently with fresh fruit and vegetables. Ntinga is engaged with the 

Department of Rural Development and Agrarian Reform (DRDAR) in or-

der to help these farmers produce the required quality.

5% commision

7.5% commision

received by Ntinga from the sales of 
produce and it pays farmers through 
the market agent

retained by the market agent
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ADAM KOK FARMS

The Adam Kok Farms cover 2600 ha of land in Kokstad and the farms 

are a central pivot in the development of a cadre of rural farmers that 

are able to exploit their economic assets in order to derive maximum 

commercial value. About 32 Ha of the total land size can be utilised in 

partnership with interested parties for production of fruit (peaches and 

apples). Furthermore, studies indicate that the orchards could be com-

mercially viable if properly managed. A further 50ha is reserved for crop 

production. Maize production is intended for the production of feed for 

the livestock on the farms. The product mix in crop production includes 

cabbage, potato and in future it will include onion production.

The farms have an irrigation system that covers nine to 11 hectares. 

There is a potential for an additional 50 hectares for production should 

Ntinga succeed in mobilising funding for irrigation infrastructure.

In response to the livestock development challenges confronting the 

O.R Tambo district, Ntinga manages an empowering livestock pro-

gramme which aims to improve the condition of the livestock assets 

in the hands of rural farmers. One of the greatest impediments to the 

commercialisation of the rural livestock market is the poor condition of 

the livestock. Rural and subsistence livestock farmers mainly farm the 

Nguni breed which has an inferior body size and therefore unattractive 

to the commercial market. 

The preferred breed by most subsistence farmers for commercial pur-

poses is Bonsmara and Brahman due to their adaptability to some rural 

areas. In response to this challenge, the agency manages a heifer ex-

change programme which assists rural farmers in improving the condi-

tion of their herd. The agency also assists famers through a bull loaning 

farming facility which enables cross breeding for better quality offspring. 

In practice, participating rural farmers exchange their inferior unproduc-

tive cattle for a fresh calf which is ready to produce. Exchanged cattle 

are conditioned or fattened and transferred to Umzikantu Abattoir for 

slaughter. 

These valuable empowerment initiatives further form part of Ntinga’s 

social and ethical objectives. They are expanded upon in the Social and 

Ethics Committee Report on page 91.

The challenge remains in changing attitudes by ensuring that farmers 

produce livestock in order to derive economic benefit from them. Pre-

vailing attitudes among rural farmers have led to a situation in which 

the agency has to procure livestock from auctioneers because of their 

poor condition and a refusal to sell their cattle at market related prices.  

This defeats the purpose of the farms which was to ensure that local 

livestock is in a marketable condition and to offer consistent supply to 

the Umzikantu Abattoir.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 2019/20

However, Ntinga is pleased that it supplied 745 cattle 
to Umzikantu Abattoir for slaughter during the re-
view period.  In addition, 173 pig units were sourced 
from the piggery projects around the ORTDM and 
Alfred Nzo District Municipality which translates to a 
total of 692 pigs. A unit is comprised of four pigs, or 
six sheep or one cow/ox. 

Furthermore, 14,7 units of sheep were sourced from breeders during 

the period under review. The supply of sheep remains a challenge. Nt-

inga is continuing conversations with local farmers in order to improve 

the condition of their sheep.

Total value of cattle supplied to Umzikantu Abattoir was R3,9 million in 

the 2019/20 financial year. 

Total crop sales were R699 892. The produce was sold to buyers and 

retailers in Kokstad, and to the Pietermaritzburg Fresh Produce Market. 

The bulk of the sales went to the KFPM.

A total of 56,3ha was utilised for crop production in the form of maize 

and sorghum for animal feed as well as potatoes and cabbages for rev-

enue enhancement.

2600 hectares

32 hectares

11 hectares

Is how much land the Adam Kok 
Farms cover

Of the total land can be utilised  
for the cultivation of peach and 
apple orchards

Of the farm land has an irrigation 
system with the potential for 18ha
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UMZIKANTU ABATTOIR

The Umzikantu Abbattoir offers a powerful market access platform for producers within the O.R Tambo 
district. The abattoir has a capacity to slaughter 50 units a day, one unit being one cow or six sheep or four 
pigs. Umzikantu Abattoir is one of the high throughput abattoirs in the Eastern Cape which is located at 
Nyameni Road in Zimbane location.  Umzikantu is the only red meat abattoir that is operational in the O.R. 
Tambo district. 

It is intended to offer a consistent market for those farmers who wish 

to take advantage of the opportunities inherent in the commercial live-

stock production sector. The intention is to ensure that the abattoir de-

rives the bulk of its supply from the Adam Kok Farms which should act 

as a product feeder channel.  As a commercial enterprise, the abattoir 

weighs the livestock it receives from farmers and it pays producers per 

the weight and age of the cattle received. However, there is still a need 

to further educate local farmers on commercial farming methods as 

they keep their cattle until they are old and in the process, they lose 

weight and their condition deteriorates.

Ntinga has limited resources and this requires a collaborative approach 

and cohesion between government departments in order to exert the 

desired development impact. In order for special purpose vehicles such 

as Umzikantu to thrive, there needs to be a general improvement in 

primary production so that local farmers can reap the benefits of the 

commercial sector.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 2019/20

In the 2019/20 financial year, the abattoir slaughtered 541,7 livestock 

units for butcheries and communities among others. The abattoir 

charged R540 to slaughter a cow in the review period. 

A total of 956,67 units were slaughtered for meat sales towards the 

abattoir’s full capacity. The lower than expected figure was a result of 

the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic regulations which limited the size 

of gatherings permitted. This was particularly felt during the lucrative 

Easter period. During this period, the abattoir slaughters for weddings, 

funerals and other rituals. 

Revenue generated from meat sales and slaughter 
fees was R10,8 million.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Moving forward, Ntinga intends to ensure that the enterprises be-

come self-sustaining and viable businesses with a positive cash flow 

position. This will entail developing business plans for the trading 

enterprises. The agency is engaging a consultant to develop a busi-

ness plan which include a projects roadmap which should help boost 

performance. The general financial health of the enterprises remains 

a top priority and the agency continues to engage the district mu-

nicipality for the requisite capitalisation. This will eliminate the status 

quo in which Ntinga has to utilise its reserves to subsidise the trading 

enterprises. 

There are also plans in the pipeline to streamline the entities and to 

bring in private sector partners to manage the operations of the en-

terprises on a profit-sharing basis. This should improve performance.

Finally, the agency is mobilising government to ensure that the corpo-

rate strategy is adequately funded and capitalised.
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The provision of a reliable and safe water supply remains one of the 

most central pillars of the developmental state. Access to uninterrupted 

water supply is a fundamental human right which helps promote basic 

human dignity. As a custodian of increasingly scarce water resources, 

government is expected to manage these resources in a prudent and 

responsible manner which promotes access to the most vulnerable of 

its citizenry.

Inadequate water services infrastructure in the rural hinterland deprives 

its populous of a critical life sustaining resource. In particular, the provi-

sion of consistent water supply is a socio-economic development im-

perative which drives investment, trade and general economic activity. 

While access to water resources is central to maintaining a healthy citi-

zenry, it lies at the centre of energised, resurgent and revived economic 

performance. 

The O.R Tambo District Municipality is acutely aware that in order to 

bolster economic activity it needs to work toward improved water avail-

ability. The inability to guarantee consistent water supply could have the 

net effect of driving investment away from the district and resultant 

loss of jobs.

As such, the ORTDM has mandated Ntinga, its special purpose delivery 

vehicle to undertake a refurbishment and maintenance programme of 

its non-functional schemes in the King Sabatha Dalindyebo Local Mu-

nicipality (KSD). The KSD municipality was earmarked as a starting point 

in a district that spans five local municipalities. This expansion of the 

Ntinga mandate elevated the agency from its singular focus of assisting 

emerging farmers.

WATER SERVICES
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In line with Section 84 of the Municipal Structures Act, Ntinga is man-

dated to focus its energies on water services systems operations, water 

asset management as well as relationship management. The agency’s 

activities include the refurbishment of non-functional water schemes, 

regular servicing and maintenance of water schemes, procurement, 

storage and despatching of materials. In addition, the agency sup-

plies diesel to water schemes, operating an emergency response unit, 

peri-urban billing, water services by-law enforcement as well as social 

facilitation.

Ntinga was initially required to maintain 83 water schemes which were 

expanded to 93 on the subsequent discovery of additional schemes 

within the KSD area. There are 36 wards in the KSD local municipality 

with a population exceeding 400 000 residents. A total of 90 000 people 

receive water from the 93 schemes we service per year. Every year, Nt-

inga produces 2,581 million litres of water per year from the schemes.

SERVICE DELIVERY POSTURE

It costs an average of R16 million a year to maintain these 

schemes in order to ensure that they are fully-functional all 

year round. However, operational efficacy is often hindered by 

inadequate capitalisation of the mandate. A R10 million budget 

in 2019/20 meant that Ntinga could not refurbish all schemes 

which are non-functional. The cost burden is comprised of vari-

able costs include the procurement of spares and equipment 

as well as fixed costs in the form of salaries. Inadequate finan-

cial resources severely limits the agency’s sustainability.

When the Ntinga mandate is properly funded, it performs re-

markably well. The lack of adequate financial support means 

the agency cannot meet the demands of the Water Services 

Act which requires that alternative water supply such as water 

trucks be provided to communities in the event that refurbish-

ments take more than nine hours to finalise. 

CAPITALISATION 

OPERATIONS

R16 million93 water schemes

R10 million90 000 people

A year to maintain these 
water schemes

Were maintaned within 
the KSD area

budget in 2019/20 meant 
that Ntinga could not refurbish all 
schemes which are non-functional

receive water from the 
93 schemes per year

On a daily basis Ntinga’s 22 human resources in its water services division, assess and respond to break-
downs reported by operators at the schemes in order to ensure minimal disruption is caused. The team is 
comprised of technicians, millwrights, electricians, an instrument technician, artisans, artisan aids, social 
facilitators as well as administrative personnel. The team is designed to speedily repair borehole pumps. 
Rural schemes comprise of borehole pumps and springs. 

REVENUE GENERATION

Furthermore, Ntinga provides water to peri-urban areas which 

have blocks of flats as well as brick manufacturers. In addi-

tion, Ntinga is required to collect revenue from businesses 

and consumers. In order to improve revenue collection from 

water services, Ntinga is required to develop a database of 

consumers which requires social facilitation in the affected 

communities. 

Ntinga has embarked on this process by encouraging commu-

nities to pay for the water they consume. However, there is 

still resistance to payment and communities largely refuse to 

provide their details for billing purposes as they believe they 

fall outside the municipal area. The law dictates that when a 

resident has a water connection in the yard, one is required 

to pay for water. Another challenge is that most communities 

have illegal water connections. While others are willing to pay, 

those unwilling to pay often chase data collectors away when 

collecting data for billing purposes.

These challenges are 
compounded by electricity 
issues with Eskom. Eskom 
power supply is inconsistent 
and it fluctuates which 
leads to damage on 
pumps as a result of 
power surges.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 2019/20

Ntinga is pleased that it managed to refurbish 27 water schemes in 

the 2019/20 financial year. During the period under review, the agency 

responded to 94 breakdowns at the schemes. This figure is comprised 

of repeat scheme breakdowns which requires repairs to a particular 

scheme more than once.

Revenue generated by Ntinga for water services from ORTDM was 

R9,4 million versus a target of R16,2 million. The performance was 

affected due to the inability of the parent municipality to have 

sufficient funds to honour the full invoice of R16,2 million.

The development of a database for the billing of consumers remains 

a challenged. The agency could not create a comprehensive database 

due to resistance from consumers to provide the required informa-

tion. Lockdown regulations also prevented door-to-door visits and the 

collection of personal information from consumers was not possible 

during the third and fourth quarters of the year.

Enforcement will be the last resort. Ntinga has engaged the assistance 

of the KSD municipality to collect the data of electricity consumers as 

they also use water. The municipality is compiling this information. The 

agency has also requested law enforcement and the ORTDM to assist 

with data collection in order to prevent the risk of violence. 

In the interim, Ntinga has identified 158 businesses, 
381 households; five churches and five schools by 
using coordinates provided by google maps. 
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Over and above its empowering development man-
date which is premised on the delivery of water 
services as well as competent trading enterprises, 
Ntinga also provides project management expertise 
to the ORTDM. Ntinga discharges its project manage-
ment support through the inspired implementation 
of discretionary interventions or initiatives in order 
to allow the agency to focus on its core business 
offering. The ORTDM has defined discretionary initia-
tives as those services falling outside the scope of 
trading enterprises and water services.

The project management function supports the roll-out of internal 

Ntinga projects, those of the ORTDM including those of external 

stakeholders. While the agency depends on the use of external re-

sources to execute project delivery, the internal project manage-

ment directs implementation in order to ensure that it keeps within 

the agency’s and district’s development ethos.

Ntinga is currently developing a template which it will effect in order 

to develop project charters. These charters should govern the align-

ment of each project with the mandate especially in relation to the 

agriculture value chain as well as water services.

The bulk of the discretionary initiatives fall within local economic 

development as well as trade and investment promotion. This means 

Ntinga is required to promote trade and investment for the O.R Tam-

bo region and to enhance small business activity in the district. The 

bias is toward the implementation of agricultural initiatives.

TRADE AND INVESTMENT PROMOTION

In the 2018/19 financial year, the ORTDM resolved to host an O.R Tambo 

land and Investment Summit. Subsequently, in 2019/20, Ntinga received 

R200 000 from the district municipality to develop an investment bro-

chure for the district. In consultation with the Eastern Cape Socio-Eco-

nomic Consultative Council (ECSECC), Ntinga completed the investment 

brochure which is yet to be produced in bigger number for distribution 

to targeted market segments.

RAFI: SMME DEVELOPMENT AND O.R. TAMBO 

CO-OPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT CENTRE 

Small business development is slanted toward co-operative develop-

ment. An exciting project is the implementation of the Rural Agro-in-

dustries Finance Initiative (RAFI) which was introduced to the ORTDM 

by the Chris Hani Co-operative Development Centre. The programme is 

focused on the commercialisation of rural agriculture. The programme 

goes beyond the focus on crop and animal production and agro-pro-

cessing. It is also focused on orientating local produce for the export 

market. This initiative has been adopted by three other district munici-

palities, namely Chris Hani, Alfred Nzo and Joe Gqabi districts. 

In addition to the commercialisation of agriculture, the programme has 

also assisted with of the O.R Tambo Co-operative Development Centre 

(ORTCDC). In 2018/19, the district requested Ntinga to run the ORTCDC 

and to manage the funding of the project as well as to oversee work 

done in respect of the project. The Chris Hani Co-operative Develop-

ment Centre was roped in to assist Ntinga in implementing the pro-

gramme.

A five-year programme has been adopted to establish and operation-

alize the centre. In the 2019/20 financial year a co-operatives indaba 

was convened which was designed to identify the development needs 

required by co-operatives. The outcomes of the indaba have begun 

to shape a five-year strategic plan for the O.R Tambo Co-operative 

Development Centre. An incubation programme has been identified 

for co-operatives within the district and sites have already been ear-

marked. Co-operatives have indicated the need for irrigation support for 

their crops and sites were planned for in 2019/20. 

A board of directors has been established for the centre which will raise 

funding to implement the strategy once it is finalized.

In the 2019/20 financial year, Ntinga also established hydroponics infra-

structure at Wonk’umntu near Ultra City, Mthatha, with the planting to 

be done by the Chris Hani Co-operative Development Centre. The hy-

droponics will produce seedlings which will be sold to the local market 

through primary co-operatives in the local municipalities. People have 

already been trained in the operations of hydroponics. The Chris Hani 

Co-operative Development Centre has secured funding from the Man-

ufacturing, Engineering and Related Services Seta (Merseta) for training 

120 people drawn from various co-operatives from across the district 

municipality. The funding for training and skills development is designed 

to enhance productivity and quality control in the commercial activities 

of the co-operatives.

PROJECT MANAGEMENT OFFICE

R200 000
received from the district municipality to develop an investment 
brochure for the district

AGRICULTURE DEVELOPMENT

In 2018/19 Ntinga commenced a Rafi pilot project in Ncise in the KSD 

local municipality where 420 hectares were earmarked for crop pro-

duction including maize and soya beans. A total of 239 tons of maize 

were harvested in the 2019/20 financial year. Community members 

who ceded their land parcels for the programme received 40 tons 

of maize for use in their households. The rest of the maize was sold 

and the revenue was deposited into a community bank account in 

order to continue with the Rafi programme and to support enterprise 

development. 

In 2019/20, a further 90 hectares of wheat and barley were planted 

in Ncise. Oats was planted on 10 hectares. The barley will be sold to 

alcoholic beverages giant Heineken in the production of beer and 

there are discussions with Kokstad Mill to procure the wheat.

The proceeds will go to the community. There is a need to extend 

this programme to other local municipalities. In 2019/20, Ntinga be-

gan land mapping and social facilitation in order to market the Rafi 

concept to other local municipalities beyond KSD. The agency gained 

access to communities in Nyandeni mainly in Ward 30 where 301 

hectares have been secured for use under the Rafi project. The land 

has been mapped for use in the 2020/21 financial year.

R1,1 million

1,3 tons

Funding received from the 
district municipality to assist 
three co-operatives with 
maize production

of maize per hectare were 
realised by two of the co-ops 
each

In addition to the RAFI programme the organization re-

ceived funding totaling R1,1 million from the district mu-

nicipality to assist three co-operatives with maize produc-

tion. The Zandukwana Co-operative in Nyandeni was able 

to plant 60 hectares of maize. Yield estimates were three 

tons per hectare at planting in December 2019. As a result 

of delays in funding, only 1,3 tons per hectare were real-

ized at harvest in June 2020. 

Another co-operative in Qokolweni in the KSD local munic-

ipality was assisted to plant 17 hectares of maize. Yield es-

timates were three tons per hectare. Late planting resulted 

in 1,3 tons per hectare being achieved. 

Finally, a co-operative in Ingquza received support in the 

form of seeds and fertilizer. The key observation regarding 

agriculture development in the O.R. Tambo District is fund-

ing scarcity, drought and massive depletion of soil nutri-

ents which impact negatively on desired yields. It is urgent 

that strategies to address this three-faceted challenge are 

devised, and Ntinga needs to remain at the centre of these 

efforts.
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PART F 
PERFORMANCE 
INFORMATION

Performance

4746

Ntinga measures its performance against its overarching strategy on the Service Delivery and Budget 
Implementation Plan (SDIP) using relevant key performance indicators (KPIs). In tracking its performance 
for the year under review, Ntinga also reflects on the progress made relating to the four strategic goals 
and hereby tables the statutory Annual Performance Report for the 2019/2020 financial year.
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   GOAL 1 Sustainable Water Services (water supply and sanitation) Systems.

Objectives Key Performance 
Indicator

Project Names Indicator Code Interventions/ Critical 
Success Factors

Baseline 2018/19 2019/20 Annual 
Performance 
Target

Annual Report 
Actual 
Performance

Performance Variance 
and Reasons

Corrective Measure Means of Verification Custodian

1.1 Provide water related ser-
vices to the peri-urban & rural 
communities within the O.R. 
Tambo District by refurbishing 
and maintaining schemes.

1.1.1 Number 
of  assesed, 
refurbished, 
and maintained 
non-functional 
water schemes 
in KSD

Assessment, 
refurbishment and 
maintenance of 83 
water schemes 

1_1.1_2_P02 Assessment, refurbish-
ment and maintenance 
of 50 water schemes 

83 water schemes 
assessed.                     
44 water schemes 
refurbished.

Refurbishment of 39 
water schemes 

Not Achieved: 
27 water schemes 
were refurbished

No funds for purchas-
ing materials & spares 
due to non-payment of 
invoices

Signing and 
implementation of 
the Service Delivery 
Agreement and 
enforcing on-time 
payment of invoices

* Completed & signed 
job cards, 

* List of refurbished 
schemes (Q1- Q4)

Head: Water 
Services

Maintenance of 83 
water schemes 

Over Achieved: 
94 water schemes 
were  repaired and 
maintained

There were many 
breakdowns that were 
repaired for those water 
schemes that did not 
require expensive mate-
rials & spares

N/A * Completed & signed 
job cards & list of 
maintained water 
schemes. (Q1- Q4)

Head: Water 
Services

1.2 Provide accurate & timely 
billing services to all the cus-
tomers serviced by Ntinga 

1.2.1 Analysis 
of consumers 
(metered and 
un-metered) in 
the peri-urban 
and rural areas 

P04 Rural billing 1_1.1_4_P04 Analysis of water 
consumers in the 
ORTDM region (in the 
peri-urban and rural 
areas)

Analysis of con-
sumers (metered 
and unmetered) in 
the peri-urban and 
rural areas

Analysis of 
consumers (metered 
and unmetered) in 
the peri-urban and 
rural areas

Not Achieved: 
No consumer data 
was collected but 
only the coordinates 
of households were 
captured by using 
Google Maps: 158 
businesses; 381  
households; 
5 churches; 
5 schools 

Lockdown regulations 
prevented door-to-door 
visits and therefore the 
collection of 
personal information 
from consumers was 
not possible during the 
third and fourth quarter. 

Ntinga will wait until 
the lockdown 
regulations are lifted 
and then embark on 
door- to-door visits 

* Signed database Head: Water 
Services

1.2.2    Revenue 
generated by the 
Water Services 
Department from 
maintenance and 
water billing

Revenue 
generation 

Revenue generated by 
the business unit 

None, new target Collecting 
R500 000 from 
billing consumers  

Not Achieved: 
No collections 
done from water 
consumers 

Analysis of water 
consumers in the 
peri-urban areas could 
not be completed.

Ntinga will complete 
analysis of consum-
ers in the first half 
of the next financial 
year and commence 
with billing thereafter. 

* Billing reports 
* Bank statements

Head: Water 
Services CFO 

R16 264 950 
revenue generated 
from  refurbishment 
and maintenance of 
water schemes 

Not Achieved: 
R9,467,045.00 was 
collected

The non-payment of 
invoices for work done 
resulted in the shortage 
of funds for purchasing 
materials & spares and 
therefore, there were 
few water schemes that 
were refurbished.

Signing and 
implementation of 
the Service Delivery 
Agreement and 
enforcing on-time 
payment of invoices.

* Invoices
* Proof of payment

Head: Water 
Services

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

Achieved                  Overachieved                     Partially achieved                      Not achieved
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   GOAL 2 Enhanced and Enabled Full Value Chains (upstream and downstream) for Agricultural Produce, 

Markets, Abattoir and Aquaculture

Objectives Key Performance 
Indicator

Project Names Indicator Code Interventions/ Critical 
Success Factors

Baseline 2018/19 2019/20 Annual 
Performance 
Target

Annual Report 
Actual 
Performance

Performance Variance and 
Reasons

Corrective 
Measure

Means of 
Verification

Custodian

2.1 Improve productivity and 
profitability of Umzikantu 
Abattoir by 30 June 2020.

2.1.1 Number of 
livestock units 
slaughtered for 
communities, 
butcheries and 
other

P09 Abattoir Pri-
vate Slaughter

2_2.1_1_P09 - Refurbishment and 
continuous mainte-
nance of abattoir infra-
structure and facilities.                         
- Production and 
marketing of red meat 
(cattle, sheep, goats & 
pigs) carcasses and of-
fal, locally and beyond.                           
- Utilisation of abattoir 
for slaughtering incre-
mentally towards full 
capacity.

550 units 600 livestock units 
slaughtered for 
communities, 
butcheries, and 
others.

Not Achieved:
541.75 livestock 
units slaughtered 
for communities, 
butcheries and 
others

Underperfomed by 58.25 
livestock units slaughtered for 
communities, butcheries and 
others.This is due to:     
1.The entity had a problem 
with the Tax Clearance Certifi-
cate and it could not slaughter 
for Correctional Services.               
2. The funerals, weddings etc 
have been suspended be-
cause of COVID-19, communi-
ties were not slaughtering as 
they used to especially during 
Easter Holidays. Abattoir's 
biggest client is Correctional 
Services for pig slaughter  

This is difficult 
to control. This 
outcome is a re-
sult of the COV-
ID-19 outbreak .                                
The  tax clearance 
issue has since 
been resolved and 
obtained. Ntinga is 
now slaughtering 
for Correctional 
Services

Batch control 
documents.

Head: Trading 
Enterprises

2.1.2 Number of 
livestock units 
slaughtered for 
sale, towards ab-
attoir full capacity

P10 Abattoir Own 
Livestock Slaughter

2_2.1_2_P10 570 Units 1 183 livestock units 
slaughtered 
for sale, towards 
abattoir full capacity.

Not Achieved: 
956.67 livestock 
units slaughtered 
for meat sales 
towards abattoir full 
capacity

226.33 less livestock units 
slaughtered for sale towards 
abattoir full capacity. There 
was a suspension of livestock 
auctions due to Foot and 
Mouth Disease in December 
2019. The outbreak of corona 
virus had a negative impact 
on Ntinga’s sales. One of the 
abattoir’s  employees tested 
positive and that forced the 
abattoir to close for two 
weeks. There is also a short-
age of sheep which makes it 
less popular among custom-
ers because even during 
the period when there was 
sufficient supply of mutton, it 
was not doing well. 

The entity needs 
to secure sufficient 
supply for all the ab-
attoir lines and also 
intensify marketing

Batch control 
documents.

Head: Trading 
Enterprises

2.1.3 Revenue 
generated from 
meat sales and 
slaughter fees

P11 Abattoir Meat 
Sales

2_2.1_3_P11 R8 053 074 R11 878 450  
revenue generated 
from meat sales and 
slaughter fees.

Not Achieved: 
R10,873,350.00 
revenue generated 
from meat sales and 
slaughter fees

Underperformed by R 
1,005,100.  The suspension 
of livestock auctions due to 
Foot and Mouth Disease last 
year. The outbreak of corona 
virus had a negative impact on 
abattoir sales. One of the ab-
attoir’s employees tested pos-
itive which forced the abbatoir 
to close for two weeks. There 
is also a shortage of sheep 
which makes it less popular 
among customers because 
even during the period when 
there was sufficient mutton 
supply, sales were not good 
for mutton. 

The entity needs 
to secure sufficient 
supply for all the ab-
attoir lines and also 
intensify marketing

* Financial 
reports

* Bank   
statements

* Receipts 

Head: Trading 
Enterprises
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   GOAL 2 Enhanced and Enabled Full Value Chains (upstream and downstream) for Agricultural Produce, 

Markets, Abattoir and Aquaculture

Objectives Key Performance 
Indicator

Project Names Indicator Code Interventions/ Critical 
Success Factors

Baseline 
2018/19

2019/20 Annual 
Performance 
Target

Annual Report 
Actual 
Performance

Performance Variance 
and Reasons

Corrective 
Measure

Means of 
Verification

Custodian

2.2   Improve functionality 
and viability of Kei Fresh 
Produce Market (KFPM) by 
initially focusing and target-
ing linkages of fruit and 
vegetable industry supply 
chains by 30 June 2020.

2.2.1 Tonnage of 
agricultural produce 
sold by Market 
Agents

P14 Fresh Produce 
Market tonnage

2_2.2_1_P14 - Refurbishment and 
continuous maintenance of 
market infrastructure and 
facilities. 
 
- Recruitment of com-
petent Market Agents 
towards full capacity of the 
market. 
 
- Encourage aggressive 
marketing and sale of fresh 
produce (fruit and vegeta-
bles) locally and beyond by 
Market Agents.

5 569 tons. 12 918.15 tons of 
agricultural produce 
sold by Market 
Agents.

Not Achieved:                 
5 109.43  tons 
of agricultural 
produce sold by 
Market Agent 
from Q1 to Q4 of 
2018-19

Underperformed by 
7 805.57 tons of agricul-
tural fresh produce that 
was supposed to be sold 
by Market Agents by 30 
June 2020. Currently, 
there are 2 market agents 
on the trading floor.

 Continued engagements with 
competent Market Agents 
such as RSA Group and Ntinga 
initiative to establish a BEE  
Market Agent at the mar-
ket has kicked off. Planned 
Open Market Days to start in 
January 2020 in an attempt to 
increase volumes and sales. 
The revenue will also respond 
positively due to the efforts 
and initiatives mentioned 
above. 

Freshmark 
System monthly 
reports.

Head: Trading 
Enterprises

2.2.2 Revenue 
generated from 5% 
commission of ag-
ricultural  produce 
sold

P16 Fresh Produce 
Market Commis-
sion

2_2.2_3_P16 R930 936.00 R2 159 416 revenue 
generated from 
5% commission of 
agricultural produce 
sold.

Not Achieved:              
R909,075  revenue 
generated from 
agricultural 
produce sold by 
Market Agent 
from Q1 to Q4 of 
2017-18

Underperformed by 
R1,250,341 (5% commis-
sion that was supposed 
to be generated from 
agricultural produce 
sold). Currently, there are 
2 Market Agents

Continued engagements with 
competent market agents 
such as RSA Group and Ntinga 
initiative to establish a BEE  
Market Agent at the market 
has kicked off. Started Market 
Days in January 2020 in an 
attempt to increase volumes 
and sales. The revenue has 
since increased. 

Freshmark 
System monthly 
reports.

Head: Trading 
Enterprises

2.2.3 Optimise 
utilisation of KFPM 
floor space

P17 Fresh Produce 
Market Profitability

2_2.2_4_P17 1 Market Agent 
trading at KFPM

3  additional Market 
Agents secured

Not Achieved: 
Secured 1 out of 3 
market agents 

2 market agents less. 
Talked to a number of 
Market Agents who 
however, were not 
willing to come due to 
the performance of the 
market. Meeting with 
RSA Market Agent has 
been postponed due to 
the pandemic

Planned office visits to RSA 
Group in Joburg are being ar-
ranged with their CEO. Ntinga 
initiative of establishing a BEE  
Market Agent at the market 
in 2020 is also in progress. 
The market official identified 
to drive the process wrote 
and passed APAC exams in 
May 2020. A formal advert 
requesting Market Agents 
to apply to Ntinga was also 
issued to certain stakeholders 
for publicity. 

Freshmark 
System monthly 
reports.

Head: Trading 
Enterprises

2.3 Utilise Adam Kok Farms 
as  a primary produc-
tion hub for  agricultural 
produce

2.3.1 Number of 
livestock produced 
and supplied to 
Umzikantu Abattoir. 

P20 Adam Kok 
Livestock Sales

2_2.3_2_P20 - Purchase, condition (for 
a maximum of 100 days) 
and distribute cattle for 
Umzikantu Abattoir 
(starting with 50% of 
requirements in 2017/18) 
and beyond.
- Heifer Exchange 
Programme
-Livestock Trade Fair
- Cattle Branding 

464 Cattle 
produced and 
supplied to 
Umzikantu 
Abattoir

801 cattle produced, 
sourced and 
supplied to 
Umzikantu Abattoir                                                                                                                                        

Not Achieved:
745 cattle 
produced, sourced 
and supplied to 
Umzikantu

56 less cattle supplied. 
The supply was based 
on Umzikantu demand.  
Closing of the abattoir for 
two weeks due to a 
COVID-19 case 
contributed to less 
supply.

It is a national disaster.
Adam Kok will focus more 
on production of livestock 
forUmzikantu in the next fi-
nancial year. From the second 
quarter of 2020/21 the weath-
er conditions are promising 
to be warm and that should 
result in low levels of corona 
virus restrictions and high 
demand. 

Livestock sales 
invoices.

Head: Trading 
Enterprises

None, new 
target

173 pigs units  
sourced and supplied 
to Umzikantu 
Abattoir

Not Achieved: 
159,5 pig units 
(638 pigs) sourced  
and supplied

13.5 less pig units. This 
is due to the fact that 
the abattoir closed for 2 
weeks due to a COVID-19 
case.

None applicable as this is a 
national disaster.
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  GOAL 3 Diversified Partnerships that Promote Inclusive Socio-economic Development and Growth. 

3.1 Optimize linkages of 
meat industry value chain 
that enhance functionality 
of Umzikantu Abattoir by 
30 June 2020.

3.1.1 Number of 
signed  partnership 
agreements that 
enhance function-
ality of Umzikantu 
Abattoir

P25 Abattoir Stra-
tegic Partnerships

2_3.1_1_P25 Establish and maintain 
partnerships with livestock 
(sheep and pigs) producers, 
marketers and/or specu-
lators. 
 
- Facilitate off-take 
agreements with whole-
salers and public entities 
like Correctional Services, 
hospitals, etc. 
 
- Facilitate off-take agree-
ments for hides and skins. 
 
- Establish partnerships 
with meat hawkers for sale 
of offal, feet and heads.

No partnership 
agreement

1 Partnership 
agreement that 
enhances the 
functionality  of 
Umzikantu Abattoir 
signed 

Achieved: one 
MOU signed 
between Ntinga 
and JoGENDA on 
supply of livestock 
for slaughter.  

None None * Minutes and 
attendance 
register  (Q1+ 
Q2). 

* Signed part-
nership agree-
ment.(Q3). 

* Implementa-
tion plan  (Q3)

Head: Trading 
Enterprises

3.1.2 Number of 
signed and imple-
mented off-take 
agreements for 
sale of meat from 
Umzikantu Abattoir.

No off-take 
agreements

5 off-take agree-
ments for sale of 
meat from Umzikan-
tu Abattoir signed 
and implemented.

Not Achieved: 
1 off-take 
agreement signed.

Underperfomed by 4 
off-take agreements. 
Part of the reasons 
was COVID-19 as most 
butcheries were not sure 
of their business after the 
pandemic

In 2020/21 financial year Ntin-
ga will have 1 off-take plus 4 
not achieved in this financial 
year to have 5 in total for 
2020/21

* Attendance 
register & 
minutes 

 (Q1 = Q2). 

* Signed off-take 
agreement 
(Q3+Q4)

Head: Trading 
Enterprises

  
   GOAL 2 Enhanced and Enabled Full Value Chains (upstream and downstream) for Agricultural Produce, 

Markets, Abattoir and Aquaculture

Objectives Key Performance 
Indicator

Project Names Indicator Code Interventions/ Critical 
Success Factors

Baseline 
2018/19

2019/20 Annual 
Performance 
Target

Annual Report 
Actual 
Performance

Performance Variance 
and Reasons

Corrective 
Measure

Means of 
Verification

Custodian

2.3 Utilise Adam Kok Farms 
as  a primary produc-
tion hub for  agricultural 
produce

None, new 
target

43.4 sheep units  
sourced and 
supplied to 
Umzikantu Abattoir.

Not Achieved: 
14,7 sheep units 
(85 sheep)

28,5 sheep units less. 
According to the abattoir 
mutton meat is not pop-
ular to current customers 
due to its higher price.

The abattoir needs to do 
intensive marketing of mutton 
and lamb.

2.3.2 Revenue 
generated from 
livestock (cattle) 
produced and sold.

2_2.3_3_P21 R5,395,081 
generated from 
cattle produced 
and sold

Not Achieved: 
R3 986 045.23 
from cattle 
produced, 
transferred and 
sold.  

R1 409 035.77 less cattle.  
During the review period, 
the red meat industry 
experienced challenges 
including Foot and Mouth 
Disease which led to 
prices taking a severe 
knock.  As such, Ntinga 
had to withhold sending 
its cattle to the market

Natural risks and national 
disasters are beyond Ntinga's 
control

Sales invoices/ 
receipts

Generate R924 807 
from crop sales

Not Achieved: 
R699 892.45 
generated from 
crop sales.

R224 914.55 less gener-
ated.  By end June 2020, 
there was still stock on 
the floor.  During May and 
June 2020 potato sales 
were very slow due to 
COVID-19.

Natural risks and national 
disasters are beyond Ntinga’s 
control

Sales invoices/ 
receipts

2.3.3  Number of 
hectares utilised for 
crop production and 
animal feed

18 hectares 
utilised for crop 
production.

59,5 hectares 
utilised for crop 
production and 
animal feed (i.e. 35 
ha maize and 11 ha 
soghum)                  

Not Achieved: 
56.3 ha planted

3.2 ha less.  This hec-
torage was not planted 
because of weather 
conditions.

None applicable. *Crop 
 production 

plan
* Video and 

aerial   
photograph

* GPS   
coordinates

* Site visits
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  GOAL 3 Diversified Partnerships that Promote Inclusive Socio-economic Development and Growth. 

Objectives Key Performance 
Indicator

Project Names Indicator 
Code

Interventions/ Critical Suc-
cess Factors

Baseline 
2018/19

2019/20 Annual 
Performance 
Target

Annual Report 
Actual 
Performance

Performance 
Variance and 
Reasons

Corrective 
Measure

Means of 
Verification

Custodian

3.2   Optimise linkages of 
fruit and vegetable industry 
value chain in support of 
Kei Fresh Produce Market 
by 30 June 2020.

3.2.1 Number of signed 
and implemented part-
neships agreements that 
enhance functionality  
of Kei Fresh Produce 
Market.

P26 Fresh 
Produce 
Market 
Strategic 
Partnerships

2_3.2_2_P26 - Develop and maintain 
partnerships with local 
municipalities to assist local 
farmers to produce and 
supply the KFPM.

- Facilitate involvement of 
local PDI’s in the market 
agency business.

No 
partnership 
agreements

1 Partnership 
agreement signed 
with local non-com-
mercial farmer to 
supply KFPM with 
agricultural produce.

Not Achieved:             
2 meetings held with 
potential partner to facilitate 
signing of 1 partnership 
agreement with Ukhanyo 
Development Farming.

Discussions are 
still taking place in 
terms of the indi-
vidual contributions 
and responsibilities

The discussion meeting be-
tween Ntinga and Ukhanyo 
Farmer Development (UFD) 
went well. However, there 
are some grey areas in 
terms how the partnership 
is going to work, partner-
ship contributions and who 
is going to be the custodian 
of the funds. Ukhanyo 
Farmer Development was 
advised to go back and 
review the document and 
add some flesh as per 
Ntinga advice. A sugges-
tion was also raised by 
Ntinga to UFD to develop 
an MOU for the proposed 
partnership.

*1 partnership 
agreement 
signed.

Head: 
Trading 
Enterprises

3.2.2 Number of signed 
and implemented off-take 
agreements with local 
non-commercial farmers 
to supply KFPM with agri-
cultural produce.

No off-take 
agreements.

2 off-take agree-
ments signed and 
implemented with 
local non-com-
mercial farmers to 
supply KFPM with 
agricultural produce.

Achieved: 2 off-take 
agreements signed and 
implemented with local 
non-commercial farmers to 
supply KFPM with agricultural 
produce.

None None * Attendance 
register, min-
utes (Q1+ Q2)

* Two signed 
off-take agree-
ments.(Q3)

Head: 
Trading 
Enterprises

3.3   Optimise linkages of a 
rapid livestock production 
industry value chain that 
enhances the functionality 
of Adam Kok Farms by 30 
June 2020

3.3.1 Number of signed 
and implemented 
partnership agreements 
that enhance functionality 
of Adam Kok Farms.

P29 Adam Kok 
Farms Strategic 
Partnerships

2_3.3_3_P29 Develop and maintain 
partnerships that enhance 
functionality of Adam Kok 
Farms.
Roll out the heifer exchange 
programme with local 
municipalities

No off-take 
agreements

1 partnership 
agreement signed

Not Achieved:        
2 meetings held with 
potential partner to facilitate 
signing of 1 partnership 
agreement with Ukhanyo 
Development Farming.

Discussions are 
still taking place in 
terms of the indi-
vidual contributions 
and responsibilities

Will develop MOU for the 
proposed partnership 
in the first quarter of 
2020/2021

* Signed minutes 
and attend-
ance register. 
(Q1+Q2). 

* Signed partner-
ship agree-
ment.(Q3) 

*Implementation  
progress report 
(Q4)

Divisional 
Head: 
Trading 
Enterprises

3.4  Enhance the quality 
and quantum of foreign 
and domestic trade and 
investment through 
sustainable partnerships by 
30 June 2022.

3.4.1 Number of new 
domestic investors 
attracted into O.R. Tambo 
region 

Investment 
Promotion and 
Facilitation 

1 new domestic investor 
attracted into O.R. Tambo 
region

None 1 new investor 
facilitated into O.R. 
Tambo region.

Over-achieved: (1) A partnership 
under RAFI with the Chris Hani 
Co-operative Development Centre 
attracted R3.5 million for skills 
development in the O.R Tambo 
District Municipality, (2) MDA 
attracted an investment of R500 
000.00 for COVID-19 poverty relief  
by NUM Investment Company and 
Ubank in the O.R. Tambo District 
Municipality. Lunch Box invested 
900 food packs to 900 households 
in COVID-19 poverty relief in the 
O.R. Tambo district.

2 investors more 
than was planned 
were attracted to 
the district through 
Ntinga partnerships.

N/A Signed 
agreement

Manager: 
PMO

None Trade and 
Investment Plan 
developed

Not Achieved: Trade and 
Investment Plan not yet 
developed.

A concept document 
for the planning ses-
sion was developed 
for approval by 
manager in the office 
of the CEO. The ses-
sion was anticipated 
to take place but could 
not be convened 
due to COVID-19 
lockdown.

Session will be planned 
for next quarter .

Attendance 
register  
Trade and 
Investment Plan.

Manager: 
PMO
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   GOAL 4 Enhanced and Enabled Full Value Chains (upstream and downstream) for Agricultural Produce, 

Markets, Abattoir and Aquaculture

Objectives Key Performance 
Indicator

Project Names Indicator Code Interventions/ Critical 
Success Factors

Baseline 
2018/19

2019/20 Annual 
Performance 
Target

Annual Report 
Actual 
Performance

Performance Variance 
and Reasons

Corrective 
Measure

Means of 
Verification

Custodian

4.1 Ensure Business 
Processes, Tools and 
Systems that support 
implementation of the 
Strategy and continued 
viability of the organisation 
by 30 June 2021

4.1.1 Sound 
Financial  Manage-
ment and Accurate 
Reporting

P30 Financial 
Management, 
Systems and 
Reforms

3_4.1_1_P30 - Financial management and 
reporting.                       - 
Supply Chain Management 
reforms and oversight.                                   
- Asset management.

Final 
annual budget 
approved by 
30 May.

Final annual budget 
approved by 30 May.

Achieved: Final 
annual budget 
approved.

None Not applicable *Board resolution and
*Proof of submission to 
parent municipality

Chief 
Financial 
Officer

Monthly finance 
reports 
prepared within 
7 working days 
after the end of 
the month.

 MFMA S87(11) 
monthly finance 
reports prepared 
within 7 working 
days after the end of 
the month.

Achieved: MFMA 
S87(11) monthly 
finance reports 
prepared within 7 
working days after 
the end of the 
month.

None Not applicable * Proof of submission to 
parent municipality

Chief 
Financial 
Officer

Quarterly 
finance reports 
prepared within 
30 days after 
the end of the 
quarter.

Quarterly finance 
reports  prepared 
and submitted to 
the Board within 30 
days after the end of 
the quarter.

Achieved: 
Quarterly finance 
reports  prepared 
and submitted to 
the Board within 
30 days after the 
end of the quarter.

None Not applicable * Quarterly finance 
Reports.

* Minutes of Board 
meetings.

Chief 
Financial 
Officer

Board of Directors adopted 
mid-year budget & perfor-
mance assessment report 
with recommendations 

Mid-year 
budget & 
performance 
assessment 
report with 
recommenda-
tions submitted 
to Board of 
Directors by 20 
January.

Mid-year budget 
& performance 
assessment report  
submitted to Board 
of Directors and par-
ent municipality by 
20 January 2020. 

Achieved: 
Mid-year budget 
& performance 
assessment report  
submitted to 
Board of Direc-
tors and parent 
municipality by 20 
January 2020. 

None Not applicable *Mid-year assessment 
report.

* Proof of submission to 
the Board and to the 
parent municipality.

Chief 
Financial 
Officer

- Review of finance related 
policies and standard 
operating procedures 
(SOP).            
- Clean administration.             
- Audit of Annual Financial 
Statements.      
- Responding to A-G queries.                                          
- Turnaround strategy to 
resolve audit queries.  

Audit Action 
Plan to resolve 
audit queries 
developed

Audit Action Plan to 
resolve audit que-
ries developed

Achieved: 
Audit Action Plan 
to resolve audit 
queries developed

None Not applicable *Audit Action Plan
* Audit Action Plan Imple-
mentation Report

Chief 
Financial 
Officer

Unqualified 
audit report

Obtain unqualified 
audit report from 
Auditor General

Achieved: 
Unqualified audit 
report obtained 
from Auditor 
General for the 
2018/2019 
financial year.

None Not applicable Audit Report Chief 
Financial 
Officer

4.1.2 Rand value of 
investment income 
collected.

100% collection of 
budgeted revenue.

R1 233 975 
investment in-
come collected.

R650 000 invest-
ment income 
collected.

Not achieved: 
R385,520 
investment 
income collected.

There is a negative 
variance of R264,480. Not 
all anticipated revenue 
which would have been 
invested to generate 
interest was received.

Improve revenue 
generation.

Investment register Chief 
Financial 
Officer

4.1.3 Annual 
Financial Statements 
\submitted to 
Auditor 
General by 
31 August

- Preparation of credible 
ledger accounts up to 
Statement of Financial 
Position.                          
- Submission of Annual 
Financial Statements to the 
Audit and Risk Committee 
& Auditor General

Annual Finan-
cial Statements 
prepared by 31 
August each 
year.

Annual Financial 
Statements pre-
pared by 31 August 
2019.

Achieved: 
Annual Financial 
Statements 
prepared by 
31 August 2019.

None Not applicable * Signed AFS  
* Proof of submission.

Chief 
Financial 
Officer

4.1.4 % of suppliers 
paid within 30 days 
from date
of invoice

Reconciliation of
creditors with supplier
statements &
processing of journals

Suppliers paid 
within 30
days from date 
of invoice.

100% of suppliers 
paid within 30 days 
from date of invoice

Achieved: 100% of 
suppliers paid
within 30 days from 
date of invoice

None Not applicable Supplier payment
vouchers.

Chief 
Financial 
Officer
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   GOAL 4 Enhanced and Enabled Full Value Chains (upstream and downstream) for Agricultural Produce, 

Markets, Abattoir and Aquaculture

Objectives Key Performance 
Indicator

Project Names Indicator 
Code

Interventions/ Critical Suc-
cess Factors

Baseline 
2018/19

2019/20 Annual 
Performance 
Target

Annual Report 
Actual 
Performance

Performance Variance 
and Reasons

Corrective 
Measure

Means of 
Verification

Custodian

4.1.4 %Procurement
Done with local 
suppliers

Compile Annual
Procurement Plan and
SCM Report

50% Value of the
procurement 
done with
local suppliers

50% value of the
procurement done 
with
local suppliers

Achieved: 
50% value of the
procurement done 
with local
suppliers

None Not applicable SCM Paragraph 6
reports.

Chief 
Financial 
Officer

4.1.5  Annual 
Review of the 
Strategic Plan

P32 Corporate 
Governance

4_4.1_2_P33 Review strategic goals and 
objectives   
Risk management review 
register/ top ten strategic risks

Annual review of 
strategic plan by 
31 May.

Annual review of 
strategic plan by 30 
April.

Not Achieved: 
Annual review of 
strategic plan was 
not held by 30 
April due to COVID 
19 lockdown and 
regulations.

Annual review of strategy 
not held

The strategy review 
session will be held 
in the second quarter 
of 2020/21

Signed reviewed strategy Chief 
Executive 
Officer

4.1.6 Number of 
compliance reports  
submitted to the 
Board, ORTDM and 
Auditor General

P33 Legal 
Compliance

4_4.1_2_P33 - Number of performance re-
ports submited to the relevant 
stakeholders                                          

4 Quarterly per-
formance reports; 
1 mid-term per-
formance report; 
1 annual perfor-
mance report, and 
1 annual report 
submitted to the 
Board and parent 
municipality

4 Quarterly perfor-
mance reports; 1 
mid-term perfor-
mance report; 1 
annual performance 
report, and 1 annual 
report submitted to 
the Board ,parent 
municipality  and 
AGSA

Achieved: 
4 Quarterly perfor-
mance reports, 1 
mid-term perfor-
mance report; 1 an-
nual performance 
report and 1 annual 
report was submit-
ted to the Board, 
parent municipality 
and to AGSA

None Not Applicable * Proof of submission to 
the Board, parent mu-
nicipality and to AGSA.

* Performance reports
* Board minutes

Chief 
Executive 
Officer

4.1.7 Implementa-
tion of Performance 
Management 
Systems, Monitoring 
and Evaluation

P32 Corporate 
Governance

4_4.1_2_P33 Number monthly senior 
management 

14 Monthly senior 
management 
meetings

12 monthly senior 
management 
meetings

Not Achieved: 
10  management 
meetings were held 
in the period under 
review.

2 meetings were not 
held (one meeting was 
not held due to COVID 
19 lockdown and having 
difficulties to connect 
online . One meeting was 
not held due to lack of 
quorum.

Ntinga anticipates 
that once the COVID 
19 regulations have 
been relaxed more 
meeting will be held 
in the first and sec-
ond quarter of the 
2020/201 financial 
year

* Attendance registers, 
* Signed minutes.

Chief 
Executive 
Officer

4.1.8 Number of 
Board and Board 
committee meetings 
attended

P32 Corporate 
Governance

4_4.1_2_P33 - Number of Board meetings                                  
- Number of ARC meetings  
- Number of HRRC meetings                               
- Number of SDIC meetings 
- Ntinga Annual General Meeting                                                                                        

5 Board meetings  
1 Shareholder  
   meeting 
6 ARC meetings  
1 AGM 
4 HRRC meetings 
4 SDIC meetings 
2 EXCO meetings

5 Board meetings Not achieved: 
4 Board meetings 
were held in the 
period under 
review.

Q2 Board meeting was 
not held due to lack of 
quorum.

The Q2 meeting was 
held on 17 January 
2020.

* Attendance registers 
* Signed minutes"

Company 
Secretary

6 ARC meetings 
1 AGM 
3 HRRC meetings 
4 SDIC meetings  
2 SEC meetings 
1 EXCO meeting 

Achieved:                                                                                         
6 ARC, 2 SEC, 4 
SDIC and 3 HRRC 
committee meet-
ings were held. 
1 AGM and 1 
EXCO was held.

None Not applicable * Attendance registers 
* Signed  minutes 

Company 
Secretary

4.2 Create and 
Maintain administra-
tive capacity through 
recruitment, PMS and 
good governance  for 
effective and 
functioning of SOC

4.2.1 Number of 
policies and SOPs 
reviewed

Review of policies 
and SOP

Review of policies and SOP 23 policies 
reviewed.

30 policies 
reviewed.

Not Achieved: 
14 policies 
reviewed.

16 Policies could not be 
adopted by the Board due 
to COVID 19. The Union 
stopped the scheduled 
policy review workshop 
in fear of COVID 19.

The policies will 
be reviewed in the 
first quarter of 2021 
financial year

Reviewed policies.              
Board Resolution .      
Poilicy Handbook

Head: 
Corporate 
Services

4.2.5 Number of 
budgeted vacant 
posts filled

Filling of critical 
funded posts

Recruitment of critical posts 128  posts filled 8 budgeted vacant 
posts filled

Not Achieved: 
7 budgeted vacant 
posts have been 
filled

2 slaughterman positions 
could not be filled due to 
cash flow problems. 
Communications & 
PR Officer resigned in 
September 2019 and was 
filled in January 2020

The positions will 
be filled in 2020/21 
financial year

Appointment letters Head: 
Corporate 
Services



6362

PART G 
HUMAN 
RESOURCES 

The purpose of human resources is to provide high quality integrated 

human capital solutions which enhance the customer service expe-

rience. It aims at ensuring that the organisation has the right calibre 

of people with the right competencies, at the right places and at the 

right time so that it deliver on its mandate.

TALENT MANAGEMENT 

Ntinga adopted an organisational structure which has a total of 157 

positions of which 130 were budgeted for in the period under review. 

Of these positions, 126 were filled by the end of the 2019/20 finan-

cial year. This represents a staff vacancy rate of 4% for the budgeted 

posts. The overall vacancy rate (for all posts in the organisational 

structure) was 20%.  All posts in the organisational structure were 

evaluated using the Paterson Job Grading System as per the Entity’s 

Job Evaluation Policy. 

Ntinga has an approved Policy on Succession Planning and Career 

Pathing which is being implemented to ensure that there is a pool of 

employees that will be available when vacancies arise.

Senior Management 2019/2020FY

Description 2019/2020 
No. of employees

R (No. of Approved 
Posts Actual)

No. of filled posts No. of vacancies Vacancy 
rate (%)

Chief Executive Officer 1 1 1 0 0%

Chief Financial Officer 1 1 1 0 0%

Company Secretary 1 1 1 0 0%

Head Corporate Services 1 1 1 0 0%

Head Trading Enterprises 1 1 1 0 0%

Water Systems Engineer Services 1 1 1 0 0%

Employee totals, turnover and vacancies
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Employees 2019/2020FY

Description 2019/2020 
No. of 
employees

R (No. of 
Approved Posts 
Actual)

No. of filled 
posts

No. of 
vacancies

Vacancy 
rate (%)

 Water Services 20 37 20 17 46%

Trading  Enterprise 
• Abattoir

22 28 22 6 21%

Trading  Enterprise 
• Adam Kok Farms

31 33 31 2 6%

Trading Enterprise 
• Kei Fresh

15 15 15 0 0%

CEO’s Office 8 12 8 4 33%

Finance including 
Supply Chain 
Management

14 15 14 1 6%

Human Resource 5 5 5 0 0%

Information Technology 3 3 3 0 0%

General Administration 8 9 8 1 0%

TOTAL 126 157 126 31 20%

126 employees

46%

33%

21%

at the end of the 2019/20 
financial year

Water Services

CEO’s Office

Vacancy rate (%)

Abattoir
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Staff Turnover Rate 2019/2020FY

Details Total number
of employees

Total
appointments

Termination during 
the financial year

Turn-over 
Rate

2019/2020 126 6 4 3.17%

2018/2019 124 13 11 8.87%

The terminations were a result of resignation, retirement and death. 
The turnover rate is low compared to the previous financial year and the 
employee who resigned left for career growth and the position was filled 
within the same financial year.

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT 

Due to the declining operational budget, expen-
diture on training has gradually reduced. Priority 
was given to those positions that must meet 
regulated competency requirements. This is done 
in phases. The entity prioritised employees who 
needed to close the 70/30 gap identified during 
placement. A Workplace Skills Plan (WSP) was de-
veloped based on the skills audit that was under-
taken. However, the agency could not implement 
all training interventions in the Workplace Skills 
Plan due to budgetary constraints. 

The Certificate in Municipal Financial Management is prioritised to 

finance officials as well as senior management as part of their stat-

utory financial competency development. All senior managers have 

obtained the certificate and it was made a requirement in the ad-

vert that the CEO, Company Secretary and Head: Trading Enterprises 

should be in possession of this certificate or be able to obtain it with-

in 18 months of employment. 

Ntinga contracted twenty – four (24) interns in the year under review 

from various institutions. Of the 24 interns, three were funded in-

house; and the remainder was funded by different Sector Education 

and Training Authorities (SETAs) and the National Skills Fund (NSF). 

Number of employees required and actual as at 30 June 2020

Learner ships Skills programmes and  other short 
courses

Other forms of 
training

Total

Management
level

Gender 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20

CEO and Senior 
Managers

Female 0 0 1 3 0 0 1 3

Male 0 0 0 4 0 1 0 5

Middle
Management

Female 0 0 1 2 0 0 1 2

Male 0 0 3 6 1 1 4 7

Professionals Female 0 0 5 12 4 1 9 13

Male 0 0 3 7 0 1 3 8

Other Female 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 5

Male 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 5

TOTAL 0 0 13 44 5 4 18 48

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (PMS)

Performance agreements were signed by senior managers and middle managers. Performance Man-
agement System awareness, understanding and cascading to all levels of employees was conducted 
and subsequently the signing of performance agreements was completed in some departments. The 
process was stalled by disagreements with the union. The issue was resolved in the third quarter of 
the review period. It was then agreed that the cascading of the PMS should be implemented in the 
following financial year.   

Training was organised to capacitate management and the union representatives on performance management which helped them under-

stand how to implement the PMS within the legislative requirements. 

22

22
Females

Males

Skills programmes 
and  other short courses 
end of 30 June 2020

1

23

3

25

Females

Females

Males

Males

Other forms of 
training as of end of 
30 June 2020

Total employees with actual 
skills development
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Financial Competency Development: Progress Report

Description Total number of
officials employed 
by the Municipal 
Entity

Competency
Assessments 
completed

Comment

Financial Officials

Chief Executive Officer 1 0 Registered for Municipal 
Finance Management 
Programme but not yet 
completed

Chief Financial Officer 1 1

Senior Managers 4 2 One Senior Manager 
has enrolled for the 
course and another one 
will enrol in 2020/2021 
financial year

Any other financial officials 13 10 One official will enrol in 
2020/21 financial year 
and the remaining two in 
the outer years because 
of budgetary constraints

Supply Chain 
Management Officials

Head of Supply Chain
Management Unit

1 1

Head of Supply Chain
Management Unit

Total 22 17

EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS 

Ntinga has an adopted policy on Employee Health and Wellness which resulted in the establish-

ment of an Employee Health and Wellness Committee. The purpose of the committee is to look 

at health and wellness issues within the organisation and to make recommendations to manage-

ment for action. 

There were no referrals for employees who needed assistance under the Employee Assistance 

Programme which is very alarming. Awareness is made on a continuous basis for people to utilise 

the programme. 

There was a Wellness Day event that was conducted in December 2019 for all sites except for 

Umzikantu which was held in January due to operational requirements. The focus was on boost-

ing employee morale and inclusivity.  It yielded positive results as employees felt their worth in 

the organisation thus improving their morale.

6766
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COVID-19 HEROES

Umzikantu Abattoir employees

Kei Fresh Produce Market employees

Adam Kok Farms employees

Water Services employees

6968

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND 
SAFETY (OHS)

COVID -19 PANDEMIC

Number and Costs of injuries on duty

Type of injury Injury leave
taken (Days)

Employees using 
injury leave (number)

Proportion of
employees using

AverageInjury leave 
per employee (Days)

Total estimated 
Cost (Rand value)

Required Basic mental 
attention only

0 0 0 0 0

Temporary total 
disablement

0 0 0 0 0

Permanent disablement 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Ntinga has a policy on OHS which is implemented. An OHS Commit-

tee was established. However, it does not sit regularly and this is one 

component that needs close monitoring. Safety, Health and Environ-

ment (SHE) reps were appointed in all business units and they will be 

trained in the next financial year. 

The company does not have an OHS Officer in the organisational 

structure but the function has been assigned to the HR Officer who 

has been trained on SAMTRAC. 

There were no occupational injuries reported in the period under 

review. The company sadly lost an employee who was categorised 

as an essential service worker to COVID-19. The entity has lodged a 

claim with the Compensation Fund. Due to the nature of his work 

(Driver), the death could be attributed to his work as he could have 

contracted the virus whilst performing his duties.

In response to the National State of Disaster declared by the President, Ntinga established a Disaster 
Management Committee that was responsible for the management and coordination of the COVID-19 
pandemic within the entity including the issuing of statements to the employees with the involvement 
of the CEO. The Committee, in conjunction with the entity’s OHS Committee, developed a Disaster 
Management Plan and subsequently a COVID-19 Workplace Plan which outlined the entity’s plan on 
the management of the pandemic.

This plan contained a number of precautionary measures, includ-

ing categorising those discharging essential services and other 

non-essential services in order to fight the spread of the disease. 

Employees under essential services included those in Trading Enter-

prises (Kei Fresh Produce Market, Umzikantu Abattoir and Adam Kok 

Farms), Water Services and drivers. Non-essential service workers 

were allowed to work from home in order to minimise the spread 

of the virus.

Ntinga’s commercial business was severely affected during this cri-

sis, thus all employees including clients and shareholder had to play 

a responsive role in order to protect themselves, their families and 

community at large. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) and ther-

mometers were procured and supplied to all our sites and employees.

As at 30 June 2020, there were four employees who contracted the 

virus and one of them ultimately succumbed to the virus. Support 

was given to infected and affected employees. Their close contacts 

were contacted and tested, counselled and provided with sanitisers 

and masks where necessary. Claim for the deceased was submitted 

to the Compensation Fund.

Injuries and sickness
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The Umzikantu Abattoir and Kei Fresh Produce Market were tempo-

rarily closed for deep cleansing and decontamination as well as the 

vehicles that were used by the deceased. This had a negative impact 

on the entity as it could not generate revenue during that period.

All employees were tested with the assistance of ORTDM. The dis-

trict municipality further assisted generously with the supply of Per-

sonal Protective Equipment, testing of employees and provision of 

counselling services. The entity wishes to extend its thanks to the 

Parent Municipality for these interventions during these trying times.

The sudden onset of the pandemic, coupled with the entity’s existing 

strained financial situation caused a funding challenge during this 

period. Ntinga had to ensure that working tools that will be con-

ducive for employees from working from home were in place. The 

entity’s ICT systems had to adapt quickly as data costs escalated 

as meetings had to be conducted virtually, including the urgent pro-

curement of software that would enable users to conduct meetings 

virtually. All these were not budgeted for but due to the agility of the 

entity, these were made available to staff.

As can be seen in the organisational performance, this was badly 

affected as some of the targets that were scheduled for the fourth 

quarter could not be achieved. Despite the challenges and uncertain-

ty posed by the virus, the entity commends those essential workers 

who rose to the occasion and continued to contribute positively to 

the entity’s mandate.

The Board would like to send a sincere word of gratitude to these 

Ntinga heroes who worked tirelessly during this period to ensure 

that the nation is fed and that the entity is kept afloat despite the 

anxiety that this pandemic brought to the nation. Ntinga salutes you 

and your dedication will forever be cherished.

Ntinga extends appreciation to Mr Mncedisi Xaji, 
affectionately known as ‘Mawawa”, who was 
stolen from us by this deadly virus. His dedica-
tion and humility didn’t go unnoticed and he will 
always be remembered as our hero. To his family, 
the Board would like to send its heartfelt condo-
lences to you and thank you for giving us time to 
spend with him.

Number and Costs of injuries on duty (excluding injuries on duty)

Salary band Total
Sick Leave 
(Days)

Proportion of sick 
leave with medical 
certification (%)

Employees
using sick leave 
(number)

Total
Employees in 
post (number)

Average sick 
leave per 
employee (Days)

Total
estimated Cost  
(Rand value)

Lower skilled 8 2 2 43 3 R2 038.69

Semi - Skilled 46 43 6 23 4 R15 456 .80

Skilled 186 180 20 43 11 R281 141.00

Middle management 28 20 4 9 9 R58 424.50

Chief Executive Officer and  
Senior Management

25 3 4 8 5 R113 301.25

Total 293 248 36 126 32 R470 362.24

Comment on injury and sick leave

The highest rates of sick leave taken are in the salary bands of semi- 

skilled and skilled personnel. There was an employee who took tem-

porary disability leave hence the high number of leave days under 

skilled personnel.

LABOUR RELATIONS

Ntinga always had one union, the South African Municipal Workers 

union (SAMWU). In July 2019, management signed a Recognition 

Agreement with another union Independent Municipal and Allied 

Trade Union (IMATU) which became the majority union in the entity 

as SAMWU was left with a few members. 

In the period under review, Ntinga established a Workplace Forum 

which is a permanent structure for consultation and to discuss mat-

ters of mutual interest to promote sound labour relations and this 

has been achieved.

There were two staff members who were suspended in the peri-

od under review. The cases could not be finalised because of the 

COVID-19 outbreak which led to a national lockdown.                       

Managing the workforce expenditure

•	Employee	expenditure

Employee expenditure relates to water services, trading enterprises, 

special projects as well as support functions. The parent municipal-

ity makes available grant funding to subsidise the agency’s payroll 

costs. Expenditure incurred is kept within budget.

Comment on workforce expenditure
There is an increase in employee related costs compared to trends in 

previous years. This is attributed to the following factors:

a) Vacant positions particularly at senior management level were filled.

b) Kei Fresh Produce Market staff was transferred to Ntinga 

c) Water services, a new department, was established.

d) The grant funding from the parent municipality has been reduced. 

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The entity continues to appreciate the commitment and efforts of its 

employees in advancing the socio-economic mandate of the entity. 

Every great achievement is achieved through collaboration and the 

HR function remains committed to seeing the fruition of the entity’s 

mandate a success through the inputs of its most significant capital, 

its people.
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-

Workforce Expenditure Trends

Sick Leave
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Rest in peace Mr Mncedisi Xaji, 
affectionately known as ‘Mawawa”
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PART H 
CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

7372

“2019/2020 - a year of significant development for 
the Board as we returned Ntingas focus on review-
ing governance structures and systems.

Ntinga’s strategic purpose remains to create long-
term value through good governance and deliver to 
all our customers and stakeholders.”

The Board of Directors remains committed to the ongoing mainte-

nance of its high standards of governance, ethics and integrity. By 

setting an ethical tone at the top and leading effectively, the inten-

tion is to ensure that good corporate governance permeates into all 

levels of the organisation in order to enhance its reputation and to 

build trust. The ultimate objective is value creation for the Ntinga 

business and its stakeholders. 

As a State-Owned Company and development agency, Ntinga recog-

nises its unique position and the opportunity it has to effect material 

change to the human condition of the O.R Tambo District Municipal-

ity communities in which it operates. The agency is encouraged by 

the leadership and support of the Shareholder and parent municipal-

ity, the O.R Tambo District Municipality.

2019/2020 was a year of significant development for the Board as we 

returned our focus on reviewing governance structures and systems. 

Our strategic purpose remains to create long-term value through 

good governance and deliver to all our customers and stakeholders.

Therefore, the following governance outcomes were achieved during 

the year under review:

• We filled the key governance executive roles of Chief Executive 

Officer and Company Secretary;

• The Board attended its first Board effectiveness and Governance 

training;

These key interventions formed part of the Board’s continuous 

improvement efforts to ensure basic governance principles and 

entrenched ethics in its leadership and oversight. 

To further strengthen and enable the Board’s governance and 

oversight role we have a number of direct governance practices to 

implement for achievement of best governance outcomes:

• Provide role clarity through the assignment of specific areas of 

accountability to Board committees, the Chief Executive and 

senior management.

• Enable more effective decision-making by specifying decisions 

reserved for the Board and delegating decision-making powers to 

Board committees (in documented terms of reference) and senior 

management (in documented delegations of authority).

• Specify the information, and frequency of its provision, that the 

board and its committees require from senior management to 

enable the Board and committees to prioritise their activities and 

provide effective leadership. 

These practices all collectively contribute to value creation. 

Ntinga is committed to good corporate citizenship and organisational 

integrity in the running of its affairs and applies strict adherence to 

the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act in its busi-

ness. This commitment provides the parent municipality/shareholder, 

customers and stakeholders with the assurance that Ntinga’s affairs 

are being managed in an ethical and disciplined manner. 
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GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORKGOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
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The Board has adopted a governance framework that is rooted in 

adhering to legislation, the principles of the MFMA, MSA, Compa-

nies Act and the King IV Report, best practice and other governance 

prescripts and guidelines. The Board is also mindful of the clear gov-

ernance protocols required to communicate and interact with our 

Shareholder and its various political and administrative structures.

The agency is wholly owned by O.R Tambo District Municipality and 

as such it is the Agency’s Parent municipality and sole Shareholder. 

It is the Executive Authority and provides oversight over the Agency. 

Two Shareholder representatives are delegated by the Parent Munic-

ipality to attend all Ntinga Board meetings for additional oversight,  

integration and cross-pollination of information between the parties.

The Parent Municipality’s Rural Economic Development Programmes 

(REDP) Unit provides specific oversight over the entity, working 

closely to monitor our Local Economic Development and Special 

Projects mandates. Monthly and quarterly reports are submitted to 

the municipality as per the requirements of the MFMA. The Agency’s 

reports and performance are further subjected to scrutiny by the 

municipality’s oversight structures such as the portfolio committees 

and the Municipal Public Accounts Committee (MPAC). 

At Board level, the governance framework provides for the Board of 

Ntinga, as an independent SOC, to serve as the Accounting Authority 

that governs the Agency. The Board oversees governance through 

setting the strategic direction of the entity and ensuring an integrat-

ed framework of oversight which includes the Board committees that 

have been formally appointed by the Board, with powers delegated 

or assigned to them by the Board. The framework is supported by the 

Board Charter, committee terms of reference and our governance 

policies, which provide guardrails to steer performance in a manner 

aimed at creating value. Our governance framework provides role 

clarity by clearly delineating roles and areas of accountability and 

recognises the independent roles and duties required to effectively 

govern the entity.

The Chief Executive Officer is the Accounting Officer of the Agency. 

The CEO is an ex-officio member of the Board. The Company Secre-

tary is considered a prescribed officer. Other Senior Managers are 

invitees to the board committees and provide operational and ad-

ministrative leadership to the Agency on a day-to-day basis. 

EFFECTIVE LEADERSHIP

King IV P1 & 7 & 10

Board of Directors 

The Parent Municipality appoints the Board of Directors in terms of 

section 93E of the Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000. The Board is 

comprised of nine independent non-executive directors who were 

appointed in July 2017. The Chief Executive Officer is appointed as an 

ex-officio director by virtue of his position. 

The Directors bring a wealth of expertise, skills and diverse experi-

ence which strengthens the ability of the Board to provide wide-rang-

ing strategic direction and oversight over the entity.

In line with best practice, the Board is led by the Board Chairper-

son, Mr Sitembele Eric Mase who is further supported by the Deputy 

Chairman, Professor Lindelwa Yvonne Majova-Songca to ensure ade-

quate and streamlined oversight over the affairs of the Board.

Ntinga’s governance framework is underpinned by its values and a range of legislation, governance principles and regulations

Board Charter Ntinga Code 
of Ethics

Risk Management 
Policy

Code of Conduct Board Committee 
Terms of Reference

Conflict of Interest 
Policy

Anti-corruption and 
Fraud Policy

Ntinga has the following governance policies and procedures in place

ARC SDIC HRRC SEC

Internal Audit

Company 
Secretary

Senior Management 
Team

Corporate
Services

Water
Services

Trading 
Enterprise

Project 
Management

O.R. Tambo District 
Municipality Shareholder

NTINGA BOARD

CEO

AGSA

Rural Economic Development 
Programmes

Municipal Public Accounts 
Committee

Finance

Executive 
Authority and 

Oversight

A
ccounting A

uthority
and G

overnance

Accounting
Officer
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Sitembele Mase (61)
Board Chairperson

Prof. Lindelwa Majova-Songca (50)
Deputy Board Chairperson 
Committees:
• Chairperson of Audit and Risk  

Committee   

Lindile Ndabeni (52)
Committees: 
• Strategy, Development &  

Investment Committee 
• Social and Ethics Committee

Unathi Mkize (46)
Committees: 
• Chairperson of Social and   

Ethics Committee 
• Audit and Risk Committee

Mpumzi Pupuma (66)
Committees: 
• Chairperson of Human  

Resources and Remuneration 
Committee

• Strategy, Development and 
Investment Committee

Dr Nandipha T Ndudane (50)
Committees: 
• Strategy, Development & In-

vestment Committee  
• Human Resources and  

Remuneration Committee

Nosipho Ngewu (63)
Committees:
• Human Resources and  

Remuneration Committee
• Social and Ethics Committee 

Nandipa Bam (52)
Committees: 
• Strategy, Development &  

Investment Committee  
• Human Resources and  

Remuneration Committee

Mzimkulu Msiwa (70)
Committees: 
• Chairperson of Strategy, Development 

& Investment Committee 
• Audit and Risk Committee
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Nolukhanyo Makuni (44) Independent Audit and Risk Committee member and 
does not serve on the Board
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Board Composition (Non-Executive Directors)

No Board member Qualifications Area of expertise Active Directorships/ 
Positions

1. Mr. Sitembele Eric Mase 
Board Chairperson

• Bachelor of Commerce 
• BCom Honours 
• Masters in Business Leadership (MBL) 
• Post grad Certificate in Investment and 
  Portfolio Analysis with further training from UK 

(London Guildhall University), USA, Colorado 
University)

• Business Leadership 
and Strategy

• Development and  
Corporate Finance

Sikuvile Consultancy 
Services

2. Prof.  Lindelwa Yvonne 
Majova-Songca
Deputy Board Chairperson
ARC Chairperson

• M.Com in Finance
• MBA 
• B. Compt (Hons) 
• Certificate in Theory of Accountancy 
• Senior Teachers Diploma 
• Chartered Accountant (South Africa)

• Financial management
• Public sector Auditing
• Risk management

None

3. Ms Unathi Nosiphe Mkize
SEC Chairperson
ARC member

• LLB
• B. Juris

• Regulatory compliance
• Litigation 
• Corporate Law

Board RIM 
Symphony Property 
Investments
MMA Inc
Leadership Investment 
Group
Keiskamma Trust
Nyangiwe Trust

4. Mr. Mzimkulu Msiwa
SDIC Chairperson 
ARC member

• Master of Business Leadership (MBL)
• Bachelor of Science Degree in Civil Engineering
• PR Eng (ECSA)

• Water systems   
engineering

• Business Processes and 
systems optimisation

KZN Planning 
Commission 
– Chairman Zutari

5. Lindile Linduxolo Ndabeni
SDIC member
SEC member

• Doctor of Philosophy degree, 
• Master of Science in Development Planning
• Bachelor of Arts in Education

• Economic Research
• Rural Development and 

agricultural systems

None

6. Dr Nandipha Toyota Ndudane 
SDIC member
HRRC member

• Bachelor of Agricultural Science 
• Bachelor of Veterinary Medicine and Surgery 
• Master’s degree in Veterinary Animal Pathology 

• Agricultural systems
• Agricultural business 

management

Ivili loboya
South African 
Veterinary Council
Eastern Cape Planning 
Commission
Department of Rural 
Development and 
Agrarian Reform

7. Ms Nandipa Sibongile 
Nwabisa Bam  
SDIC member
HRRC member

• Bachelor of Commerce (B. Comm.)
• Bachelor of Commerce Honours (B. Comm. Hons) 
• CPMD-Municipal Finance

• Local Economic Devel-
opment and Trade & 
Investment Promotion

• Corporate Governance
• Strategic Leadership

GP4
Furntech NPC
Furntech Trust
Sanami NPC

8. Mr Mpumzi Milford Pupuma
HRRC Chairperson
SDIC member

• Bachelor of Accounting Science
• Master of Business Leadership

• Banking
• People management

Ithala SOC Limited
Grassland Development 
Trust

Board Composition (Non-Executive Directors)

No Board member Qualifications Area of expertise Active Directorships/ 
Positions

9. Ms Nosipho Doris Alice 
Ngewu
HRRC member 
SEC member

• BCompt, UNITRA
• HDip tax, Higher Postgraduate Diploma in   
   Taxation [Hons Equiv] , UNISA
• LMDP, Leadership & Management   
   Development Programme, UNISA
• MBL, Masters in Business Leadership, UNISA
• BTh, Bachelor of Theology, UNISA

• People management
• Business administration 

Africa’s Best 350
Mexiscene Pty Ltd

** Ms Nolukhanyo Makuni
Independent ARC member 
only and does not serve on 
the Board

• Bachelor of Accounting Science degree 
• Post-Grad Diploma in Accounting
• Chartered Accountant (South Africa)
• Certificate in Money Laundering & Detection

• Financial management
• Auditing and Tax
• Risk management

CN Outsourced 
Finance (Pty) Ltd

56%

44%

100% Black

Females

Males

Gender and Race Non-Executive Directors Demographics

2
66 - 70

yrs

2
61 - 65

yrs

2
51 - 55

yrs

3
46 - 50

yrs

BOARD AND COMMITTEES’ MEMBERSHIP 
AND MEETING ATTENDANCE 

King IV P.6

The Board has delegated some of its responsibilities to committees 

in accordance with the approved delegation of authority. Each com-

mittee acts within the ambit of clearly defined terms of reference 

that are approved by the Board. These terms of reference are re-

viewed periodically and they are updated to address any changes 

in legislation or the governance and oversight needs of the Board 

of Directors.

The Board has four committees to assist it in discharging its role and 

responsibilities. The committees have been established in line with 

legislative requirements and business imperatives. These commit-

tees report to the Board to enable the Board to take responsibility for 

complete oversight and the exercise of their fiduciary duties both in-

dividually and as a collective. This aims to provide sound governance.

The Board Committees

a. Audit and Risk Committee;

b. Human Resources and Remuneration Committee;

c. Social and Ethics Committee;

d.Strategy, Development and Investment Committee

The Board and its Committees meet as prescribed by its mandates. 

The meetings are supported and facilitated by the Company Secre-

tary who ensures timely, accurate and relevant information is provid-

ed ahead of meetings. The Board is pleased that it has fully digitised 

its meetings, having met virtually since the advent of the pandemic 

and has access to secure, real-time information through the use of 

electronic boardpack software.
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Board: 4

SDIC: 4

ARC: 6

HRRC: 3

SEC: 2

3/4

Mase

4/4

6/6

Majova

4/4

4/4

3/3

Pupuma

4/4

3/3

2/2

Ngewu

3/4

4/4

3/3

Bam

4/4

4/4

3/3

Ndudane

2/4

3/4

1/2

Ndabeni

NA

6/6

Makuni*

3/4

4/4

5/6

Msiwa

4/4

4/6

2/2

MkizeMeetings

BOARD MEETING ATTENDANCE

*Makuni is an Independent ARC Member only and does not serve on the Board

COMMITTEES FRAMEWORK 

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE (ARC)

Chairperson: Prof LY Majova-Songca

Members:

UN Mkize

M Msiwa

N Makuni (Independent Committee Member)

Committee duties and how these add value to the execution 

of the strategy:

• Oversees the entity’s compliance with the MFMA, Preferential 

Procurement Act, Treasury Regulations and other legal and  

regulatory requirements applicable to the agency

• Review and approve the Internal Audit Charter, rolling three-year 

Strategic Internal Audit Plan based on its assessment of key areas 

of risk for the Agency and review quarterly reports submitted by 

Internal Audit to ensure robust assurance

• Review the efficiency and effectiveness of the Entity’s systems  

of internal control, including financial controls and business  

risk management

• Provides advice on IT governance, controls, access, safeguarding 

of information in the Entity, on behalf of the board

• Review the Annual Financial Statements and establish that they 

have been prepared by management in accordance with the 

MFMA and accounting standards.

• Evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management 

process followed and the development, maintenance and  

enhancement of the Fraud Prevention Plans

• Review quarterly and annual reports of the entity regarding the 

performance management systems and assists the board to 

ensure these are reported to the Shareholder according to  

compliance timelines.

88%
Overall attendance 
of 6 meetings in the 
year under review

Committee duties and how these add value to the execution 

of the strategy:

• Determine the strategic priorities of Ntinga’s operations and 

recommends these to the board

• Determine long-term development programmes of Ntinga in line 

with the approved Ntinga mandate; and

• Assess the effectiveness of major trade and investment decisions 

and prospective trade and investment projects, and consider how 

these can increase shareholder value within Ntinga.

• Oversee the operational business areas of water services, trading 

enterprises and projects performance and management

Committee duties and how these add value to the execution 

of the strategy:

• Review, approve and monitor the implementation of the Annual 

Human Resource Strategic Plan insofar as it relates to

• Organisational design;

• Behavioural and cultural framework and practices;

• Management succession plan;

• Workplace health and safety planning, practices and compliance;

• Capability and talent development;

• Equal opportunity,equity and diversity; and

• Recruitment, retention and termination policies for key manage-

ment personnel.

• Records Management and Archives 

• Ensure alignment of the remuneration and human resources 

strategies and policies with Ntinga Corporate Strategy, desired 

organisational culture 

• Consider recommendations by Management in relation to remu-

neration of non-executive Board members for final recommenda-

tion by the Board to parent municipality

• Consider and recommend for Board approval, the annual salary 

increase for non-bargaining employees and mandates for 

negotiations with trade unions, and ensure the Board remains 

appraised of such negotiations

95%

100%

Overall attendance 
of 4 meetings in the 
year under review

Overall attendance 
of 3 meetings in the 
year under review

STRATEGY, DEVELOPMENT & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE (SDIC)

Chairperson: Mr M Msiwa

Members:

N Bam

L Ndabeni

N Ndudane

M Pupuma

HUMAN RESOURCES & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (HRRC)

Chairperson: Mr M Pupuma

Members:

N Bam

N Ndudane

N Ngewu
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BOARD TRAINING & DEVELOPMENT

King IV P1 & 9

In driving a return to the foundations of governance, in the year under 

review, the Board, Senior Management Team and our Shareholder 

Representatives attended a virtual training course with the Institute 

of Directors of Southern Africa (IoDSA) on Corporate Governance and 

Board Effectiveness. This was the first training course for the Board, 

and albeit delayed was a positive shift towards the improvement and 

continuous improvement on governance for the Board.

The Directors are further regularly kept abreast of relevant agency 

matters and regulatory developments through interventions such as 

ongoing director development through the various resources made 

available by the IoDSA.

The agency is proud that all its serving Directors, CEO, CFO and Com-

pany Secretary are members of the IoDSA and regularly participate 

in corporate governance training and development through the 

membership resources.

SUCCESSION PLANNING

King IV P.13

The Board of Directors is appointed directly by the Parent Munic-

ipality. The Board therefore remains independent and impartial by 

ensuring that the Parent Municipality provides sole oversight over 

the Board succession plan of the Agency.

The Chairperson provides guidance and engagement to the Parent 

Municipality where it specifically requests guidance to understand-

ing the Agency’s evolving needs in terms of non-executive director 

succession.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

King IV P10

The entity’s Administration is headed by the Chief Executive Officer 

(CEO) who is the Accounting Officer. The CEO reports and accounts 

to the Board of Directors and leads the senior management team, 

which provides operational support. The majority of the Senior Man-

agement Team are appointed on five-year contracts, per the require-

ments of the MFMA.

Committee duties and how these add value to the execution 

of the strategy:

• Monitoring the entity’s activities having regard to any relevant 

legislation, other legal requirements or prevailing codes of best 

practice, with regard to matters relating to:

• Social and economic development;

• Good corporate citizenship;

• The environment, health and public safety, including the impact 

of the entity’s activities and of its products or services;

• Consumer relationships, including the entity’s advertising, public 

relations and compliance with consumer protection laws;

• Labour and employment;

• Ensuring that the entity’s ethics are managed effectively;

• Reporting, through the Chairman of the committee, to the share-

holders at the Company’s Annual General Meeting on any part 

of the business of the meeting that concerns the committee’s 

functions.

83%
Overall attendance 
of 2 meetings in the 
year under review

SOCIAL & ETHICS COMMITTEE (SEC)

Chairperson: Ms U Mkize

Members:

N Bam

N Ndabeni

N Ngewu
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Loyiso Mbiko
Acting Chief Executive Officer

Vuyiseka Mviko
Head: Corporate Services

Cassandra Mfana
Company Secretary, Legal and 
Compliance Advisor
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Mncedisi Mpatheni
Acting Chief Financial Officer

Nwabisa Mningiswa-Maswazi
Manager: Office of the CEO

Mlungiseleli Zilimbola
Head: Trading Enterprises

Eric Mzayiya
Systems Engineer

Zandisile Kanise
Manager: Project Management Office
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Senior Managament Composition

No Management member Qualifications Qualifications and experience Date of appointment

1. Mr. L. Mbiko Acting Chief Executive 
Officer*

• B Com
• Honours B Compt/CTA
• Completed Articles
• CPMD

04 Dec 2020

2. Mr M. Mpatheni Acting Chief Financial 
Officer**

• B Com
• ND: Internal Auditing
• Completed Articles
• CPMD

04 Dec 2020

3. Ms. C.Mfana Company Secretary, 
Legal & Compliance 
Advisor

• B.Com Law 
• Postgraduate LLB
• Admitted Attorney of the High Court RSA
• Practical Legal Training Course 
• Postgraduate Qualification - Company 
  Secretarial & Governance Practice  
• Certificate - Compliance Management                                                                                                                   

01 Dec 2019

4. Ms. N. Mningiswa-Maswazi Manager: Office of 
the CEO

• BA Social Work
• Diploma in Human Resources Management 
• Diploma in Business Management
• Honours in Business Administration
• Honours in Psychology 
• Masters of Business Administration 

02 Jan 2018

5. Mr. E. Mzayiya Systems Engineer • National Diploma: Management of Civil Engineering 
Construction

• Diploma (Mech Eng)
• BSc
• Certificate in Business Leadership Processes(NQF5),
• Advanced Project Management
• CPMD
• CPMD Advanced
• Masters of Business Administration

01 Jul 2018

6. Ms. V.  Mviko Head: Corporate 
Services

• Bachelor of Administration
• B Admin Honours(Industrial & Organisational Psychology)
• Masters in Public Administration
• Post Graduate Diploma in Labour Law Practice
• CPMD 

09 Apr 2018

7. Mr. M. Zilimbola Head: Trading 
Enterprises

• B.Com General
• Higher diploma in Project Management     
• B.Com Honours (Business Management)                  
• Masters of Business Administration 

01 Jul 2019

8. Mr. Z. Kanise Manager: Project 
Management Office

• Highest Formal Qualification – Matric
 Incomplete qualifications:- Introduction to 
 Philosophy and African Politics)
 Short Course in Process Facilitation Skills
 Short Course in Batho Pele Implementation for 
 Operational Managers
 Professional Business Writing Skills for Managers
 Short Course in Project Management

08 Jan 2003

37.5% 62.5%
Females Males

GenderManagement 
Demographics 
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* Mr Pakamile Pongwana served as the Chief Executive Officer of the entity from 01 August 2019 until 19 January 2021. He therefore departed the entity during the   
   compilation and finalisation of the Annual Report.
** Mr Loyiso Mbiko previously served as the Chief Financial Officer of the entity.
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GOVERNANCE FOUNDATIONS

•	ETHICS	COMMITMENT
   King IV P.2

In the year under review, the Board continues to en-
trench its commitment to ethical governance through 
the approval of its Code of Ethics. The Code guides 
employee behaviour in all internal and external stake-
holder relations.

Ntinga’s main ethical values as espoused in the Code include Integri-

ty, Reliability, Honesty, Accountability and Transparency.

The Social and Ethics Committee of the Board continues to provide 

its delegated oversight over the application and entrenchment of an 

ethical culture in the entity.

•	COMPLIANCE	WITH	LAWS	AND	REGULATIONS
   King IV P.13

The Office of the Company Secretary provides legal and compliance 

advice to the agency. The parent municipality supports the agency 

with a shared legal service on litigation matters. Due to limitations 

with capacity, compliance is entrenched at departmental level with 

each unit and trading enterprise ensuring compliance at departmen-

tal level. The Board continues to provide management support in ex-

tending its compliance and monitoring over the agency. 

The Internal Audit Unit periodically reviews compliance with laws 

and the Board strives for a culture of compliance with all relevant 

laws and regulations pertaining to the agency.

•	FRAUD	AND	ANTI-CORRUPTION

The agency carefully monitors fraud and corruption. There is an an-

ti-fraud and anti-corruption policy in place which is reviewed regu-

larly. The policy includes the whistle blowing processes. Systems of 

internal controls are documented and subject to periodic reviews 

by internal audit. There is a functional Audit and Risk Committee in 

place which amongst other things is tasked with oversight over fraud 

and corruption management processes.

•	MINIMISING	CONFLICT	OF	INTEREST
   King IV P.13

In line with the recommendations of the King IV code, the directors 

are required to declare their interest in any discussion on the agenda 

at each meeting. The directors further annually provide the declara-

tion of all their private or business interests and directorships held. 

These are included above in this report.

Ntinga staff are similarly required to declare their interests in other 

businesses/organisations on a regular basis. In addition to this dec-

laration, all bid evaluation and adjudication committee members are 

required to declare any potential conflict of interest at each commit-

tee meeting. Committee members are excluded from participating in 

procurement decisions where a conflict of interest exists or is per-

ceived to exist. Conflict of interest includes the interest of spouses 

and close family members.

Further, the agency requires all suppliers registered on its database 

to declare its shareholders and any conflict of interest upon regis-

tration to avoid the inadvertent use of suppliers in an irregular man-

ner. Ntinga prevents conflict of interest by ensuring adherence to 

National Treasury’s Code of Conduct for supply chain management 

practices.

•	RISK	MANAGEMENT
   King IV P11

The Board, through its Audit and Risk Committee, ensures that there 

is an effective risk management process within the agency. Risk 

management processes include policy development, facilitation of 

risk assessments and development of mitigating controls for the 

risks identified.

The CEO is the ultimate Chief Risk Officer of the agency. The agency 

has experienced challenges with the support of the shared services 

provided for Risk Management, but management and the Board con-

tinue to provide oversight through its Audit and Risk Committee.

The Board-approved Risk Management policy was implemented 

throughout the financial year to ensure that risk management activ-

ities are institutionalised within the agency. Risk assessments were 

facilitated by the Internal Audit unit for all business units and the risk 

registers were submitted to the Audit & Risk Committee for review 

and to provide input with regards to the effective implementation of 

the Risk Management policy within the agency.

The Audit and Risk Committee plays an independent oversight role 

which assists management with risk management processes and as 

such recommends suitable actions for mitigating any unacceptable 

levels of risks identified.

•	INTERNAL	AUDIT	AND	AUDIT	COMMITTEE
   King IV P15

Ntinga’s internal audit function is an independent, objective, assur-

ance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve the 

organisation’s operations. It assists the organisation in accomplish-

ing its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to 

the evaluation and effectiveness of risk management, control and 

governance processes. Such assurance is based on objective infor-

mation, in the form of audit opinions, arising from internal audits 

performed.

In the year under review, the IA conducted reviews according to the 

Internal Audit Plan. The corrective actions resulting from the Audits 

are monitored through the tracking of the Management Audit Action 

Plan to minimise repeat findings.

COMPANY SECRETARIAL FUNCTION

King IV P.10

In the year under review, a permanent Company Secretary, Ms Mfana, 

was appointed with effect from December 2019 to provide the Board 

of Directors with effective and efficient corporate governance and 

company secretarial support. 

The Company Secretary reports directly to the Board with the re-

sponsibility for advising the Board, through the Chairman, on all gov-

ernance matters and any breach of legislation which may arise. The 

Company Secretary acts as the primary point of contact between the 

Board and the agency. 

The Board if satisfied that the Company Secretary has maintained 

an arms-length relationship with the Board and is qualified to per-

form her duties in accordance with the applicable legislation. She 

is considered by the Board to be fit and proper for the position. In 

accordance with the King IV Code and best practice, the Company 

Secretary is not a director of the Company and is deemed by the 

Board to be suitably independent.

BOARD REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the Board members is stipulated by the parent municipality, upon appointment of the director and is reviewed annually 

by the municipality. The Board members are remunerated per meeting and are reimbursed for travel in terms of Ntinga’s Subsistence and 

Travel policy. The Board members do not claim for preparation fees and do not receive retention allowances.

Members of the Board are non-executive directors. In order to enable them to carry out their responsibilities efficiently and effectively some members are provided with 
computer equipment with data bundles. Except for the Board Chairperson members are delegated to serve in board committees. Mr. Mase only started drawing fees in 
June 2020. *Mrs. Makuni serves as an independent member of the Audit and Risk Committee only. 

Non-Executive Directors

Name Sitting allowance Re-imbursive travel expenses Total

Mr SE Mase 19 800 37 138 56 938

Mr M Msiwa 84 700 7 089 91 789

Mr MM Pupuma 105 650 53 472 159 122

Mrs NDA Ngewu 49 500 7 834 57 334

Dr LL Ndabeni 44 000 1 937 45 937

Ms UN Mkize 61 050 2 305 63 355

Prof LY Majova-Songca 74 800 15 273 90 073

Ms NSN Bam 66 000 32 496 98 496

Dr NT Ndudane 82 500 7 495 89 995

Mrs N Makuni* 44 000 3 029 47 029

632 000 168 068 800 068
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PART I 
SOCIAL AND 
ETHICS 
COMMITTEE 
REPORT

9190

The committee’s key focus is to assist the Board in setting the tone 

for an ethical organisational culture and to ensure that fair labour 

practices are applied across the entity. In addition, the committee 

ensures that there are appropriate strategies in place to contribute 

to social and economic development as well as supporting the com-

munities within the district in line with Ntinga’s mandate.

As a statutory committee, a large proportion its work is also compliance-

driven; however, the committee focuses on the broader mandate of 

ensuring the well-being of Ntinga employees and communities in 

which the agency operates.

The statutory duties entail:

• Monitoring the entity’s activities having regard to any relevant 

legislation, other legal requirements or prevailing codes of best 

practice, with regard to matters relating to:

• Social and economic development;

• Good corporate citizenship;

• The environment, health and public safety, including the impact 

of the entity’s activities and of its products or services;

• Consumer relationships, including the entity’s advertising, public 

relations and compliance with consumer protection laws;

• Labour and employment;

• Ensuring that the entity’s ethics are managed effectively;

• Reporting, through the chairperson of the committee, to the 

shareholders at the company’s Annual General Meeting (AGM) 

on any part of the business of the meeting that concerns the 

committee’s functions.

KEY FOCUS AREAS

Ntinga’s main business enterprises comprise the Umzikantu 

Abattoir, Adam Kok Farms and the Kei Fresh Produce Market. 

While these enterprises assume a commercial posture, they 

also carry a largely socio-economic development mandate in 

which the entity aims to give back to the communities which 

it serves. As such, the entity is involved in various sponsor-

ship, donations and charitable giving initiatives.

In the review period, the committee is proud to report that 

the following projects have been undertaken to assist com-

munities within the district.

Heifers exchange programme

Adam Kok Farms facilitate a heifer exchange programme in 

which local farmers exchange their old cattle for a heifer that 

can produce and improve the quality of their stock. The pro-

gramme has positively assisted farmers, with 69 bulls having 

been exchanged. A total of 28 subsistence and emerging 

farmers benefited from the heifer exchange programme in 

the period under review.

Dear Stakeholder

The Social and Ethics Committee (committee) is pleased to present its report for the 2019 financial year on 
behalf of Ntinga. The committee is a statutory committee appointed in terms of the Companies Act 71 of 2008.

CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENTS 
& SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

69 bulls

28

have been exchanged thanks 
to the programme

subsistence and emerging 
farmers benefitted from the Heifer 
exchange programme
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The Ntinga Preferential Procurement Policy is reviewed and approved 

annually. It is guided wholly by Treasury Regulations and prescripts 

of the MFMA. The entity also strives to ensure that Ntinga positively 

contributes to the national imperatives relating to supplier develop-

ment by ensuring that the agency promotes black economic empow-

erment and socio-economic objectives in its supply chain activities.

Ntinga further aims to ensure that its supply chain practices are fair, 

equitable and that they are guided by legislation and best practice. 

Ntinga strives to ensure that these practices stimulate and promote 

local economic development in a targeted and focused manner. This 

is achieved through the targeting of labour and/or enterprises from 

specific areas within the boundaries of the O.R Tambo District Munic-

ipality area in accordance with Ntinga’s upliftment mandate.

In the period under review:

• R6,6 million (37%) of all procurement was made within other 

Eastern Cape districts 

• R6.2 million of procurement contributed towards the revenues of 

small and medium enterprises participating in our supplier base

PREFERENTIAL PROCUREMENT / 
SUPPLIER DEVELOPMENT

Bull Loaning

Adam Kok Farms also manages a bull loaning programme 

in which a bull is loaned to a farmer who has enough stock 

of female bulls for a maximum period of three years. In this 

period, the farmer is responsible for the bull in terms of 

feed, medicine etc. This programme empowers farmers to 

increase their livestock numbers and the loaning programme 

has positively assisted four breeders with four bulls loaned 

during the period under review. One bull was loaned to a co-

operative, and three to individual farmers who, in turn, ben-

efit their surrounding communities as farming is generally 

communal.

Farmer Training

The entity is pleased to periodically provide in-house training 

of farmers through observation, whereby farmers can visit 

Ntinga’s farms on request and learn about beef and crop pro-

duction models. The Adam Kok officer also visits feedlots on 

request from farmers. The officer assists them on the best 

ways of running a feedlot. In the year under review, the farms 

were able to host a study tour with the Qumbu feedlot farmers.

Animal identification

Adam Kok is also assisting farmers to brand their animals. 

KFPM is helping farmers on product branding, packaging and 

grading in preparation for the market.

Crop production programmes

In the year under review, KFPM entered into a partnership 

with the Eastern Cape Development 

Corporation (ECDC) and Potato 

South Africa to assist farmers 

with crop production and in 

improving product quality. 

Potato washing

KFPM is assisting potato producers at a small fee to wash 

their potatoes so that they can get better value for money 

when selling to the market.

CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENTS 
& SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

4 bulls
were loaned to 4 breeders in the year under review
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R5,6 million (31%)

R12,2 million (68%)

of all procurement was made 
within the O.R Tambo District 
Municipality

of total procurement spend 
was therefore committed to 
Eastern Cape suppliers

22

22
Females

Males

Skills programmes 
and other short courses 
end of 30 June 2020

Training and Development

The development of talent is highly valued in the entity and Ntinga views skills development 

as a critical part of its broader employment equity objectives. As such, the entity is proud to 

contribute to the national imperatives of empowering its workforce through training and new 

graduates through internships and other workplace skills interventions.

In the period under review, Ntinga contracted 24 interns from various institutions. Of the 

24 interns, three were funded in-house; and the remainder was funded by different Sector 

Education and Training Authorities (SETAs) and the National Skills Fund (NSF).

As Ntinga moves forward to the next period, the Committee will focus on:

• Developing the Ethics Policy, Sustainability Policy and Corporate Social Investment Policy 

and shift focus to monitoring Ntinga’s footprint for the future;

• The implementation of the newly developed workplan to ensure the committee reports 

holistically on all its aspects;

• Strengthen the entity’s compliance function for the future.

APPRECIATION

In closing, I would like to thank the committee members and the senior management team for 

their inputs and contributions to advancing Ntinga’s social and ethical objectives.

Ms Unathi Nosiphe Mkize

Social & Ethics Committee Chairman

Health and Safety 

The committee strives to ensure the wellbeing and health and safety of all Ntinga employees. 

As such, the committee is pleased to note that there were no occupational injuries reported 

in the period under review. The company, however, sadly lost an employee who was catego-

rised as an essential service worker to COVID-19. The scourge of the COVID-19 pandemic has 

severely tested the ability of the entity to provide supportive and ethical systems of support 

to its employees and this will be continuous.

TALENT DEVELOPMENT

FUTURE OUTLOOK

50%
Females

3 of the 24 interns
Contracted by Ntinga were funded in-house

CAUTION

0
occupational 
Injuries
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PART J 
REPORT OF THE 
AUDIT & RISK 
COMMITTEE 
(ARC)

The committee also assists the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities of 

risk management. 

The Local Government defines the committee’s statutory responsibil-

ities: Municipal Finance Management Act and the Companies Act and 

it has further responsibilities delegated to it by the board.

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE 
RESPONSIBILITY

The committee has complied with its responsibilities arising from 

Sections 166(2) and 121(4) (g) of the MFMA. It has also reviewed and 

adopted appropriate terms of reference in its Audit & Risk Committee 

charter as detailed on page 80 of the Report, which provides clarity 

for its statutory and delegated duties as a committee of the Board of 

Directors.

ARC MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE

The committee should comprise at least three directors who are con-

sidered independent non-executive directors in terms of both the 

Companies Act and King IV. Membership of the committee during the 

year under review was as follows:

Member    Date of first appointment 

Professor L.Y Majova-Songca  01 March 2015

Mr M Msiwa   01 March 2015

Ms UN Mkize   01 March 2015

Ms N Makuni   27 January 2016

*Ms. Makuni is appointed as an Independent member of the Commit-

tee and does not serve on the Board. This creates maximum value and 

oversight for stakeholders.

The committee met six (6) times during the year under review. The 

table on page 80 of the Report references the attendance at these 

meetings. The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, senior 

management team and internal and external auditors regularly attend 

meetings by invitation.
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Dear Stakeholder

The Audit and Risk Committee (the committee) is pleased to present its report for the financial year ended 
30 June 2020.

ARC, an independent statutory committee appointed by the shareholder, consists of independent 
non-executive board members. Its overall objectives are to assist the Board with ensuring that adequate sys-
tems and controls are in place, thus ensuring that the assets are safeguarded; assessing the going concern 
status; reviewing the financial information, and overseeing the preparation of financial statements.
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THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL 
CONTROLS AND ASSURANCE

In line with the requirements of the MFMA, Internal Audit is required 

to provide the ARC and management with assurance that the internal 

controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of 

the risk management process as well as the identification of corrective 

actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes. 

The system of internal controls applied by the entity over financial 

management is considered effective, efficient and transparent.

Based on the results of the internal and external audit reports, and 

information and explanations given by management, the committee 

is of the view that the systems of internal control over risk and IT 

governance require improvement. The committee is however encour-

aged that the necessary measures are being taken to remediate the 

deficiencies identified relating to risk and IT management, compliance 

and internal controls.

Internal audit has audited and reviewed the following to provide as-

surance, however, the list is not exhaustive:

• Review of Quarterly Performance Reports; 

• Annual Financial Statements Review; 

• Review of Annual Performance Report;

• Follow-up on Internal Audit Reports;

• Implementation of Auditor General Management Audit Action Plan; 

• Review of Supply Chain Management;

• Review of Asset Management;

• Review of the 2019/20 Service Delivery and Budget Implementation 

Plan; and

• Review of the Draft 2020/21 SDBIP.

THE QUALITY MANAGEMENT OF 
QUARTERLY REPORTS SUBMITTED TO 
THE ARC

The committee has reviewed the management quarterly reports ta-

bled for submission in terms of MFMA. Systems and processes are 

in place for monitoring and reporting on budgetary performance and 

against set targets. The committee is satisfied that the mechanisms 

in place for the in-year management of resources are effective not-

withstanding the deficiencies noted in the Internal Audit reviews and 

AGSA Audit Reports.

EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The committee has reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Fi-

nancial Statements (AFS) and Annual Performance Report (APR) to be 

included in the Annual Report with the Auditor General and Manage-

ment. The committee accepted and welcomed the Auditor-General’s 

conclusion on the unqualified Annual Financial Statements. The board 

approved the Annual Financial Statements on 30 October 2020 and 

these will be presented to the Shareholder at the Annual General 

Meeting. 

INTERNAL AUDIT

The committee is satisfied that the Internal Audit function is operating 

effectively and that the Internal Audit procedures have addressed the 

risks pertinent to the entity. 

The committee considered the following in relation to the internal au-

dit function in the year under review:

• internal audit charter;

• annual audit plan including the alignment of the audit plan with the 

company’s key risk areas of concern;

• internal audit reports;

• management action plans;

• co-ordination with external auditors: and

• the independence and effectiveness of the function.

AUDITOR GENERAL SOUTH AFRICA (AGSA)

The committee has met with the Auditor-General of South Africa and 

there are no unresolved issues. The AGSA has maintained its indepen-

dence and the audit for the year under review was conducted effec-

tively. The Audit Report on page 101 of the Annual Report provides 

further detail on the performance of the entity and the outcomes of 

the external audit.

9796
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COVID-19 GLOBAL 
PANDEMIC

The COVID-19 pandemic has materially affected the company’s op-

erations, mainly in the second half of the financial year, resulting in 

a decrease in revenue, profitability and cash flows. The committee 

interrogated the effects of these changes and continues to engage 

the Board on the need for further recapitalisation and restructuring 

of the entity’s finances to assist with post-COVID-19 recovery plans 

to be implemented.

OUTLOOK

As we move forward to the next period, the Committee will focus on 

• Continuing to closely monitor the going concern status of the entity, 

its liquidity and the adequate recapitalisation of operations by the 

Parent Municipality;

• The clear implementation of the turnaround plans for the improve-

ment of the performance of the enterprises and the monitoring of 

the effects thereof on the entity’s financial viability; and

• Strengthen the entity’s risk management and IT governance 

functions for the future.

APPRECIATION

I wish to express my appreciation to the members of the Committee 

and to the Ntinga management team for their commitment and 

support in this financial year.

Professor Lindelwa Yvonne Majova-Songca 

Audit and Risk Committee Chairperson
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AUDITOR’S 
REPORT

Audit Report

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL 
TO THE EASTERN CAPE PROVINCIAL 
LEGISLATURE ON NTINGA O.R TAMBO 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY SOC LTD

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1.  I have audited the financial statements of the Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd set out on pages 114 to 173 which comprise 

the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow 

statement and statement of comparison of budget information with actual information for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the 

financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

2.  In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Ntinga O.R Tambo Development 

Agency SOC Ltd as at 30 June 2020, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the GRAP 

and the requirements of the Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No.56 of 2003) and the Companies Act of South 

Africa, 2008 (Act No.71 of 2008).

3.  I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under those standards are fur-

ther described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this auditor’s report.

4. I am independent of the municipal entity in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the Code of ethics for professional accountants and 

parts 1 and 3 of the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) of the In-

ternational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA codes) as well as the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in South 

Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and IESBA codes.

5.  I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my unqualified opinion.

Emphasis of matter

6.  I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Irregular Expenditure

7.  As disclosed in note 33.2 to the financial statements, the entity incurred irregular expenditure of R 366 390 (2019:R988 585), as it did not 

follow proper SCM processes and operating policies of the entity.
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Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements

8.  The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 

statements in accordance with the GRAP and the requirements of the Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 56 

of 2003) and the Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act No.71 of 2008), and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines 

is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

9.  in preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the municipal entity’s ability to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate 

governance structure either intends to liquidate the municipal entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

10.  My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 

but is not a guarantee that an audit that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when 

it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud, or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of financial statements.

11.  A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the annexure to this auditor’s report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report

Introduction and scope

12. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I 

have a responsibility to report on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information against predetermined objectives 

for selected objectives presented in the annual performance report. I performed procedures to identify material findings but not to gather 

evidence to express assurance.

 13. My procedures address the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information, which must be based on the approved 

performance planning documents of the municipal entity. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance 

indicators included in the planning documents. My procedures do not examine whether the actions taken by the municipal entity enabled 

service delivery. My procedures also do not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to planned performance strategies and infor-

mation in respect of future periods that may be included as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not 

extend to these matters.

 14. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance with the criteria developed from the per-

formance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected objectives presented in the 

annual performance report of the municipal entity for the year ended 30 June 2020:

Objectives Pages in the annual performance report

Strategic goal 1 – Sustainable water services (water resource management 

supply and sanitation) Systems.

48 - 49

Strategic goal 2 – Enhanced and Enabled Full Value Chains (upstream and 

downstream) for Agricultural Produce, Markets, Abattoirs, and Aquaculture.

50 - 55

15.  I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was consistent with the approved performance plan-

ning documents. I performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, 

and assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

16.  I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the following objectives:

• Strategic goal 1 – Sustainable water services (water resource management supply and sanitation) Systems.

• Strategic goal 2 – Enhanced and Enabled Full Value Chains (upstream and downstream) for Agricultural Produce, Markets, Abattoirs,  

and Aquaculture.

Other matters

17.   I draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets

18. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 47 to 61 for information on the achievement of planned targets for the year. This informa-

tion should be considered in the context of the material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information 

in paragraph 16 of this report.

Adjustment of material misstatements

19. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing. These material misstatements were in the reported 

performance information of Sustainable Water Services (water supply and sanitation) Systems and the Enhanced and Enabled Full Value Chains 

(upstream and downstream) for Agricultural Produce, Markets, Abattoir and Aquaculture. As management subsequently corrected all of the 

misstatements, I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information.

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope

20.  In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings on the municipal 

entity’s compliance with specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express 

assurance. 

21. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows:

Annual financial statements and annual report

22. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in accordance with the requirements of section 

122 (1) of the MFMA. Material misstatements of Revenue from non-exchange transactions, Inventory, Deferred Tax, Related Parties disclo-

sure, Prior Period Error Note disclosure and Irregular Expenditure identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statement were subse-

quently corrected and/or the supporting records were provided subsequently, resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified 

audit opinion.

Strategic planning and performance management

23.  The annual performance objectives and indicators were not established by agreement with the parent municipality, as required by section 

93B(a) of MSA.
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Procurement and contract management

24. The contract performance and monitoring measures and methods were not sufficient to ensure effective contract management, as required 

by section 116(2)(c) of the MFMA. Similar non-compliance was also reported in the prior year.

Consequence management

25. All irregular expenditure incurred by the municipal entity were not investigated to determine if any person is liable for the expenditure, as 

required by municipal budget and reporting regulations 75(1).

Other information

26. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual 

report, which includes the director’s report, the audit committee’s report and the company secretary’s certificate as required by the Com-

panies Act of South Africa 2008 Act No. 71 of 2008. The other information does not include the financial statements, the auditor’s report and 

those selected objectives presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported in this auditor’s report.

27. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and compliance with legislation do not cover 

the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

28. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected objectives presented in the annual performance report, or my knowl-

edge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

29. When I do receive and read the annual report, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, I am required to communicate the 

matter to those charged with governance and request that the other information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, I 

may have to retract this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected this will not be necessary.

Internal control deficiencies

30. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance information and compliance with ap-

plicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form of assurance on it. The matters reported below are limited to the 

significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for the qualified opinion, the findings on the annual performance report and 

the findings on compliance with legislation included in this report.

• Monitoring activities were established by the entity. These were however not fully effective in the current year, as material misstatements 

on the submitted financial statements, annual performance report, and non-compliance with scoped in legislation were identified in the 

current year.

East London

28 February 2021

Annexure -  Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

1.  As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout my 

audit of the financial statements and the procedures performed on reported performance information for selected objectives and on the 

municipality entity’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial statements

2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s report, I also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 

audit procedures responsive to those risks; and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circum-

stances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the municipal entity’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 

by the board of directors, which constitutes the accounting officer.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the board of directors, which constitutes the accounting officer’s use of the going concern basis 

of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Ntinga OR Tambo Development 

Agency to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s re-

port to the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 

my opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of this auditor’s report. 

However, future events or conditions may cause a municipal entity to cease operating as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and determine whether 

the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the group 

to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. I am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 

group audit. I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

Communication with those charged with governance

3. I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

4. I also confirm to the accounting officer that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate 

all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my independence and, where applicable, actions 

taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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GENERAL 
INFORMATION
NATURE OF BUSINESS

Service Delivery vehicle of the parent municipality, O.R. Tambo District Municipality.
       
LEGAL FORM     
A municipal entity of the O.R. Tambo District Municipality as defined by the 
Municipal Structures Act.  (Act no 117 of 1998)     
    
ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mr. L. Mbiko        
 
ACTING CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mr. M. Mpatheni        
 
REGISTERED OFFICE     
Old Government Printers Building, 5 Textile Road, Vulindlela Heights, 
Southernwood, Mthatha       
  
EXTERNAL AUDITORS     
Auditor General South Africa      
   
PRINCIPAL BANKERS     
First National Bank       
  
MOST RELEVANT LEGISLATION
- Constitution of the Republic of South Africa (Act no. 108 of 1996)
- Municipal Finance Management Act (Act no 56 of 2003) (MFMA) 
- Division of Revenue Act (Act No.3 of 2016)
- The Income Tax Act (Act no. 58 of 1962)
- Value Added Tax Act (Act no. 89 of 1991)
- Local Government: Municipal Structures Act (Act no 117 of 1998)
- Local Government: Municipal Systems Act (Act no 32 of 2000) 
- Municipal Planning and Performance Management Regulations of 2001 issued in 

terms of Local Government: Municipal Systems Act (Act no. 32 of 2000)
- Skills Development Levies Act (Act no 9 of 1999)
- Employment Equity Act (Act no 55 of 1998)
- Unemployment Insurance Act (Act no 30 of 1966)
- Basic Conditions of Employment Act (Act no 75 of 1997)
- Supply Chain Management Regulations, 2005 issued in terms of Local Government: 

Municipal Finance Management Act (Act no. 56 of 2003)
- South African Local Government Bargaining Council - Collective Agreement on 

Leave
- Companies Act (Act 71 of 2008)      
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The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act, to main-
tain adequate accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of 
the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this re-
port.  It is his responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present 
the state of affairs of the Entity as at the end of the financial year and the results of 
its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP).  The external auditors are engaged to express 
an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.   

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (GRAP) and the MFMA, and are based upon appropriate account-
ing policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments 
and estimates. 

The external auditors are responsible for independently providing reasonable assur-
ance by reviewing and reporting on the Entity’s annual financial statements. 

I, as the Accounting Officer, acknowledge that I am ultimately responsible for the sys-
tem of internal financial control established by the Entity and place considerable im-
portance on maintaining a strong control environment.  To enable me to meet these 
responsibilities, I have set standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of 
error or deficit in a cost-effective manner.  The standards include the proper delegation 
of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures 
and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk.  These con-
trols are monitored throughout the Entity and all employees are required to maintain 
the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Entity’s business is conducted in a manner 
that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach.  The focus of risk management 
in the Entity is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of 
risks. While operating risks cannot be fully eliminated, the Entity endeavours to mini-
mise them by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical 
behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
 
The annual financial statements set out on pages 114 to 173, which have been prepared 
on the going concern basis, were approved on 30 October 2020. 

ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S 
STATEMENT

Mr. L. Mbiko
Acting Chief Executive Officer

Date

08/03/2021

In terms of section 88(2)(e) of the South African Companies Act No 71 of 
2008, I, Cassandra Mfana, in my capacity as Company Secretary of Ntinga 
O.R. Tambo Development Agency SOC Limited, confirm that for the year 
ended 30 June 2020, the company has lodged with the Companies and 
Intellectual Property Commission, all such returns as are required of a 
company in terms of the Companies Act and that all such returns and 
notices are, to the best of my knowledge, true, correct and up to date.  
    

CERTIFICATE BY THE 
COMPANY SECRETARY

C. Mfana
Company Secretary

Date

08/03/2021
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1. Main business and operations

The Ntinga O.R. Tambo Development Agency, a municipal entity es-
tablished by the O.R. Tambo District Municipality (ORTDM) performs 
activities which falls within the functions and powers of  district mu-
nicipalities as contemplated in Section 84(1) of the Municipal Struc-
tures Act, 1998 (Act 117 of 1998).

2. Taxation

With effect from 01 July 2017 the Entity started operating as a State 
Owned Company (SOC), incorporated as a private company. In terms 
of the Income Tax Act a private company is liable for Income Tax.

3. Board of Directors

The directors of the Entity appointed for a period of five years are as 
follows:

4. Entity Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Ms. C. Mfana was appointed with effect from 
01 December 2019. Before the appointment, the Acting Company 
Secretary was Ms. N. Mningiswa-Maswazi.

5. Business Address:

Old Government Printers Building, 5 Textile Road, Vulindlela 
Heights, Mthatha, 5100

6. Physical Address:

Old Government Printers Building, 5 Textile Road, Vulindlela 
Heights, Mthatha, 5100

7. Postal Address:   
 
P.O. Box 1134, Mthatha, 5100   

8. Members of the Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) 
      
The members of the ARC were as follows:-   
     
Professor L.Y. Majova-Songca (Chairperson)  
Mrs U.N. Mkize     
Mr M. Msiwa
Mrs N. Makuni - Independent Member

9. Members of the Human Resource and 
Remuneration Committee

The members of the Human Resource and Remuneration Com-
mittee (HRRC) were as follows:-    
      
Mr. M.M. Pupuma (Chairperson)
Ms. N.S.N. Bam
Dr. N.T. Ndudane
Mrs. N.D.A. Ngewu 

10. Members of the Strategy Development and 
Investment Committee

The members of Strategy Development and Investment Commit-
tee (SDIC) were as follows:-     
   
Mr. M. Msiwa (Chairperson)    
Dr. L.L. Ndabeni
Ms. N.S.N. Bam
Dr. N.T. Ndudane
Mr. M.M. Pupuma

11. Members of the Social and Ethics Committee

The members of Social and Ethics Committee (SEC) were as 
follows:-
      
Ms. U.N. Mkize (Chairperson)    
Mrs. N.D.A. Ngewu   
Dr. L.L. Ndabeni

12. The Entity’s Mandate

The mandate given to the Entity by the Parent municipality in-
cludes rendering services in the following areas: 

- Intergrated Development Plan;
- Potable Water Supply Systems;   
- Domestic and Industrial Waste-water and Sewage Disposal Systems;
- Fresh Produce Markets and Abattoirs;
- Local Tourism Promotion;    
- Municipal Public Works;
- Collection of taxes, Levies and Duties, and
- Discretionary Activities (which include):

(a) Any other activity agreed upon with the Parent municipality, 
Provincial and National Governments and the Private Sector.

Name Nationality Appointment date

Mr. S.E. Mase (Chairperson) RSA 01 July 2017

Professor L.Y. Majova-Songca 
(Deputy Chairperson) 

RSA 01 July 2017

Mr. M. Msiwa RSA 01 July 2017

Ms. U.N. Mkize RSA 01 July 2017

Dr. L.L. Ndabeni RSA 01 July 2017

Ms. N.S.N. Bam RSA 01 July 2017

Dr. N.T. Ndudane RSA 01 July 2017

Mr. M.M. Pupuma RSA 01 July 2017

Mrs. N.D.A. Ngewu RSA 01 July 2017

DIRECTORS REPORT
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13. Financial results

The Entity made a deficit of R6,114,760 (2019: deficit R6,618,073

14. Legal form of the entity

The Entity is a Municipal Entity incorporated as a State Owned Com-
pany in terms of the Companies Act.

15. Going concern

The parent municipality, O.R. Tambo District Municipality, continues to 
provide financial support to the Entity. There is commitment by the 
parent to continue funding the entity. The Entity is implementing a 
strategy that is focused on generating own revenue thereby reducing 
reliance on grant funding. 

16. Events after the reporting date

There were no material events that ocurred after the reporting date.

17. Holding Entity     
 
The holding entity is the O.R. Tambo District Municipality. 

18. External Auditors     

Auditor General of South Africa (Eastern Cape) will continue in office 
in accordance with the MFMA.    
 

19. Website      
  
www.ntinga.org.za      
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Notes  30 JUNE 2020  2019

 R (Actual)  R (Actual)

ASSETS

Current Assets  18 454 272  17 865 560 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2  13 278 532  6 282 309 

Receivables from exchange transactions 3  752 164  11 220 406 

Inventory 4  3 235 871  170 266 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 5  1 187 705  192 578 

Deferred tax 8  - -

Non-Current Assets  82 400 579  82 753 737 

Property, Plant and Equipment 9  59 420 271  61 518 434 

Intangible Assets 10  671 228  781 249 

Biological Assets 11  15 089 530  13 234 503 

Deferred tax 8  7 219 551  7 219 552 

Total Assets  100 854 851  100 619 297 

NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities  21 455 742  15 227 850 

Payables from exchange transactions 12  5 834 200  5 047 079 

Payables from non-exchange transactions 13  446 974  446 974 

Unspent Conditional Government Grants and Receipts 14  5 748 198  3 290 842 

Current Employee benefits 15  4 586 855  3 788 396 

Current portion of long - term liabilities 17  87 536  - 

Taxes 6  4 751 979  2 654 559 

Non - Current Liabilities  122 420  - 

Long - term liabilities 17  122 420  - 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  21 578 162   15 227 850 

NET ASSETS  79 276 689   85 391 447 

Accumulated Surplus  79 276 686  85 391 446 

TOTAL NET ASSETS  100 854 851  100 619 297 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd

Notes  30 JUNE 2020  2019

 R (Actual)  R (Actual)

REVENUE

Non-exchange Revenue  46 514 585  34 505 610

Transfers and Subsidies 18  46 514 585  34 505 610

Exchange Revenue  24 784 089  26 363 423

Interest Earned - external investments  385 520  1 155 693 

Sale of Goods and Rendering of Services 19  24 398 569  25 207 730 

Gains  9 073 081  15 007 789

Adjustments to Biological Assets 20,1  6 604 567  4 013 157 

Gains on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment  4 731  213 286 

Intercompany Transactions - Donation of Assets 20,3  2 463 783  10 781 346 

Total Revenue  80 371 755  75 876 822

EXPENDITURE

Employee related costs 21  45 573 205  41 536 266 

Board of directors related costs 22  932 106  1 411 292 

Depreciation and Amortisation 24  5 466 038  4 237 152 

Repairs and Maintenance  145 654  486 596 

Finance Charges 25  70 020  40 571 

Operational costs 26  31 933 745  37 949 799 

Contracted services 27  2 124 547  1 731 694 

Adjustments to Biological Assets 20,2  241 200  454 650 

Total Expenditure  86 486 515  87 848 020

Loss before tax for the year  (6 114 760)  (11 971 198)

Income Tax Expense 7  -  5 353 124

Loss after tax for the year  (6 114 760)  (6 618 074)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 
30 JUNE 2020

Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd
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Accumulated Total

Surplus/ (Deficit)

R R

Balance at 1 JULY 2018  92 009 520  92 009 520 

Net Deficit for the year  (6 618 074)  (6 618 074)

Restated Balance at 30 JUNE 2019  85 391 446  85 391 446

Net Deficit for the period  (6 114 760)  (6 114 760)

Balance at 30 JUNE 2020  79 276 686  79 276 686 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 
30 JUNE 2020

Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd

Notes  30 JUNE 2020  30 JUNE 2019 

 R  R

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts

    Grants and public contributions  49 297 177  34 505 610 

    Sales of goods and services  33 389 172  16 370 736 

    Interest Earned - external investments  385 520  1 155 693 

Payments

    Suppliers  (35 016 801)  (27 944 255)

    Employees and directors  (44 830 248)  (42 947 559)

    Finance charges  (70 020)  (40 571)

Cash generated / (utilised) in operations 28  3 154 800  (18 900 347)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 31  (673 495)  (7 640 902)

Proceeds on Disposal of Fixed Assets  17 112  702 431 

Purchase of Intangible Assets  (132 958)  (315 580)

Purchase of Biological assets  (947 786)  (1 112 402)

Proceeds on Disposal of Biological assets  5 456 129  2 668 856 

Net Cash utilised in Investing Activities  3 719 003  (5 697 597)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New loans raised  270 189  - 

Loans repaid  (147 769)  - 

Net Cash from Financing Activities  122 420  - 

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  6 996 223  (24 597 944)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year  6 282 309  30 880 253 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 29  13 278 532  6 282 309 

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  6 996 223  (24 597 944)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd
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2019/2020

Notes Original 
Budget

Final Adjustments 
Budget

Final 
Budget

Actual 
Outcome

Variance 
Amount

Variance 
%

ASSETS

Current Assets  17 492 744  18 880 148  18 880 148  18 454 272  6 661 748 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1a  15 292 744  10 160 596  10 160 596  13 278 532  3 117 936 31%

Receivables from exchange transactions 1b  1 100 000  1 100 000  1 100 000  752 164  347 836 32%

Inventory 1c  900 000  200 000  200 000  3 235 871  (3 035 871) -1518%

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 1d  200 000  200 000  200 000  1 187 705  (987 705) -494%

Deferred tax 1e  -    7 219 552  7 219 552  -    7 219 552 100%

Non-Current Assets  69 100 224  73 920 198  73 920 198  82 400 579  (8 480 381)

Property, Plant and Equipment 1f  59 610 630  58 827 117  58 827 117  59 420 271  593 154 1%

Intangible Assets 1g  144 144  538 578  538 578  671 228  132 650 25%

Biological Assets 1h  9 345 450  14 554 503  14 554 503  15 089 530  (535 027) -4%

Deferred tax 1i  -    -    -    7 219 551  (7 219 551) -100%

TOTAL ASSETS  86 592 968  92 800 346  92 800 346 100 854 851  (8 054 505)

NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities  6 350 000  5 196 973  5 196 973 21 455 742  (16 258 769)

Payables from exchange transactions 1j  3 200 000  300 000  300 000  5 834 200  (5 534 200) -1845%

Payables from non-exchange transactions  -    446 973  446 973  446 974  -   0%

Unspent Conditional Government Grants 
and Receipts

1k  -    1 300 000  1 300 000  5 748 198  (4 448 198) -342%

Current Employee benefits 1l  2 800 000  2 800 000  2 800 000  4 586 855  (1 786 855) -64%

Current portion of long-term liabilities 1m  -    87 536  (87 536) -100%

Taxes 1n  350 000  350 000  350 000  4 751 979  (4 401 979) -1258%

Non - Current Liabilities  -    -    -    122 420  (122 420)

Long-term liabilities 1o  -    -    -    122 420  (122 420) -100%

TOTAL LIABILITIES  6 350 000  5 196 973  5 196 973  21 578 162 

NET ASSETS  80 242 968  87 603 373  87 603 373  79 276 689 

Accumulated Surplus  80 242 969  87 603 372  87 603 372  79 276 686 

TOTAL NET ASSETS  86 592 968  92 800 346  92 800 346 100 854 851 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 JUNE 2020. COMPARISON OF ACTUAL FIGURES TO FINAL BUDGET
STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 JUNE 2020
COMPARISON OF ACTUAL FIGURES TO FINAL BUDGET       

The diffference between the final adjustments budget and the final budget are due to virements in terms of the entity’s approved policy.

Explanations of variances greater than 10% between final budget and actual income.

1a Some of the special projects for which funds were received from funders could not be implemented due to lockdown restrictions 
hence the higher than projected balance of cash and cash equivalents.

1b Projections were that a higher amount would remain unpaid by the parent at the end of the financial year. Only one invoice issued to 
the municipality for refurbishment of water schemes was not paid by year end. 

1c There was more that projected the value of inventory at hand in the form of livestock classified as inventory at year end. The stock 
will be taken for slaugher at the abattoir hence it is not classified as biological assets but inventory.

1d The balance is made up primarily of the amount brought forward from the previous financial year. The entity projected that the bulk of 
the balance would be cleared by the end of the financial year. The significant portion of the balance relates to transactions between 
the entity and the parent municipality.

1e The variance is due to change in classification of the deferred tax asset from being a current asset to non-current asset.

1f The projected year-end carrying amount of assets was underestimated hence the variance.

1g The variance is attributed to the acquision of software licences. It was funded through shifting of funds between budget line items. 

1h Some of the livestock projected to be sold by year end was sold hence the variance. A decision was taken to fatten them and then 
supply the abattoir instead of selling them as live animals.  

1j Projections were that balances owed by the entity would be settled by year-end but that was not the case hence the variance. 
Some of the balances were settled after year-end. 

1k Certain special projects for which funding was recieved could not be implented due to lockdown restrictions.  

1l A number of employees were working from home and did not utilise their annual leave days hence the higher than anticipated leave 
provision.

1m The variance is attributed to the short-term portion of the liability that arose from the acquisition of computer equipment 
through leasing and the original plan was to buy them instead of leasing.

1n Projections were that the bulk of the Vat payable balance will be settled at year end but that was not the case hecne the variance. 
Some of the invoices issued were not paid by customers hence Vat was not paid over to SARS.

1o The variance is attributed to the long-term portion of the liability that arose from the acquisition of computer equipment through 
leasing and the original plan was to buy them instead of leasing.

Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd
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2019/2020

Notes Original 
Budget

Final Adjustments 
Budget

Final 
Budget

Actual 
Outcome

Variance 
Amount

Variance 
%

REVENUE

Non-exchange Revenue  52 846 066  61 183 885  61 183 885  46 514 585 

Transfers and Subsidies 2a  52 846 066  61 183 885  61 183 885  46 514 585  (14 669 300) -24%

Exchange Revenue  37 760 748  31 740 624  31 740 624  24 784 089 

Interest Earned - external investments  1 300 000  400 000  400 000  385 520  (14 480) -4%

Sale of Goods and Rendering of Services 2b  36 460 748  31 340 624  31 340 624  24 398 569  (6 942 055) -22%

Gains  110 000  2 140 000  2 140 000  9 073 081 

Adjustments to Biological Assets 2c  70 000  2 100 000  2 100 000  6 604 567  4 504 567 215%

Gains on disposal of Property, 
Plant and Equipment

2d  40 000  40 000  40 000  4 731  (35 269) -88%

Intercompany Transactions - 
Donation of Assets

2e  -    -    -    2 463 783  2 463 783 100%

Total Revenue  90 716 814  95 064 509  95 064 509  80 371 755  14 692 754 

EXPENDITURE

Employee related costs 2f  45 486 915  44 706 503  44 706 503  45 573 205  (324 562) -1%

Board of directors related costs 2g  1 405 128  1 187 628  1 187 628  932 106  255 522 22%

Depreciation and Amortisation 2h  3 723 570  4 702 498  4 702 498  5 466 038  (763 540) -16%

Repairs and Maintenance 2i  220 000  175 000  175 000  145 654  29 346 17%

Finance Charges 2j  37 800  37 800  37 800  70 020  (32 220) -85%

Operational costs 2k  34 556 422  40 239 729  40 239 729  31 933 745  7 763 844 19%

Contracted services 2l  4 977 443  1 703 427  1 703 427  2 124 547  (421 120) -25%

Losses - Biological Assets 2m  150 000  100 000  100 000  241 200  (141 200) -141%

Total Expenditure  90 557 278  92 852 584  92 852 584  86 486 515  6 366 069 

(Loss)/Profit before tax for the year  159 536  2 211 925  2 211 925  (6 114 760)  8 326 685 

Income tax  -   

(Loss)/Profit after tax for the year  159 536  2 211 925  2 211 925  (6 114 760)  8 326 685 

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020. COMPARISON OF ACTUAL 
FIGURES TO FINAL BUDGET

Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 JUNE 2020
COMPARISON OF ACTUAL FIGURES TO FINAL BUDGET

The diffference between the final adjustments budget and the final budget are due to virements in terms of the entity’s approved policy.

Explanations of variances greater than 10% between final budget and actual income.

2a Funding for certain budgeted projects from the parent municipality was not received and in certain instances implementation of pro-
jects was impacted negatively by lockdown restrictions hence funds received could not be accounted for as revenue but as a liability.

2b Missed revenue targets for the fresh produce market, farms and water services are the main cause of the variance. The market is 
still unable to attract additional market agents to trade at its floor. As far as the farms are concerned, a decision was taken to supply 
the bulk of its livestock to the abattoir instead of selling it. Lastly, change in invoicing the municipality based on work done in water 
schemes meant that the entity could not recover all of its water operational overheads. 

2c Livestock at hand appreciated in value more than originally anticipated. Valuation of livestock was conducted by an independent and 
professional Veterinarian. 

2d Disposal of redundant assets was planned to take place in the third quarter of the financial year. It could not be conducted due to 
COVID-19 lockdown restrictions.

2e This relates to houses built on behalf of the entity at Adam Kok Farms by the parent municipality. The donation was not anticipated 
hence its value was not accrued in the budget.

2f The variance in mainly attributed to increase in the number of annual leave days due to employees. The Entity projected a reduction 
in the number of employee leave days. However, many employees were working from home and did not utilise their annual leave 
days and this meant an increase leave provision which also affected employee related costs.

2g Owing to lockdown restrictions, Board and Committee meetings were held virtually in the second half of the financial year hence the 
savings on the budget.

2h Budgeted depreciation of assets was undersestimated hence the variance.

2i This variance is due to efficiencies otherwise assets requiring repairs and maintenance were attended to.

2j The variance is attributed mainly to interest charged by the parent municipality on overdue water account at Kei Fresh Produce Mar-
ket which was not budgeted for. Part of the balance originated before the market was transferred to Ntinga.

2k Budgeted opertional costs included expenditure on special projects. As stated in 2a above, funding for certain projects was either not 
received or was received late and that negatively impacted spending. In addition, due to lockdown restrictions in the second half of 
the financial year and staff having to work from home there were savings on some of the budgeted operational expenditure items.

2l The variance is mainly due to insurance premiums paid for RAFI assets. Actual payments amounting to R443,212 are part of actual 
contracted services expenditure but they were not budgeted for under RAFI funding received from the parent municipality hence the 
variance.

2m Although current year losses due to deaths of livestock are significantly lower than the R454,650 of the previous financial year, the 
actual amount was more than the budget estimate. There was an outbreak of red water desease in the farms area which resulted to 
deaths of livestock and this was not anticipated.

Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd
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2019/2020

Notes Original 
Budget

Final 
Adjustments 

Budget

Final 
Budget

Actual 
Outcome

Variance 
Amount

Variance 
%

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts  90 556 814  90 820 572  90 820 572  83 071 869 

Grants and public contributions 3a  38 914 399  59 189 948  59 189 948  49 297 177  (9 892 771) -17%

Sales of goods and services 3b  50 342 415  31 230 624  31 230 624  33 389 172  2 158 548 7%

Interest Earned - external investments  1 300 000  400 000  400 000  385 520  (14 480) -4%

Payments  (82 747 254)  (87 164 713)  (87 164 713)  (79 917 069)

Suppliers 3c  (37 222 539)  (41 799 782)  (41 799 782)  (35 016 801)  6 782 981 -16%

Employees and directors  (45 486 915)  (45 327 131)  (45 327 131)  (44 830 248)  496 883 -1%

Finance charges 3d  (37 800)  (37 800)  (37 800)  (70 020)  (32 220) 85%

Cash utilised by operations  7 809 560  3 655 859  3 655 859  3 154 800 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 3e  (1 822 000)  (1 768 510)  (1 768 510)  (673 495)  1 095 015 62%

Proceeds on Disposal of Fixed Assets 3f  120 000  120 000  120 000  17 112  (102 888) -86%

Purchase of Intangible Assets 3g  -    -    -    (132 958)  (132 958) -100%

Purchase of Biological assets 3h  (700 000)  (700 000)  (700 000)  (947 786)  (247 786) -35%

Net Cash from Investing Activities  (2 402 000)  (2 348 510)  (2 348 510)  (1 737 127)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New loans raised 3i  -    -    -    270 189  270 189 100%

Loans repaid 3j  -    -    -    (147 769)  (147 769) -100%

Net Cash from Financing Activities  -    -    -    122 420 

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS

 5 407 560  1 307 349  1 307 349  1 540 094 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the  
beginning of the year

 9 885 184  6 282 309  6 282 309  6 282 309 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of 
the year

 15 292 744  7 589 658  7 589 658  13 278 532 

NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH 
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 5 407 560  1 307 349  1 307 349  6 996 223 

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
CASHFLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020. COMPARISON OF ACTUAL FIGURES TO FINAL BUDGET

Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 JUNE 2020     
  COMPARISON OF ACTUAL FIGURES TO FINAL BUDGET

The diffference between the final adjustments budget and the final budget are due to virements in terms of the entity’s approved policy.

Explanations of variances greater than 10% between final budget and actual income.

3a Funding for certain projects from the parent municipality was not received. In addition, funding projected to be received in relation to 
the labour activation programme was not received because the project had not yet commenced.

3b Missed revenue collection targets for the fresh produce market, farms and water services are the main cause of the variance.  

3c Funding for certain projects was not received hence related payments were not made. In addition, due to lockdown restrictions in the 
second half of the financial year and staff having to work from home there was less than estimated spending on some of the budget-
ed operational expenditure items.

3d The variance is attributed mainly to interest charged by the parent municipality on overdue water account at Kei Fresh Produce Mar-
ket. This was not budgeted for. 

3e Some of the budgeted capital expenditure on items such as the meat market and the abattoir was delayed by factors such as the 
lockdown restrictions. 

3f Disposal of redundant assets was planned to take place in the third quarter of the financial year. It could not be conducted due to 
COVID-19 lockdown restrictions.

3g The variance is attributed to the acquision of software licences. It was funded through shifting of funds between budget line items. 

3h The budget relates to the acquisition of heifers. Purchase prices were favourable hence more than the projected amount was spent. 
Excess spending was funded through shifting of funds from other budget line items. 

3i The variance is attributed to the finance lease raised as a result of acquisition of computer equipment through leasing and the original 
plan was to buy them cash instead of leasing.

3j The variance is attributed to the finance lease repayments as a result of acquisition of computer equipment through leasing and the 
original plan was to buy them cash instead of leasing.

Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd
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1. Accounting Principles and Policies Applied In The Annual Financial 
Statements             
1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of 
accounting and are in accordance with historical cost convention un-
less specified otherwise.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) and effective standards 
of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP), including any 
interpretations and directives issued by the Accounting Standards 
Board (ASB) in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal Fi-
nance Management Act, (Act No 56 of 2003).
  
Accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions 
not covered by the GRAP reporting framework have been developed 
in accordance with GRAP 3.      

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been 
consistently applied except where an exemption has been granted, 
are disclosed below.      
   
Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset except 
when offsetting is permitted or required by a Standard of GRAP or any 
relevant Legislation.      
     
The accounting policies applied are consistent with those used to 
present the previous year’s financial statements, unless explicitly 
stated otherwise.  The details of any changes in accounting policies 
are explained in the relevant notes to the financial statements. 

1.2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS 

The Entity has applied the effective standards, interpretations and 
directives of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) appli-
cable to it that are issued and approved by the Accounting Standards 
Board.   

The Entity has not early-adopted any standard of GRAP that is not yet 
effective. 

New standards and interpretations    
 
GRAP 109: Accounting by Principals and Agents

The objective of this Standard is to outline principles to be used by an 
entity to assess whether it is party to a principal-agent arrangement, 
and whether it is a principal or an agent in undertaking transactions in 
terms of such an arrangement. The Standard does not introduce new 
recognition or measurement requirements for revenue, expenses, as-
sets and/or liabilities that result from principal-agent arrangements. 
The Standard does however provide guidance on whether  revenue, 
expenses, assets and/or liabilities should be recognised by an agent 
or a principal, as well as prescribe what information should be dis-
closed when an entity is a principal or an agent.      
   
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 

April 1, 2020.      

The Entity expects to adopt the standard in the 2020/2021 annual 
financial statements.

1.3 PRESENTATION CURRENCY    
      
Amounts reflected in the financial statements are in South African 
Rand and at actual values. Financial values are rounded to the nearest 
one Rand.       
  

1.4 GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION   
    
These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern 
basis which assumes that Entity will continue in operation at-least for 
the next twelve (12) months.

1.5 COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 

When the presentation or classification of items in the financial state-
ments is amended, prior period comparative amounts are restated, 
unless a standard of GRAP does not require the restatements of com-
parative information.  The nature and reason for the reclassification 
is disclosed.  Where material accounting errors have been identified 
in the current year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is 
practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.  
Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current 
year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, 
and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.

1.6 AMENDED DISCLOSURE POLICY   
 
Amendments to accounting policies are reported as and when 
deemed necessary based on the relevance of any such amendment 
to the format and presentation of the financial statements.   
  

1.7 MATERIALITY

Material omissions or misstatements of items are material if they 
could, individually or collectively, influence the decision or assess-
ments of users made on the basis of the financial statements.  Mate-
riality depends on the nature or size of the omission or misstatements 
judged in the surrounding circumstances.  The nature or size of the 
information item, or a combination of both, could be the determining 
factor.  Materiality is determined as any amount that is higher than 1% 
of total expenditure.  This materiality is from management’s perspec-
tive and does not correlate with the auditor’s materiality.   
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1.8   PRESENTATION OF BUDGET INFORMATION  

The presentation of budget information is prepared in accordance 
with GRAP 24 and guidelines issued by National Treasury.  The com-
parison of budget and actual amounts are disclosed as a separate 
additional financial statement, namely Statement of comparison of 
budget and actual amounts.     
      
Budget information is presented on the accrual basis and is based 
on the same period as the actual amounts, i.e. 1 July 2019 to 30 June 
2020. The budget information is therefore on a comparable basis to 
the actual amounts.        
      
The comparable information includes the following: 
- the original and final budget amounts; 
- actual amounts and final budget amounts;   
  
Explanations for differences between the approved and final budget 
are included in the Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual 
Amounts.       
     
Explanations for material differences between the final budget 
amounts and actual amounts are included the Statement of Compar-
ison of Budget and Actual Amounts.

1.9 LEASES

1.9.1 Entity as Lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases where substantially all the risks 
and rewards associated with ownership of an asset are transferred 
to the Entity. Property, plant and equipment or intangible assets (ex-
cluding licensing agreements for such items as motion picture films, 
video recordings, plays, manuscripts, patents and copyrights) subject 
to finance lease agreements are initially recognised at the lower of 
the asset’s fair value and the present value of the minimum lease 
payments.  The corresponding liabilities are initially recognised at the 
inception of the lease and are measured as the sum of the minimum 
lease payments due in terms of the lease agreement, discounted for 
the effect of interest.  In discounting the lease payments, the Entity 
uses the interest rate that exactly discounts the lease payments and 
unguaranteed residual value to the fair value of the asset plus any 
direct costs incurred.     

Subsequent to initial recognition, the leased assets are accounted for 
in accordance with the stated accounting policies applicable to prop-
erty, plant and equipment, investment property or intangibles assets.  
The lease liability is reduced by the lease payments, which are allocat-
ed between the lease finance cost and the capital repayment using 
the effective interest rate method.  Lease finance costs are expensed 
when incurred.  The accounting policies relating to de-recognition of 
financial instruments are applied to lease payables. 

Operating leases are those leases that do not fall within the scope 
of the above definition.  Operating lease rentals are recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.  The difference 
between the straight-lined expenses and actual payments made will 
give rise to a liability.  The Entity recognises the aggregate benefit of 
incentives as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term, on a 
straight-line basis unless another systematic basis is representative 
of the time pattern of the lessee’s benefit from the use of the leased 
asset.

1.10 UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT 
GRANTS AND RECEIPTS

Conditional government grants are subject to specific conditions. This 
section equally applies to grant allocation from the parent munici-
pality to the extent that it is allocated to specific projects. If specific 
conditions are not met or unspent balances cannot be allocated to 
other projects, the monies received are repayable.   
      
Unspent conditional grants are financial liabilities that are separately 
reflected on the Statement of Financial Position. They represent un-
spent government grants, subsidies and contributions from the par-
ent municipality or other organs of state.  

This liability always has to be cash-backed. The following provisions 
are set for the creation and utilisation of this liability:

• Unspent conditional grants are recognised as a liability when the 
grant is received.

• When grant conditions are met an amount equal to the conditions 
met are transferred to revenue in the Statement of Financial Perfor-
mance.

• The cash which backs up the creditor is invested as individual in-
vestment or part of the general investments of the Entity until it is 
utilised.

• Interest earned on the investment is treated in accordance with 
grant conditions. If it is payable to the funder it is recorded as part 
of the creditor. If it is the Entity’s interest, it is recognised as interest 
earned in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.11 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Entity has a present legal or con-
structive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an 
outflow of resource embodying economic benefits or service poten-
tial will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of 
the provision can be made.  Provisions are reviewed at reporting date 
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate of future outflows 
of resources.  Where the effect is material, non-current provisions are 
discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects 
the market’s current assessment of the time value of money, adjusted 
for risks specific to the liability. 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
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The Entity does not recognise a contingent liability or contingent as-
set.  A contingent liability is disclosed unless the probability of an out-
flow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential 
is remote.  A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of eco-
nomic benefits or service potential is probable.   
  
Future events that may affect the amount required to settle an obli-
gation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is suf-
ficient objective evidence that they will occur.  Gains from the ex-
pected disposal of assets are not taken into account in measuring a 
provision.  Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.  
The present obligation under an onerous contract is recognised and 
measured as a provision.     
 
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the ex-
penditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting 
date.       
     
If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the 
obligation, the provision is de-recognised.   
  

1.12 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS    
       
1.12.1   Provision for Staff Leave    
    
Liabilities for annual leave are recognised as the leave accrues to em-
ployees. The liability is based on the total amount of leave days due to 
employees at year-end and also on the total remuneration package of 
the employee.        
      
Accumulating leave is carried forward and can be used in future pe-
riods if the current period’s entitlement is not used in full. All unused 
leave will be paid out to the specific employee at the end of that 
employee’s employment term or at a time determined and approved 
by the Board of Directors.

1.12.2   Staff Bonuses Accrued    

Liabilities for staff bonuses are recognised as they accrue to employ-
ees. The liability at year end is based on bonus accrued at year-end for 
each employee.      
    
1.12.3   Pension and retirement fund obligations   
    
The Entity provides retirement benefits for its employees on a defined 
contribution plan. Defined contribution plans are post-employment 
benefit plans under which the Entity pays fixed contributions into a 
separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obliga-
tion to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient 
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in 
the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for 
the payment of retirement benefits are recognised in the Statement 
of Financial Performance in the year they become payable.    
    

1.13 BORROWING COSTS    
     
Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred 
by the Entity in connection with the borrowing of funds.   
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which 
they are incurred.      
     
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction 
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised to the cost of the 
asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the 
period in which it is incurred.     
       

1.14 FINANCE CHARGES    
       
Finance charges comprise interest charges by providers of credit to 
the Entity. Finance charges are recognised as an expense in the peri-
od in which it is incurred.     
      

1.15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  
      
1.15.1   Initial Recognition     
    
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (in-
cluding infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the production 
or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative 
purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one year.  
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as 
an asset if, and only if it is probable that future economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the item will flow to the Entity, and 
the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably.  Items of 
property, plant and equipment are initially recognised as assets on 
acquisition date and are initially recorded at cost less any estimat-
ed residual value at the end of its lifespan.  The cost of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs 
attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary 
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Entity.  
Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.  The 
cost also includes the necessary costs of dismantling and removing 
the asset and restoring the site on which it is located.  
      
When significant components of an item of property, plant and equip-
ment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate 
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.  
 
Where an asset is acquired by the Entity for no or nominal consider-
ation (i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed to be equal 
to the fair value of that asset on the date acquired.  

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in ex-
change for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combi-
nation of monetary and non-monetary assets, the assets acquired is 
initially measured at fair value (the cost).  If the acquired item’s fair 
value is not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of 
the asset(s) given up.
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Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant 
and equipment when the Entity expects to use them during more 
than one period.  Similarly, if the major spare parts and servicing 
equipment can be used only in connection with an item of property, 
plant and equipment, they are accounted for as property, plant and 
equipment.

1.15.2   Subsequent Measurement – Cost Model   
    
Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equip-
ment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses.  Land is not depreciated as it is 
deemed to have an indefinite useful life.    
       
 
Where the Entity replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises the part 
of the asset being replaced and capitalises the new component.  Sub-
sequent expenditure incurred on an asset is capitalised when it in-
creases the capacity or future economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the asset.     
   
1.15.3   Depreciation and Impairment    
    
Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.  
Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use, i.e. when 
it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management. Components of 
assets that are significant in relation to the whole asset and that have 
different useful lives are depreciated separately. The estimated useful 
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each 
year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on 
a prospective basis.  The annual depreciation rates are based on the 
following estimated useful lives:

Buildings   Years  

Buildings    30
   
Other assets   
Computer hardware  5
Office equipment   5
Furniture and fittings  6
Motor vehicles   5
Agricultural equipment  6
Network hardware   5
Plant and equipment  6
   
Finance lease assets   
   
Computer Equipment  5

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date 
for any indication of material impairment. If any such indication ex-
ists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The impairment 

recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance is the excess 
of the carrying value over the recoverable amount.  
  
An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carry-
ing amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined had no impairment been recognised. A reversal of 
impairment is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance. 
  
1.15.4   De-recognition     
     
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the 
asset is disposed or when there are no further economic benefits 
or service potential expected from the use of the asset. The gain 
or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the 
sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in the State-
ment of Financial Performance.

1.16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS    
     
1.16.1   Initial Recognition     
  
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without 
physical substance.         
  
An asset meets the identifiability criterion in the definition of an in-
tangible asset when it:     
   
is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from the 
Entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either 
individually or together with a related contract, identifiable asset or 
liability, regardless of whether the Entity intends to do so; or 
    
arises from binding arrangements from contracts, regardless of 
whether those rights are transferable or separable from the Entity 
or from other rights and obligations.    
 
The Entity recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Finan-
cial Position only when it is probable that the expected future eco-
nomic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset 
will flow to the Entity and the cost or fair value of the asset can be 
measured reliably.      
      
Internally generated intangible assets are subject to strict recogni-
tion criteria before they are capitalised.  Research expenditure is 
never capitalised, while development expenditure is only capitalised 
to the extent that:      
      
· the Entity intends to complete the intangible asset for use or sale;
· it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset;  
· the Entity has the resources to complete the project; 
· it is probable that the Entity will receive future economic benefits 
or service potential; and
· the Entity can measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the 
intangible asset during its development.
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Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.   
       
Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange for a non-mon-
etary asset or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and 
non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair 
value (the cost).  If the acquired item’s fair value is not determinable, 
it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

1.16.2   Subsequent Measurement – Cost Model  
 
Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and any accumulated impairments losses.  The cost 
of an intangible asset is amortised over the useful life where that 
useful life is finite.  Where the useful life is indefinite, the asset is not 
amortised but is subject to an annual impairment test.  
  
1.16.3   Amortisation and Impairment

Amortisation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of in-
tangible assets over its estimated useful lives using the straight-line 
method. Amortisation of an asset begins when it is available for use, 
i.e. when it is in the condition necessary for it to be capable of op-
erating in the manner intended by management. Components of as-
sets that are significant in relation to the whole asset and that have 
different useful lives are amortised separately. The estimated useful 
lives, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed at each 
year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for 
on a prospective basis.   The annual amortisation rates are based on 
the following estimated useful lives:

Intangible Assets   Years   
      
Computer Software   5   
   
1.16.4   De-recognition     
     
Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed or 
when there are no further economic benefits or service potential 
expected from the use of the asset.  The gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or retirement of an intangible asset is determined as the 
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is 
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.  
   

1.17 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS    
   
1.17.1   Initial Recognition     
   
A biological asset or agricultural produce is recognised when, and 
only when:      
  
· the Entity controls the asset as a result of past events;
· it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the asset will flow to the Entity;
· livestock is expected to be kept for a period extending beyond 

twelve months for breeding purposes;
· and the fair value or cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 
    
Biological assets are initially measured at their fair value less cost 
to sell.

1.17.2   Subsequent Measurement    
     
Biological assets are measured at their fair value less cost to sell. 
    
The fair value of cattle is determined based on market prices of live-
stock of similar age, breed, and genetic merit in the local industry.   
    
A gain or loss arising on initial recognition of biological assets at fair 
value less cost to sell is recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Performance for the period in which it arises.

1.18 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS  
  
1.18.1   Cash-generating assets    
   
Cash-generating assets are assets held with the primary objective of 
generating a commercial return. 

The Entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is an in-
dication that an asset may be materially impaired. If any indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, 
the Entity estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.   
  
In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired, the Entity considers the following indications:  
  
(a) External sources of information   

• During the period, an asset’s market value has declined signifi-
cantly more than would be expected as a result of the passage of 
time or normal use.

• Significant changes with an adverse effect on the Entity have tak-
en place during the period, or will take place in the near future, 
in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in 
which the Entity operates or in the market to which an asset is 
dedicated.

• Market interest rates or other market rates of return on invest-
ments have increased during the period, and those increases are 
likely to affect the discount rate used in calculating an asset’s val-
ue in use and decrease the asset’s recoverable amount materially.
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(b) Internal sources of information   

• Evidence is available of obsolescence or physical damage of an 
asset.

• Significant changes with an adverse effect on the Entity have tak-
en place during the period, or are expected to take place in the 
near future, in the extent to which, or manner in which, an asset 
is used or is expected to be used. These changes include the asset 
becoming idle, plans to discontinue or restructure the operation 
to which an asset belongs, plans to dispose of an asset before the 
previously expected date, and reassessing the useful life of an 
asset as finite rather than indefinite.

• Evidence is available from internal reporting that indicates that the 
economic performance of an asset is, or will be, worse than ex-
pected.

The re-designation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-
cash generating asset or from a non-cash-generating asset to a 
cash-generating asset shall only occur when there is clear evidence 
that such a re-designation is appropriate. A re-designation, by itself, 
does not necessarily trigger an impairment test or a reversal of an 
impairment loss. Instead, the indication for an impairment test or a 
reversal of an impairment loss arises from, as a minimum, the indica-
tions listed above.      
      
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or 
cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its 
value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the 
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent 
of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying 
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of mon-
ey and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less 
costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. Impairment 
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance 
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the im-
paired asset.      
      
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amor-
tisation) charge for the asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate 
the asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), 
on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.  
   
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there 
is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may 
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the 
Entity estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previ-
ously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been 
a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recov-
erable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The 
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does 

not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no im-
pairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such re-
versal is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.18.2 Non-cash-generating assets 

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating 
assets. The Entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is 
an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, 
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the En-
tity estimates the asset’s recoverable service amount.   
  
In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired, the Entity considers the following indications: 

(a) External sources of information    
      
• Cessation, or near cessation, of the demand or need for services 

provided by the asset.

• Significant long-term changes with an adverse effect on the Entity 
have taken place during the period or will take place in the near fu-
ture, in the technological, legal or government policy environment 
in which the Entity operates.

(b)   Internal sources of information   
• Evidence is available of physical damage of an asset.  

 
• Significant long-term changes with an adverse effect on the Entity 

have taken place during the period, or are expected to take place 
in the near future, in the extent to which, or manner in which, an 
asset is used or is expected to be used. These changes include 
the asset becoming idle, plans to discontinue or restructure the 
operation to which an asset belongs, or plans to dispose of an 
asset before the previously expected date.   
 

• A decision to halt the construction of the asset before it is complete 
or in a usable condition.

 
• Evidence is available from internal reporting that indicates that the 

service performance of an asset is, or will be, significantly worse 
than expected.

An asset’s recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-
generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.  
If the recoverable service amount of an asset is less than it’s car-
rying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its 
recoverable service amount. That reduction is an impairment loss is 
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

The value in use of a non-cash-generating asset is the present value 
of the asset’s remaining service potential. The present value of the 
remaining service potential of the asset is determined using any one 
of the following approaches, depending on the nature of the asset in 
question: 
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•	depreciation replacement cost approach - the present value of the 
remaining service potential of an asset is determined as the de-
preciated replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of 
an asset is the cost to replace the asset’s gross service potential. 
This cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition. 
An asset may be replaced either through reproduction (replica-
tion) of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross ser-
vice potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as 
the reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is 
lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of 
such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service po-
tential of the asset.

•	restoration cost approach - the cost of restoring the service po-
tential of an asset to its pre-impaired level. Under this approach, 
the present value of the remaining service potential of the asset 
is determined by subtracting the estimated restoration cost of the 
asset from the current cost of replacing the remaining service po-
tential of the asset before impairment. The latter cost is usually 
determined as the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost 
of the asset, whichever is lower. 

•	service unit approach - the present value of the remaining service 
potential of the asset is determined by reducing the current cost 
of the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment, 
to conform with the reduced number of service units expected 
from the asset in its impaired state. As in the restoration cost ap-
proach, the current cost of replacing the remaining service poten-
tial of the asset before impairment is usually determined as the 
depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset before 
impairment, whichever is lower.    
       
 

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale 
of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, 
willing parties, less the costs of disposal.   
  
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit, 
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount in accordance with 
another Standard of GRAP. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset 
shall be treated as a revaluation decrease in accordance with that 
Standard of GRAP.      
      
The Entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any in-
dication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an 
asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indi-
cation exists, the Entity estimates the recoverable service amount 
of that asset.      
      
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset is re-
versed if there has been a change in the estimates used to deter-
mine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last impair-
ment loss was recognised. If this is the case, the carrying amount 
of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The in-
creased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an 
impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had 

no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.  
Such a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the Statement 
of Financial Performance.

1.19 INVENTORIES     
      
1.19.1   Initial Recognition     
    
Inventories comprise of current assets held for sale, consumption 
or distribution during the ordinary course of business.  Inventories 
are recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future 
economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will 
flow to the Entity, and the cost of the inventories can be measured 
reliably.  Inventories are initially recognised at cost.  Cost generally 
refers to the purchase price, plus non-recoverable taxes, transport 
costs and any other costs in bringing the inventories to their cur-
rent location and condition.  Where inventory is manufactured, con-
structed or produced, the cost includes the cost of labour, materials 
and overheads used during the manufacturing process.

Livestock that is acquired or identified for sale within a period of 
twelve months is classified as inventory.

Where inventory is acquired by the Entity for no or nominal consid-
eration (i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed to be 
equal to the fair value of the item on the date acquired.

1.19.2 Subsequent Measurement    
      
Inventories, consisting of consumable stores, raw materials, work-
in-progress and finished goods, are valued at the lower of cost and 
net realisable value unless they are to be distributed at no or nom-
inal charge, in which case they are measured at the lower of cost 
and current replacement cost.  Redundant and slow-moving inven-
tories are identified and written down.  Differences arising on the 
valuation of inventory are recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Performance in the year in which they arose.  The amount of any 
reversal of any write-down of inventories arising from an increase in 
net realisable value or current replacement cost is recognised as a 
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in 
the period in which the reversal occurs.   
 
The carrying amount of inventories is recognised as an expense in 
the period that the inventory was sold, distributed, written off or 
consumed, unless that cost qualifies for capitalisation to the cost 
of another asset.

1.20  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS   
    
Financial instruments recognised on the Statement of Financial 
Position include receivables (both from exchange transactions and 
non-exchange transactions), cash and cash equivalents, annuity 
loans and payables (both form exchange and non-exchange trans-
actions) and non-current investments.  The future utilization of Un-
spent Conditional Grants is evaluated in order to determine whether 
it is treated as financial instruments.
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1.20.1 Initial Recognition     
     
Financial instruments are initially recognised when the Entity be-
comes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument at 
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability 
not at fair value, transaction costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.  If 
finance charges in respect of financial assets and financial liabilities 
are significantly different from similar charges usually obtained in 
an open market transaction, adjusted for the specific risks of the 
Entity, such differences are immediately recognised in the period it 
occurs, and the unamortised portion adjusted over the period of the 
loan transactions.

1.20.2 Subsequent Measurement   
 
Financial assets are categorised according to their nature as either 
financial assets at fair value, financial assets at amortised cost or 
financial assets at cost.  Financial liabilities are categorised as either 
at fair value or financial liabilities carried at amortised cost.  The 
subsequent measurement of financial assets and liabilities depends 
on this categorisation.      
 
1.20.2.1  Receivables    
 
Receivables are classified as financial assets at amortised cost, and 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective in-
terest rate method.      
      
For amounts due from debtors carried at amortised cost, the Enti-
ty first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists 
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or 
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. 
Objective evidence of impairment includes significant financial dif-
ficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bank-
ruptcy or financial reorganisation and default or delinquency in pay-
ments (more than 90 days overdue).  If the Entity determines that no 
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed 
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a 
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and 
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individu-
ally assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or 
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assess-
ment of impairment.   
 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been in-
curred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference be-
tween the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of esti-
mated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses 
that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of the as-
set is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the 
amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Per-
formance. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced 
carrying amount based on the original effective interest rate of the 
asset. Loans together with the associated allowance are written 

off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all 
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Entity. 
If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment 
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the 
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment 
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If 
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is recognised in 
the Statement of Financial Performance.   
 
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted 
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate, if material. If a 
loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any 
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

1.20.2.2 Payables and Annuity Loans   

Financial liabilities consist of payables and annuity loans.  They are 
categorised as financial liabilities held at amortised cost, and are 
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at am-
ortised cost using an effective interest rate, which is the initial car-
rying amount, less repayments, plus interest.   
 
1.20.2.3  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand (including petty cash) and cash with 
banks.  Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments, 
readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are held with 
registered banking institutions with maturities of three months or 
less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.  For 
the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equiva-
lents comprise cash on hand, highly liquid deposits and net of bank 
overdrafts.  The Entity categorises cash and cash equivalents as fi-
nancial assets carried at amortised cost.   
 
Bank overdrafts are recorded based on the facility utilised.  Finance 
charges on bank overdraft are expensed as incurred.  Amounts ow-
ing in respect of bank overdrafts are categorised as financial liabili-
ties carried at amortised cost.

1.20.3 De-recognition of Financial Instruments      
       
1.20.3.1 Financial Assets     
   
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or 
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

• the Entity has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from 
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash 
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Entity has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Entity 
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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When the Entity has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from 
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and re-
wards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the old asset 
is derecognised and a new asset is recognised to the extent of the 
Entity’s continuing involvement in the asset.    
  
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the 
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying 
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that 
the Entity could be required to repay.    
 
When continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or 
purchased option (including a cash settled option or similar provi-
sion) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Entity’s continuing 
involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Entity 
may repurchase, except that in the case of a written put option (in-
cluding a cash settled option or similar provision) on an asset mea-
sured at fair value, the extent of the Entity’s continuing involvement 
is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and 
the option exercise price.

1.20.3.2 Financial Liabilities     
      
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the 
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.   
  
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an ex-
isting liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modi-
fication is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Financial Per-
formance.

1.20.4 Offsetting of Financial Instruments   
     
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount 
reported in the Statement of Financial Position if, and only if, there is 
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

1.21 REVENUE     
 
1.21.1 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions     
      
The Entity receives a major part of its income in the form of grants 
(referred to as government grants) from the parent municipality, the 
O.R. Tambo District Municipality.

Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to transactions 
where the Entity received revenue from another entity without di-
rectly giving approximately equal value in exchange.  Revenue from 

non-exchange transactions is generally recognised to the extent 
that the related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition as an 
asset and there is no obligation to repay the amount.  
 
Grants, transfers and donations received or receivable are rec-
ognised when the resources that have been transferred, meet the 
criteria for recognition as an asset. A corresponding liability is rec-
ognised to the extent that the grant, transfer or donation is condi-
tional. The liability is transferred to revenue as and when the condi-
tions attached to the grant are met.  Grants without any conditions 
attached are recognised as revenue when the asset is recognised. 

Revenue from public contributions and donations is recognised 
when all conditions associated with the contribution have been met 
or where the contribution is to finance property, plant and equip-
ment, when such items of property, plant and equipment qualifies for 
recognition and first becomes available for use by the Entity.  Where 
public contributions have been received, but the Entity has not met 
the related conditions, it is recognised as an unspent public contri-
bution (liability).      
      
Revenue from third parties i.e. insurance payments for assets im-
paired, are recognised when it can be measured reliably and is not 
being offset against the related expenses of repairs or renewals of 
the impaired assets.
 
Contributed property, plant and equipment is recognised when such 
items of property, plant and equipment qualifies for recognition and 
become available for use by the Entity. 

Revenue from the recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure is based on legislated procedures, including 
those set out in the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 
56 of 2003) and is recognised when the recovery thereof from the 
responsible officials is virtually certain. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable.      
      
When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, a Entity recognises 
an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the amount of the 
asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless 
it is also required to recognise a liability. Where a liability is required 
to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the 
amount required to settle the present obligation at the reporting 
date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised 
as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the 
taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the 
reduction in the liability will be recognised as revenue.
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1.21.2 Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrued 
to the Entity directly in return for services rendered or goods sold, 
the value of which approximates the consideration received or re-
ceivable.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following 
conditions have been satisfied:
 
• The Entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks 

and rewards of ownership of the goods.   
 

• The Entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement 
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective 
control over the goods sold.    
   

• The amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

• It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the transaction will flow to the Entity.  
 

• The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction 
can be measured reliably.

At the time of initial recognition the full amount of revenue is rec-
ognised where the Entity has an enforceable legal obligation to 
collect, unless the individual collectability is considered to be im-
probable. If the Entity does not successfully enforce its obligation to 
collect the revenue this would be considered a subsequent event. 

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate 
method. 

Revenue from the rental of facilities and equipment is recognised on 
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease agreement. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable. 

The amount of revenue arising on a transaction is usually deter-
mined by agreement between the Entity and the purchaser or user 
of the asset or service. It is measured at the fair value of the consid-
eration received or receivable taking into account the amount of any 
trade discounts and volume rebates allowed by the Entity. 

In most cases, the consideration is in the form of cash or cash equiv-
alents and the amount of revenue is the amount of cash or cash 
equivalents received or receivable. However, when the inflow of 
cash or cash equivalents is deferred, the fair value of the consid-
eration may be less than the nominal amount of cash received or 
receivable. When the arrangement effectively constitutes a financ-
ing transaction, the fair value of the consideration is determined by 
discounting all future receipts using an imputed rate of interest. The 
imputed rate of interest is the more clearly determinable of either:
• The prevailing rate for a similar instrument of an issuer with a 

similar credit rating;     
 

• A rate of interest that discounts the nominal amount of the instru-
ment to the current cash sales price of the goods or services.

The difference between the fair value and the nominal amount of 
the consideration is recognised as interest revenue.   
  
When goods or services are exchanged or swapped for goods or 
services which are of a similar nature and value, the exchange is not 
regarded as a transaction that generates revenue. When goods are 
sold or services are rendered in exchange for dissimilar goods or 
services, the exchange is regarded as a transaction that generates 
revenue. The revenue is measured at the fair value of the goods 
or services received, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash 
equivalents transferred. When the fair value of the goods or services 
received cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is measured at 
the fair value of the goods or services given up, adjusted by the 
amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred.

1.22 RELATED PARTIES
  
A related party is a person or an entity:   
 
• with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, 

or exercise significant influence over the other party, or vice 
versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint 
control. 

• The following are regarded as related parties of the Entity: 
  

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to 
the Entity if that person:
• has control or joint control over the Entity.
• has significant influence over the Municipalities. Significant in-

fluence is the power to participate in the financial and operating 
policy decisions of the Entity.

• is a member of the management of the Entity or its controlling 
entity.

(b) An entity is related to the Entity if any of the following condi-
tions apply:     

• the entity is a member of the same economic entity (which 
means that each controlling entity, controlled entity and fellow 
controlled entity is related to the others). 

• one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or 
an associate or joint venture of a member of an economic entity 
of which the other entity is a member).

• both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. 
• one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity 

is an associate of the third entity.
• the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of 

employees of either the Entity or an entity related to the Entity. If 
the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employ-
ers are related to the entity.    

• the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified 
in (a).

• a person identified in (a) has significant influence over that entity 
or is a member of the management of that entity (or its con-
trolling entity).
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Close members of the family of a person are those family members 
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by that person 
in their dealings with the Entity.  A person is considered to be a close 
member of the family of another person if they:

(a) are married or live together in a relationship similar to a marriage; or 
  
(b) are separated by no more than two degrees of natural or legal    
     consanguinity or affinity.
  
Management (formerly known as “Key Management”) includes all 
persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the Entity, including:  
  
(a) all members of the governing body of the Entity; 

(b)  a member of the governing body of an economic entity who 
has the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the Entity;   
 

(c) any key advisors of a member, or sub-committees, of the govern-
ing body who has the authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the Entity; and

(d) the senior management team of the Entity, including the chief 
executive officer or permanent head of the Entity, unless al-
ready included in (a).

Management personnel include:    
     
(a) All directors or members of the governing body of the Entity, be-

ing the Chairman of the Board and all other directors.

(b) Other persons having the authority and responsibility for plan-
ning, directing and controlling the activities of the reporting Enti-
ty being the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer an all 
other managers reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer

Remuneration of management includes remuneration derived for 
services provided to the Entity in their capacity as members of the 
management team or employees. Benefits derived directly or indi-
rectly from the Entity for services in any capacity other than as an 
employee or a member of management do not meet the definition 
of remuneration.  Remuneration of management excludes any con-
sideration provided solely as a reimbursement for expenditure in-
curred by those persons for the benefit of the Entity. 

The Entity operates in an economic environment currently dominat-
ed by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African gov-
ernment.  As a result of the Constitutional independence of all three 
spheres of government in South Africa, only parties within the same 
sphere of government will be considered to be related parties.  Only 
transactions with such parties which are not at arm’s length and not 
on normal commercial terms are disclosed.

As a municipal entity, the Entity is fully controlled by the parent 
municipality the O.R. Tambo District Municipality. As a development 
agency of the parent municipality, the Entity is inherently involved 

in a number of economic development operations, developmental 
commercial operations and community based organisations.

1.23 UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE   
 
Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budget-
ed, expenditure that is not in terms of the conditions of an allocation 
received from another sphere of government, Entity or organ of state 
and expenditure in a form of a grant that is not permitted in terms of 
the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003).  Unau-
thorised expenditure is accounted for as an expense (measured at 
actual cost incurred) in the Statement of Financial Performance and 
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the 
Statement of Financial Performance.   

1.24 IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal 
Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003), the Municipal Sys-
tems Act (Act No. 32 of 2000), the Public Office Bearers Act, and (Act. 
No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the Entity’s Supply Chain 
Management Policy.  Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised 
expenditure.  Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure 
(measured at actual cost incurred) in the Statement of Financial Per-
formance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as 
revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.25 FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE  
 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made 
in vain and could have been avoided had reasonable care been 
exercised.  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for as 
expenditure (measured at actual cost incurred) in the Statement of 
Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently ac-
counted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance. 
    
1.26 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND 
CONTINGENT ASSETS 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past 
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occur-
rence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Entity.  A contingent liability could 
also be a present obligation that arises from past events, but is not 
recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to the obligation or 
the amount of the obligation cannot be measures with sufficient 
reliability.       
     
The Entity does not recognise a contingent liability or contingent 
asset.  A contingent liability is disclosed unless the probability of an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service po-
tential is remote.  A contingent asset is disclosed where the inflow 
of economic benefits or service potential is probable.   

Management judgement is required when recognising and measur-
ing contingent liabilities.
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1.27 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Entity’s accounting policy, manage-
ment makes the following significant accounting judgements, esti-
mates and assumptions, which have the most significant effect on 
the amounts recognised in the financial statements: 

1.27.1 Impairment of Receivables   

The calculation in respect of the impairment of debtors is based on 
an assessment of the extent to which debtors have defaulted on 
payments already due, and an assessment of their ability to make 
payments based on their creditworthiness. This was performed per 
service-identifiable categories across all classes of debtors. 
  
1.27.2 Property, Plant and Equipment      

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on 
management’s estimation. Infrastructure’s useful lives are based 
on technical estimates of the practical useful lives for the different 
infrastructure types, given engineering technical knowledge of the 
infrastructure types and service requirements.  For other assets and 
buildings management considers the impact of technology, avail-
ability of capital funding, service requirements and required return 
on assets to determine the optimum useful life expectation, where 
appropriate. The estimation of residual values of assets is also based 
on management’s judgement whether the assets will be sold or 
used to the end of their useful lives, and in what condition they will 
be at that time.      
      
Management referred to the following when making assumptions 
regarding useful lives and residual values of property, plant and 
equipment.      
      
• The useful life of movable assets was determined using the age of 

similar assets available for sale in the active market. Discussions 
with people within the specific industry were also held to deter-
mine useful lives.

• Local Government Industry Guides was used to assist with the 
deemed cost and useful life of infrastructure assets.  
      

1.27.3   Intangible Assets  

The useful lives of intangible assets are based on management’s 
estimation. Management considers the impact of technology, avail-
ability of capital funding, service requirements and required return 
on assets to determine the optimum useful life expectation, where 
appropriate.       
      
Management referred to the following when making assumptions 
regarding useful lives of intangible assets:

· Reference was made to intangibles used within the Entity to deter-
mine the useful life of the assets.

1.27.4  Provisions and Contingent Liabilities   
 
Management judgement is required when recognising and measur-
ing provisions and when measuring contingent liabilities. Provisions 
are discounted where the time value effect is material.   
  
1.27.5 Revenue Recognition  

Accounting Policy on Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions 
and Accounting Policy on Revenue from Exchange Transactions de-
scribes the conditions under which revenue will be recognised by 
management of the Entity. 
   
In making their judgement, management considered the detailed 
criteria for the recognition of revenue as set out in GRAP 9: Revenue 
from Exchange Transactions and GRAP 23: Revenue from Non-Ex-
change Transactions.). Specifically, whether the Entity, when goods 
are sold, had transferred to the buyer the significant risks and re-
wards of ownership of the goods and when services are rendered, 
whether the service has been performed. The management of the 
Entity is satisfied that recognition of the revenue in the current year 
is appropriate.
  
1.27.6   Provision for Staff leave
 
Staff leave is accrued to employees according to collective agree-
ments. Provision is made for the full cost of accrued leave at report-
ing date. This provision will be realised as employees take leave, 
leave gratuity is paid or when employment is terminated.

1.28 VALUE ADDED TAX
    
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amounts 
of value added tax. The net amount of Value Added Tax recoverable 
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of re-
ceivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.  
  
1.29 INCOME TAX
  
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current 
tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.   
       
   
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable 
income or loss for the period, using applicable tax rates at the re-
porting date.

1.30 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS    
     
Capital commitments disclosed in the financial statements rep-
resents the contractual balance committed to capital projects on 
reporting date that will be incurred in the period subsequent to the 
specific reporting date.     
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1.31 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE     

Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the date 
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.  Two types of events can be identified:

• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date); and 

• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting date).

• If non-adjusting events after the reporting date are material, the Entity discloses the nature and an estimate of the financial effect.  
            

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
30 JUNE 2020

Notes  2020  2019 

 R  R

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Call Investments Deposits  11 982 914  4 600 722 

Bank Accounts  1 276 553  1 668 332 

Petty Cash Balances  19 065  13 255 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents  13 278 532  6 282 309 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held and short term deposits. 
The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

The entity has the following bank accounts:

Current Accounts

FNB - Account Number  62166804742 (Primary Bank Account)  345 627  1 175 914 

FNB - Account Number  6216680472 (Salaries Account)  93 298  20 688 

FNB Call Account 62766535622  642 906  275 038 

ECDC Cooperatives Trust Fund

FNB Call Account 62771259671  194 722  196 693 

 1 276 553  1 668 333 

FNB - Account Number  6216680472 (Primary Bank Account)

Cash book balance at beginning of year  1 175 914  2 644 168 

Cash book balance at end of year  345 627  1 175 914 

Bank statement balance at beginning of year  1 175 914  2 644 168 

Bank statement balance at end of year  327 701  1 175 914 

FNB - Account Number  6216680472 (Salaries Account)

Cash book balance at beginning of year  20 688  11 074 

Cash book balance at end of year  93 298  20 688 

Bank statement balance at beginning of year  20 688  11 074 

Bank statement balance at end of year  93 298  20 688 

Trading Account 62254987351

Cash book balance at beginning of year  -  5 462
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Notes  2020  2019 

 R  R

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank statement balance at beginning of year  (2 326)  - 

Bank statement balance at end of year  -  (2 326)

Kei Fresh current account 62192051698

Cash book balance at beginning of year  14 540  -

Cash book balance at end of year  -  14 540

Bank statement balance at beginning of year  14 540 -

Bank statement balance at end of year -  14 540

FNB Call Account 62771259671

Cash book balance at beginning of year  196 693  -

Cash book balance at end of year  194 722  196 693

Bank statement balance at beginning of year  196 693  -

Bank statement balance at end of year  194 722  196 693

FNB Call Account 62766535622

Cash book balance at beginning of year  275 038  31 121 

Cash book balance at end of year  642 906  275 038 

Bank statement balance at beginning of year  275 038  31 121 

Bank statement balance at end of year  594 113  275 038 

FNB Call Account 62773058849

Cash book balance at beginning of year  84 345  - 

Cash book balance at end of year  88 672  84 345 

Bank statement balance at beginning of year  275 038  31 121 

Bank statement balance at end of year  88 672  275 038 

Call Investment Deposits

Call investment deposits consist out of the following accounts:

FNB Account number 62181670540 (Ntinga)  10 809 546  2 950 538 

FNB Account number 62185096122 (Umzimkant Read Meat Abbatoir)  636 266  934 883 

FNB Call 62508942407  92 593  87 586 

FNB Call 62578074149  352 731  541 960 

FNB Call Account 62785410293  3 106  1 410 

FNB Call Account 62773058849  88 672  84 345 

 11 982 914  4 600 722
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Notes  2020  2019 

 R  R

3. RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

3.1 Credit sales of goods and rentals  1 178 358  11 560 158 

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts  (426 194)  (339 752)

Total Net Receivables from Exchange Transactions  752 164  11 220 406

Projects amount include balances that are owed by Abattoir and Kei 
Fresh Produce Market customers or tenants. Consumer debtors are re-
quired to settle issued invoices within 30 days. This credit period granted 
is considered to be consistent with the terms used in the public sector, 
through established practices and legislation. Discounting of trade and 
other receivables on initial recognition is not deemed necessary. 

Ageing of Receivables from Exchange Transactions:

(Projects):  Ageing

Current (0 - 30 days)  180 712  8 938 335 

31 - 60 Days  53 331  70 885 

61 - 90 Days  503 607  11 611 

+ 90 Days  440 709  2 539 327 

Total  1 178 358  11 560 158

3.2 Reconciliation of Provision for Bad Debts

Balance at beginning of year  339 752  537 888 

Contribution to provision - KFPM  -    - 

Receivables balance correction  -    (142 452)

Current year provision adjustment  86 442  (55 684)

Restated balance  426 194  339 752

The Provision for Impairment could be allocated between the different 
classes of receivables as follows:

  

Trading Enterprises  426 194  339 752

The fair value of trade receivables approximates their carrying amounts.  426 194  339 752

Provision is made up of balances that are older than 90 days. 
However, amounts that are owed by the parent municipality and those 
that are older than 90 days but paid after year end were excluded from 
the provision amount.
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Notes  2020  2019 

 R  R

4. INVENTORY

Opening balance  170 266  982 361 

Consumable stores  83 091  97 544 

Livestock  -  872 050 

Merchandise (Meat)  87 175  12 767 

Additions  5 992 308  1 398 591 

Consumable stores  288 761  208 909 

Livestock transfers from Biological Assets  5 456 129  933 364 

Merchandise (Meat)  247 418  256 318 

Issued ( Expensed)  (2 926 702)  (2 210 686)

Consumable stores  (83 091)  (223 362)

Livestock  (2 756 436)  (1 805 414)

Merchandise (Meat)  (87 175)  (181 910)

Closing Balance

Consumable stores  288 761  83 091 

Livestock  2 699 693  - 

Merchandise (Meat)  247 418  87 175 

Total Inventory  3 235 872  170 266

  

No inventory assets were pledged as security for liabilities.

5. RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Other Receivables

       Advance payments and sundry debtors  1 036 918  21 811

       Prepayments - Deposits  192 597  192 597

   Sub-total  1 229 515  214 408

   Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts  (41 810)  (27 959)

   Net - Other Receivables  1 187 705  186 449

       O.R. Tambo D.M. Grants and Receipts  -  6 128

Total Net Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions  1 187 705  192 577

Reconciliation of Provision for Bad Debts

Balance at beginning of year  27 959  20 735

Current year provision adjustment  13 851  7 224

Balance at end of the year  41 810  27 959

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
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Notes  2020  2019 

 R  R

6. TAXES

6.1 VAT PAYABLE  (4 751 979)  (2 654 559)

 (4 751 979)  (2 654 559)

6.2 VAT RECEIVABLE  -  -

NET VAT RECEIVABLE/(PAYABLE)  (4 751 979)  (2 654 559)

VAT is receivable/payable on the payment basis.

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax

Current year  -  -

Deferred tax

Income Tax - current year  -  (5 353 124)

Major components:

     - Assessed loss  -  (3 351 935)

     - Timing differences  -  (2 001 189)

Tax charged or (credited) to Statement of Financial Performance  -  (5 353 124)

With effect from 01 July 2017 the Entity started to operate as a State 
Owned Company and is in compliance with the South African Income 
Tax Act 58 of 1962. 

No provision has been made for tax as the company does not anticipate 
making taxable income in the next 12 months. 

2019/20 Income tax can be reconciled to accounting profit / 
loss as follows:

Accounting Loss before tax  (6 114 760)  (11 971 198)

Tax effect on loss before tax  (1 712 133)  (3 351 935)

Adjusted for tax effect of:

   - Fair Value Adjustments  (1 781 743)  (996 382)

   - Donations  (689 859)  (3 018 777)

   - Assets write-offs  -  2 040 559 

   - Temporary timing differences  -  (26 589)

Tax amount not recognised  (4 183 735) -

Tax credited to Statement of Financial Performance  -  (5 353 124)
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Notes  2020  2019 

 R  R

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Tax losses can be reconciled as follows:

Loss before tax  (6 114 760)  (11 971 198)

Income Tax calculated at 28% 28% 28%

Adjusted for tax effect of:

     - Fair value adjustments 29% 8%

     - Donations 11% 25%

     - Assets write-offs  -   -17%

     - Temporary timing differences  -   0,2%

     - Tax amount not recognised -68%  -   

Effective Tax Rate  - 45%

8. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax arising from prior period adjustments  7 219 551  1 866 427 

Deferred tax movement for the year  -  5 353 124 

Deferred tax asset  7 219 551  7 219 551 

Deferred Tax is comprised of: 

Opening balance  (7 219 551)  (1 866 427)

Current movement:

     - Unealised Losses  (23 386)  (5 326 535)

     - Leave Pay  223 568  180 366 

     - Bonuses  120 885  15 760 

     - Assets amortisation and impairments  (321 067)  (222 715)

 (7 219 551)  (7 219 551)

The deferred tax amount relates to unused tax credits. It is recognised to the extent that there will be future 
taxable profits in excess of profits arising from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences.

At the end of the 2019/2020 financial year the Entity reviewed the carrying amount of the deferred tax asset 
and concluded that in the foreseeable future it is not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to 
allow the benefit of the deferred tax asset to be utilised beyond the balance carried forward from the 2018/19 
financial year. 

In the previous financial year, 2018/19 Deferred tax asset was errorneously misclassified as a current asset 
instead of non-current asset. It has been reclassified from being current asset to be a non-current asset in 
the current year. This note disclosure has also been corrected. A correction correction of an error note has 
included under note number 28.

The estimated tax loss available for set off against future taxable income amounts to R11,403,286 and in 
2018/19 it was R7,219,551.
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 R  R

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Carrying amounts  59 420 271  61 518 435

See appendix A on page 47

There are no assets pledged as security.

The effective date of the assessments and revaluation was 30 June 2018. Valuations were performed by  
independent professional valuer, Mzizi 4291 Properties CC (Reg.no. 2010/072405/23), a registered valuer in 
terms of Section 20(2) of the Property Valuers Profession Act (47 of 2000).

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer Software

Net Carrying amount at 1 July  781 248  644 144

Cost  1 803 616  1 488 036 

Accumulated Amortisation  (765 921)  (587 445)

Transfers from KFPM - Accumulated Amortisation  (236 499)  (236 499)

Accumulated Impairment  (19 948)  (19 948)

Additions  132 958  -

Transfers from KFPM - Cost  -   315 580

Amortisation  (242 978)  (178 476)

Net Carrying amount at 30 June  671 228  781 248

Cost  1 936 574  1 803 616 

Accumulated Amortisation  (1 008 899)  (765 921)

Transfers from KFPM - Accumulated Amortisation  (236 499)  (236 499)

Accumulated Impairment  (19 948)  (19 948)
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Notes  2020  2019 

 R  R

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The following material intangible assets are included in the carrying 
value in the previous page

Carrying Value

Description

Computer software  671 228  781 248

No intangible asset were assessed having an indefinite useful life.

There are no internally generated intangible assets at reporting date.

There are no intangible assets pledged as security for liabilities

11. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS          (See appendix B on page 48)

Carrying amounts  15 089 530  13 234 502

No title or other restrictions are placed on biological assets.

No biological assets were pledged as security for liabilities.

There are no commitments for the  acquisition of biological assets.

Biological assets are located at Adam Kok Farms and Ikwezi Dairy Farm. The primary activities revolving 
around biological assets are livestock breeding and heifer exchange.                                                                                            

Financial risks are managed as follows:

- Livestock is insured.

 - Regular inspection and maintenance of boundary fences to manage movement of biological assets.

 - Regular monitoring and reporting of quantities by Entity staff.

- A contract is entered into with a Veterinarian for medication and vaccination.

- Livestock is regularly vaccinated.

The effective date of the assessments and valuation was 30 June 2020. Valuations were performed by an  
independent professional veterinarian, Dr M. J. Guma , a registered veterinarian in terms of Veterinary and Pa-
ra-Veterinary Professions Act No. 19 of 1982.
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 R  R

12. PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trade Payables  379 281  1 173 298 

Other accruals  4 603 755  3 256 065 

  Annual bonus  1 262 745  928 281 

  Sundry Creditors  3 341 010  2 327 784 

Salary deductions  851 164  617 716 

 5 834 200  5 047 079 

Payables are being recognised net of any discounts.

Payables are being paid within 30 days as prescribed by the MFMA. This credit period granted is considered to 
be consistent with the terms used in the public sector, through established practices and legislation. Dis-
counting of trade and other payables on initial recognition is not deemed necessary

The carrying value of trade and other payables approximates its fair value.

All payables are unsecured.

13. PAYABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Sustainable Villages                  SURUDEC - Baziya Sustainable Village Project  446 974  446 974

Total Payables from non-exchange transactions  446 974  446 974

This balance is payable to the European Commission. It originates from expenditure incurred by the Entity 
which the Commission declared as inelligible. The Entity was advised to wait for a directive before making the 
payment.

14. UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND RECEIPTS

Unspent Grants  5 748 198  3 290 842

   Provincial and National Government Grants  -  -   

   District Municipality  5 423 434  3 026 046 

   Other Grant Providers  324 764  264 796 

Total Conditional Grants and Receipts  5 748 198  3 290 842

Unspent grants can mainly be attributed to projects that are work in progress on the relevant financial year-
ends.

See appendix “C” for reconciliation of grants from other spheres of government. The entity complied with the 
conditions attached to all grants received to the extent of revenue recognised. No grants were withheld. 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
30 JUNE 2020



147146

Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd

Notes  2020  2019 

 R  R

15. CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Provision for Staff Leave  4 586 855  3 788 397

Total Current Employee Benefits  4 586 855  3 788 397

The movement in current employee benefits are reconciled as follows:

Provision for Staff Leave

Balance at beginning of year  3 788 398  3 144 233 

Current year contribution  815 956  790 070 

Expenditure incurred  (17 499)  (145 905)

Balance at end of year  4 586 855  3 788 398

Staff leave accrued to employees according to collective agreement. 
Provision is made for the full cost of accrued leave at reporting date but 
limited to 35 leave days. This provision will be realised as employees take leave, 
when employment is terminated or any circumstance approved by 
the board of directors. 

16. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

Future minimum lease payments of the operating lease

Within one year  126 000  126 000 

Later than one year but not later than five years  451 500  504 000 

Later than five years  -  73 500 

Total Operating Lease Payments  577 500  703 500

The operating lease consist of an agreement entered into with Missionary Sisters 
of the Precious Blood over a period of 12 years. The entity leases a Dairy Farm. The 
latest agreement was entered into on 1 January 2013 and expires on  29 January 
2025. The initial rental amount in the contract is R 10,500.00 (Including VAT) per 
month.

The entity has not engage in any sub-lease arrangements.

The entity did not pay any contingent rent during the year.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
30 JUNE 2020

Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd

Notes  2020  2019 

 R  R

17. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Capitalised Lease Liability - At amortised cost  209 956 -

 209 956 -

Current Portion transferred to current liabilities

    Capitalised lease liability - At amortised cost  (87 536) -

Total long term liabilities - at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method.

 122 420 -

Future minimum lease payments of the finance lease

Up to 1 year  87 536  -

1 to 3 years  273 305  -

More than 3 years  -  -

 360 841 -

The minimum lease period is 36 months with the final lease payment made on 
01/09/2022.

The capitalised lease liability consists of the following contracts:

Supplier                     Description of the leased item              Effective

Vodacom                   Thinkpad Smart PC’s                                 10%

The contract has no annual escalations.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
30 JUNE 2020
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18. TRANSFERS AND SUBSIDIES

O.R. Tambo District Municipality - Unconditional  41 015 026  27 053 509 

O.R. Tambo District Municipality - Conditional  5 409 627  5 166 281 

Other grants  89 932  2 285 820 

Total income  46 514 585  34 505 610

Total Grants

Opening balance  3 290 842  1 766 208 

Grants received - O.R. Tambo District Municipality  49 142 061  33 853 508 

Grants received - Other  155 116  2 527 503 

Unconditional Grants utilised  (41 015 027)  (27 053 508)

Conditions met: O. R. Tambo District Municipality  (5 729 645)  (5 379 899)

Conditions met: Other grants  (95 148)  (2 422 970)

 - 

Conditions still to be met/(Grant expenditure to be recovered) 5 748 198  3 290 842

Disclosed as follows:

Unspent Conditional Government Grants and Receipts  5 748 198  3 290 842

 5 748 198  3 290 842

19. SALE OF GOODS AND RENDERING OF SERVICES

Consulting  9 467 045  10 479 300 

SETA Levies and Tender Fees  994 011  1 089 881 

Ikwezi Dairy Farm  -  10 456 

Fresh Farm  Products - Meat  10 514 748  7 408 370 

Slaughter Services  358 602  440 532 

Commission  909 075  247 263 

Office rentals, storage fees, parking fees etc  662 235  715 805 

Sales of Fresh Farm Products - Animals  667 402  4 759 027 

Sales of Fresh Farm Products - Crops  667 043  - 

Decrease in provision for doubtful debts  -  55 684 

Discount received  1 131  1 412 

Decrese of Liability  157 277  - 

Total  24 398 569  25 207 730

Description of some revenue items have been updated from those used in the 
previous financial year. This has been done in order to align with Municipal Standard 
Chart Of Accounts guidelines.

Consulting revenue comprises charges to the municipality for water services work.
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20. ADJUSTMENTS TO BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

20.1 Fair value gains

Fair Value adjustments - Price changes  6 482 767  3 918 557 

Fair Value adjustments - Physical changes  121 800  94 600 

 6 604 567  4 013 157

These biological assets adjustments relates births and value appreciation 
of livestock.

20.2 Fair value losses

Livestock deaths  241 200  454 650

 241 200  454 650

20.3 Intercompany Transactions - Donation of Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment  2 463 783  10 781 346

The current year donation relates to new buildings built on behalf of the entity by 
the parent municipality at Adam Kok Farms. The previous year amount relates to 
equipment transferred for use in the RAFI programme.

21. EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS

Basic salary  32 047 795  29 404 961 

Wages  -  714 966 

Bonus - 13th Cheque  2 370 114  1 846 315 

Provident fund  3 752 429  3 243 909 

Allowances  5 476 871  5 020 971 

Staff leave  830 594  790 069 

Unemployment Insurance Fund and Skills Development Fund contributions  553 262  515 075 

Total Employee Related Costs  45 031 065  41 536 266

CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PROVIDENT FUNDS

The Entity contributes to the Defined Contribution Provident Fund. The benefit is 
subject to the Pension Fund Act 24 of 1956. 

Contributions for the year included in employee cost  3 752 429  3 243 909

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
30 JUNE 2020
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REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer 

Basic Salary  1 213 206  1 101 664 

Travel Allowance  180 067  167 772 

Cellphone Allowance  4 201  45 558 

Annual Bonus - 13th Cheque  33 568  81 768 

Provident Fund Contributions  155 633  138 708 

Total  1 586 675  1 535 470

Chief Executive Officer assumed duties on 01 August 2019.

Remuneration of the Chief Financial Officer

Basic Salary  1 075 480  1 106 680 

Travel Allowance  126 123  135 582 

Cellphone Allowance  47 661  38 737 

Annual Bonus - 13th Cheque  72 935  72 935 

Provident Fund Contributions  134 001  117 449 

Total  1 456 199  1 471 382

Remuneration of the Senior Manager Water Services

Basic Salary  1 021 092  911 815 

Travel Allowance  113 399  113 399 

Cellphone Allowance  26 642  26 642 

Annual Bonus - 13th Cheque  73 379  31 162 

Provident Fund Contributions  132 742  120 321 

Total 1 367 253 1 203 338

Remuneration of the Corporate Service Manager

Basic Salary 1 010 150 1 016 079

Travel Allowance 216 368 246 911

Annual Bonus - 13th Cheque 84 616 54 983

Provident Fund Contributions 1 31 319 130 212

Total 1 442 453 1 448 185
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Remuneration of the Senior Manager Trading Enterprises

Basic Salary  1 010 401  827 189 

Travel Allowance  154 500  96 071 

Cellphone Allowance  -  9 206 

Annual Bonus - 13th Cheque  35 083  35 361 

Provident Fund Contributions  131 352  94 137 

Total  1 331 335  1 061 964

Remuneration of the Company Secretary

Basic Salary  781 452  856 592 

Travel Allowance  115 565  144 022 

Cellphone Allowance  12 437  27 941 

Annual Bonus - 13th Cheque  57 605  56 087 

Provident Fund Contributions  101 589  107 961 

Total  1 068 647  1 192 602

Company Secretary assumed duties on 01 December 2019. Before the 
appointment, the Manager in the office of the CEO was acting in the position.

22. BOARD OF DIRECTORS RELATED COSTS

Sitting allowances and re-imbursive travel costs  800 069  1 135 302 

Accomodation and travel costs  132 037  275 990 

Total Board of Directors related costs  932 106  1 411 292

REMUNERATION PER BOARD MEMBER

30 JUNE 2020

Name Sitting Allowance Re-imbursive travel 
expenses

 TOTAL

Mr S.E. Mase  19 800  37 138  56 938 

Mr M. Msiwa  84 700  7 089  91 789 

Mr M.M. Pupuma  105 650  53 472  159 122 

Mrs N.D.A. Ngewu  49 500  7 834  57 334 

Dr. L.L. Ndabeni  44 000  1 937  45 937 

Ms. U.N. Mkize  61 050  2 305  63 355 

Prof. L.Y. Majova-Songca  74 800  15 273  90 073 

Ms. N.S.N. Bam  66 000  32 496  98 496 

Dr. N.T. Ndudane  82 500  7 495  89 995 

Mrs. N. Makuni*  44 000  3 029  47 029 

 632 000  168 068  800 068 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
30 JUNE 2020
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30 JUNE 2019

Name Sitting Allowance Re-imbursive travel 
expenses

 TOTAL

Mr S.E. Mase  12 192  43 475  55 667 

Mr M. Msiwa  106 700  14 308  121 008 

Mr M.M. Pupuma  122 100  72 963  195 063 

Mrs N.D.A. Ngewu  66 000  4 833  70 833 

Dr. L.L. Ndabeni  77 000  4 720  81 720 

Ms. U.N. Mkize  116 050  2 026  118 076 

Prof. L.Y. Majova-Songca  68 750  7 992  76 742 

Ms. N.S.N. Bam  82 500  37 661  120 161 

Dr. N.T. Ndudane  88 000  11 859  99 859 

Mrs. N. Makuni  50 600  2 383  52 983 

 789 892  202 220  992 112

23. DEBT IMPAIRMENT 2020 R 2019 R

Trade Receivables - Notes 3.2 and 5  100 293  -

Debt impairment recognised in statement of financial 
performance and disclosed under operational costs

 100 293  -

24. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Property Plant and Equipment  5 223 060  4 058 676 

Intangible Assets  242 978  178 476 

 5 466 038  4 237 152

25. FINANCE CHARGES

Interest expenses  70 020  40 571

Total finance charges  70 020  40 571

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
30 JUNE 2020

Members of the Board are non-executive directors.  In order to enable them to carry out their responsibilities efficiently and 
effectively some members are provided with computer equipment with data bundles. Except for the Board Chairperson members are 
divided to serve in board committes. Mr. Mase only started drawing fees in June 2020. *Mrs. Makuni serves as an independent member of 
the Audit and Risk Committee only. 

 2020  2019 

 R  R

26. OPERATIONAL COSTS

Accommodation and travel  1 047 476  1 241 472 

Advertising and promotion  109 473  432 764 

Audit fees  2 543 995  2 191 200 

Bank charges  372 535  221 555 

Bar codes  -  2 110 

Cash collection services  113 287  112 046 

Cleaning  1 555  1 975 

Courier and postage  318  574 

Consulting and professional fees  274 117  818 814 

Consumables  49 056  100 091 

External project expenses  2 975  636 096 

Emploee wellness  226 507  108 758 

Fuel and oil  934 400  956 973 

Feed  924 065  1 011 519 

Hiring expenses  255 633  289 719 

Licensing - software  426 397  247 918 

Livestock purchases  8 834 069  9 232 422 

Marketing  -  86 520 

Motor vehicle expenses  167 815  123 700 

Meat inspection  179 152  214 500 

Medication - livestock  252 575  321 575 

Municipal services  2 478 255  1 519 726 

Packaging  117 794  96 670 

Personnel and labour  609 705  - 

Printing and stationery  242 763  344 846 

Provision for doubtful debts contribution  100 293  - 

Protective clothing  34 645  138 861 

Rental expenses  126 000  126 000 

Refurbishment - water services  3 545 252  2 825 667 

Security services  901 922  986 374 

Social facilitation  -  15 605 

Staff training  361 081  215 352 

Strategic planning session  34 705  85 190 

Subscriptions  216 028  410 818 

Telephone and fax  1 446 670  347 795 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
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26. OPERATIONAL COSTS (CONTINUED)

Write offs - Assets  -  7 287 711 

Co-operatives development support  -  2 408 552 

Agricultural development  5 494 345  2 788 331 

Trade and investment promotion  51 027  - 

Total operational costs  32 475 885  37 949 799

27. CONTRACTED SERVICES

Cleaning  220 158  230 602 

Insurance - assets  1 526 624  1 021 207 

Internal audit expenses  85 596  174 693 

Leasing Hire Fac  33 670  42 472 

Software licencing  216 499  178 163 

Website maintenance  42 000  84 557 

 2 124 547  1 731 694 

28. CORRECTION OF ERROR IN TERMS OF GRAP 3

28.1 RELATED PARTIES

The error relates to correction in respect of Related Parties Disclore in relation to projects assigned by the Parent - Municipality to the 
Entity. The comparative amounts have been appropriately adjusted. The effect of the correction of this error on the results of 2019 is as 
follows:

Balance previously reported

- The Entity is assigned a function of repairing and maintaining water schemes in rural and peri-urban areas. 
The Entity is a paymaster for water scheme operators appointed by the parent municipality. It derives revenue 
from these functions.

 10 479 300

- Ntinga is appointed as an implementing agent for certain local economic development initiatives.  6 800 000

Restated balance  17 279 300

28.2 Accumulated surplus

Balance previous reported  85 391 446

Consulting -

Restated balance  85 391 446

The Consulting revenue of R 10,479,300 was correctly reported in the previous year under note 19:  
Sale of goods and rendering of services

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
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28.3 Unspent Conditional Government Grants and Receipts

Balance previous reported  3 290 842 

District Municipality grants -

Restated balance  3 290 842 

Government grants receipts from the Parent Municipality amouting to R 6,800,000 were correctly reported in 
the previous year under note 14: Unspent Conditional Government Grants and Receipts.

28.4 Current Assets

Deferred Tax Asset

Balance previous reported as current asset  7 219 552

Balance reclassified as non-current asset  7 219 552

Restated balance -

In the previous financial year, 2018/19, deferred tax asset was errorneously misclassified as a current asset instead of non-current asset. It 
has been reclassified from being current asset to be a non-current asset in the current year. 
Discloures in notes 7 and 8 have also been corrected to be in line with the accounting standard on Income Taxes, IAS 12.
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29. RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR AND 
      CASH GENERATED/(ABSORBED) BY OPERATIONS

Deficit for the year  (6 114 760)  (11 971 197)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation  5 223 060  11 346 387 

Amortisation of Intangible Assets  242 978  178 476 

Donations of assets received  (2 463 783)  (10 781 346)

Adjustments to Biological Assets  (6 363 367)  (3 558 507)

Gain on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment  (4 731)  (213 286)

Operating Surplus before changes in working capital  (9 480 603)  (14 999 473)

Changes in working capital  12 635 403  (3 900 873)

Increase in Payables from Exchange Transactions  874 657  (110 717)

Increase in Provision for Current Employee Benefits  798 459  644 162 

Increase in Unspent Conditional Government Grants and Receipts  2 457 356  1 524 634

(Decrease) / increase in Taxes  2 097 421  2 065 948 

Increase in Inventory  (3 065 605)  812 095 

Decrease / (Increase) in Accounts Receivables  9 473 115  (8 836 995)

Cash generated/(absorbed) by operations  3 154 800  (18 900 346)



157156

 2020  2019 

 R  R

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise 
the following:

Call Investments Deposits - Note 2  11 982 914  4 600 722 

Cash Floats - Note 2  19 065  13 255 

Bank - Note 2  1 276 553  1 668 332 

Total cash and cash equivalents  13 278 532  6 282 309

31. RECONCILIATION OF AVAILABLE CASH AND INVESTMENT RESOURCES

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Note 2  13 278 532  6 282 309

 13 278 532  6 282 309 

Less:  5 748 198  3 290 842 

      Unspent Committed Conditional Grants - Note 14  5 748 198  3 290 842

Resources available for working capital requirements  7 530 334  2 991 467

32. PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

32.1 Additions to Property, Plant and Equipment

Purchase of property, plant and equipment - Note 9  673 495  7 640 901

Cash movement  673 495  7 640 901

Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd
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33. IRREGULAR FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

33.1 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure:

Opening Balance  65 329  63 777 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred  23 622  1 552 

Less: Recovered during the year  (53 160)  - 

Outstanding Balance  35 791  65 329

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting further action  1 552  1 552 

Recovered after financial year end (August 2020)  23 622  - 

Incident Disciplinary steps/proceedings

During 2017/18 financial year eleven cows were transferred to Umzikantu 
Red Meat Abattoir from Adam Kok Farms for slaughter and selling. It was later dis-
covered that they were vaccinated and were not suitable for sale and human con-
sumption and the meat was disposed. Loss amounting to R63,777 was incurred.  
 

Affected employees were found to have been 
negligent and sanction was passed that the loss would 
be recovered from them. Recovery of money was 
implemented in the 2019/2020 financial year.

Legal fees incurred on collection of Red Meat Levy due. Letters will be written to the affected employees as 
to why these legal fees of R1,552 can not be recov-
ered from them.

Suspected fraudulent fuel card transactions  Unknown transactions amounting R23,622 were 
noted on a vehicle fuel card. Upon investigation it 
transpired that the fuel card may have been duplicat-
ed or hacked.  The full amount was 
recovered from the bank in August 2020. 

33.2 Irregular Expenditure

Reconciliation of irregular expenditure: 

    Opening balance  988 596  91 066 

    Irregular expenditure incurred during the year  368 391  1 459 539 

 1 356 987  1 550 605

Condoned by Board of Directors -  (562 009)

Irregular expenditure awaiting further action  1 356 987  988 596 

Incident

Non declaration of interest  158 104  - 

Non compliant with tax matters  111 000  - 

Low scoring supplier selected  56 134  - 

Company's director in service of the state.  43 152  - 

Bid specifications not including the local content requirement.  288 367  288 367 

Employees whose salaries include travel allowances used Entity vehicles  700 228  700 228 

 1 356 985  988 595
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34. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE 
MANAGEMENT ACT

34.1 Audit fees - [MFMA 125 (1)(b)]

Opening balance  -  - 

Current year audit fee  2 543 995  2 191 200 

Amount paid - current year  (2 543 995)  (2 191 200)

Closing balance  -  -

34.2 VAT - [MFMA 125 (1)(b)]

Opening balance  (2 654 559)  (588 610)

VAT payments made to SARS - previous year  (125 908)  588 610 

VAT due to SARS - current year  (7 019 770)  (5 171 151)

VAT payments made to SARS - current year  5 048 257  2 516 592 

Closing balance - Payable  (4 751 979)  (2 654 559)

VAT is accounted for on a payment basis. 

34.3 PAYE, SDL and UIF - [MFMA 125 (1)(b)]

Opening balance  621 921  910 631 

Current year payroll deductions and contributions  8 973 155  8 085 333 

Amount paid - current year  (8 933 131)  (8 374 043)

Closing balance  661 945  621 921

34.4 Pension and Medical Aid Deductions - [MFMA 125 (1)(b)]

Opening balance  (1 760)  (6 038)

Current year payroll deductions and contributions  5 214 969  4 524 079 

Amount paid - current year  (5 140 660)  (4 519 801)

Closing balance  72 549  (1 760)
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34.5 Supply Chain Management Deviations

Procurement transactions where it is was impractical to follow normal SCM procedures 8 281 776 5 726 631

Total 8 281 776 5 726 631

These are deviations approved by the Accounting Officer and ratified by the Board 
of Directors. They were also presented to the Council of the parent municipality. 
Most of them relate to procurement of livestock from farmers and auctions where 
it was impractical to follow normal procurement processes such as requesting for 
atleast three quotations.

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Commitments in respect of capital expenditure:

Approved and contracted for:  61 295 61 295

Total commitments consist out of the following:

- Sanitation projects  61 295  61 295

 61 295  61 295

This expenditure will be financed from:

- Government Grants  61 295  61 295

 61 295  61 295

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The activities of the entity expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk (comprising fair value interest rate risk, 
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The entity’s overall risk management programme focuses on 
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the entity’s financial performance.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
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(a) Foreign Exchange Currency Risk
 The entity does not engage in foreign currency transactions.

(b) Price risk
 The entity is not exposed to price risk.           

 
(c) Interest Rate Risk
 As the entity does not have significant interest-bearing liabilities, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are not substantially 

dependent on changes in market interest rates.

 The entity analyses its potential exposure to interest rate changes on a continuous basis. Different scenarios are simulated which include 
refinancing, renewal of current positions, alternative financing and hedging. Based on these scenarios, the entity calculates the impact 
that a change in interest rates will have on the surplus/deficit for the year. These scenarios are only simulated for liabilities which con-
stitute the majority of interest bearing liabilities.

 The entity did not hedge against any interest rate risks during the current year. 

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d) Credit Risk
 Credit risk is the risk that a counter party to a financial or non-financial asset will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the entity to 

incur a financial loss.              
   

 Credit risk consist mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and unpaid conditional grants and subsidies.   
              

 Receivables are disclosed net after provisions are made for impairment and bad debts. Trade debtors comprise of customers utilising 
purchasing and utilising the services of the abattoir, dispersed across different sectors and geographical areas. Credit risk pertaining to 
trade and other debtors is considered to be moderate due the diversified nature of debtors and immaterial nature of individual balances. 
In the case of consumer debtors the entity effectively has the right to terminate services to customers but in practice this is difficult 
to apply. In the case of debtors whose accounts become in arrears, Board endeavours to collect such accounts by “levying of penalty 
charges”, “demand for payment”, “restriction of services” and, as a last resort, “handed over for collection”.    
            

 The entity only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing. No cash and cash equivalents were pledged as security 
for financial liabilities and no restrictions were placed on the use of any cash and cash equivalents for the period under review. Although 
the credit risk pertaining to cash and cash equivalents are considered to be low, the maximum exposure are disclosed below.  
              

 The banks utilised by the entity for current and non-current investments are registered in terms of the South African Bank Act. The credit 
quality of these institutions are evaluated based on their required SENS releases as well as other media reports. Based on all public 
communications, the financial sustainability is evaluated to be of high quality and the credit risks pertaining to these institutions are 
considered to be low.               
   

 The risk pertaining to unpaid conditional grants and subsidies are considered to be very low. Amounts are receivable from national and 
provincial government and there are no expectation of counter party default.

 Long-term Receivables and Other Debtors are individually evaluated annually at Balance Sheet date for impairment.   
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 2020  2019 

 R  R

Financial assets to credit risk at year end are as follows:

Receivables from exchange transactions 752 164 11 220 406

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 1 187 705 192 578

Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 278 532 6 282 309

15 218 401 17 695 293
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(e) Liquidity Risk     
 Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of com-

mitted credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, the treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining 
availability under credit lines.            
   

 The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk through an 
ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.         
      

 The table below analyses the entity’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the financial 
year end to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due 
within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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   2020
Less than 

1 year
Between 1 

and 5 years
Between 5 

and 10 years
Over 10 Years

R R R R

Trade and Other Payables 6 281 174 6 281 174 - -

Unspent conditional transfers and subsidies 5 748 198 5 748 198 - -

12 029 372 12 029 372 - -

  2019
Less than 

1 year
Between 1 

and 5 years
Between 5 

and 10 years
Over 10 Years

R R R R

Trade and Other Payables 5 494 053 - - -

Unspent conditional transfers and subsidies 3 290 842 - - -

8 784 895 - - -

 2020  2019 

 R  R

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In accordance with GRAP 104 the financial instruments of the entity are 
classified as follows:

37.1 Financial Assets Classification

Receivables

Receivables from exchange transactions Financial instruments at 
amortised cost

 752 164  11 220 406 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions Financial instruments at 
amortised cost

 1 187 705  192 578 

Short-term Investment Deposits

Call Deposits Financial instruments at 
amortised cost

 11 982 914  4 600 722

Bank Balances and Cash

Bank Balances Financial instruments at 
amortised cost

 1 276 553  1 668 333 

Cash Floats and Advances Financial instruments at 
amortised cost

 19 065  13 255 

 15 218 401  17 695 295

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial instruments at amortised cost  15 218 401  17 695 295

At amortised cost  15 218 401  17 695 295

37.2 Financial Liability Classification

Payables from exchange transactions

Trade creditors Financial instruments at 
amortised cost

379 281 1 173 298

Other Financial instruments at 
amortised cost

851 164 617 716

 

Other Payables 4 603 755 3 256 065

Government Subsidies and Grants Financial instruments at 
amortised cost

5 748 198 3 290 842

11 582 398 8 337 921
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 2020  2019 

 R  R

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37.2 Financial Liability (continued) Classification

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITY

Financial instruments at amortised cost 11 582 398 8 337 921

These financial instruments are contracted to mature in one year or less after the balance sheet date.

38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There were no events after the reporting date which affects these annual financial statements.

39. IN-KIND DONATIONS AND ASSISTANCE

O. R. Tambo District Municipality provides the Entity with internal audit as well as risk management support. In addition, office 
accommodation is provided by parent municipality at no cost to the Entity.

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 2020 R 2019 R

Man Truck & Bus (Pty) Ltd; The Entity is a second defendant on a matter involving a collision 
between a truck and a cow at Adam Kok Farms.

218 254 218 254

CE Du Plessis and 2 other vs O.R Tambo District Municipality. Defendent is O.R Tambo Dis-
trict Municipality and Ntinga is the second respondent. Plaintiffs alleges that their respective 
properties were damaged by fires which came from Adam Kok Farms owned by ORTDM and 
managed by Ntinga. The matter is being defended by the municipality. 

1 781 524 1 781 524

Zandisile Kanise vs O.R Tambo District Municipality. Defendent is O.R Tambo District Municipal-
ity and Ntinga is the second respondent. Mr. Z.L. Kanise is employed by Ntinga. As per request 
of ORTDM he was seconded at ORTDM, Executive Mayor Office  without any documentation. It 
is alleged that he acted as a Policy Analyst on secondment from Ntinga. The matter was heard 
at CCMA and the award was granted in favour of the complainant against the District Munici-
pality. The latter took the matter to the Labour Court for review.

 2 000 000  2 000 000

Benzile Munala vs Kei Fresh Produce Market. The matter is between Kei Fresh Produce Market and 
its former employee. It happened before the market was transferred to Ntinga by the municipality. 
The matter relates to an alleged unfair labout practice. There has been no movement in this case.

 500 000  500 000

Sheriff of the Court - Kokstad vs Ntinga. The Sheriff is claiming re-imbursement of costs incurred 
after eviction of livestock at Adam Kok Farms. Ntinga is challenging the matter.

 230 000  230 000

Sontongane Vuyani vs Ntinga. In December 2019 the entity received summons dated 14 October 
2019 alleging that the cliamant’s vehicle hit a cow belonging to the entity. The matter is being 
defended. 

 160 200  -

Ms Gwavu vs Kei Fresh Produce Market / Ntinga. Ms Gwavu was dismissed in 2011 by Kei Fresh 
Produce Market for gross negligence and the lost of funds before the market was incorporated 
into Ntinga. An out of court settlement was reached between the parties and it was settled by the 
District Municipality after year end.

 213 086 -

 5 103 064  4 729 778
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 2020  2019 

 R  R

41. RELATED PARTIES

41.1 Related Party Loans

No loans to or from related parties

41.2 Compensation of key management personnel

The compensation of key management personnel is set out in note 21 to the 
Annual Financial Statements.

41.3 Other related party transactions

Transfers and subsidies

O.R. Tambo District Municipality  49 142 061  33 853 508

In-kind donations and assistance

Internal support and risk management function are received from the O. R. 
Tambo District Municipality at no cost to the entity. Office accommodation and 
related municipal services  are provided by O.R. Tambo District Municipality at 
no cost to the Entity.

Service Delivery services arrangments with the parent municipality

- The Entity is assigned a function of repairing and maintaining water schemes 
in rural and peri-urban areas. The Entity is a paymaster for water scheme 
operators appointed by the parent municipality. It derives revenue from these 
functions.

9 467 045 10 479 300

- Ntinga is appointed as an implementing agent for certain local economic 
development initiatives.

8 127 035 6 800 000

This desclosure is made for the first time in the current year.

Supply of water and sanitation services to Umzikantu Abattoir, Ikhwezi 
Dairy Farm and Kei Fresh Produce Market

- Value of services provide  385 397  162 666

- Interest charged on overdue accounts  45 313  34 332

Donation and Transfer of Assets

Donation and transfer of assets.  2 463 783  10 781 346

41.4 Nature of related party relationship

O.R. Tambo District Municipality is the parent municipality of the entity

Related party transactions were undertaken at arms length.
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Reconciliation of Carrying Value  Cost Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment Losses Carrying Value

201 Opening 
Balance 9/2020

 Additions  Transferred 
from Parent 
municipality

 Disposals  Correction of 
prior period 

error

 Closing 
Balance

 Opening 
Balance

 Depreciation 
Charge

 Transferred 
from KFPM

 Impairment  Disposals  Closing Balance

R R R R R R R R R R R R R

 Land and Buildings  43 371 995  81 344  2 463 783  -    -   45 917 122   4 061 251  1 076 410  -    -    -    5 137 661  40 779 461

 Land  23 001 877  -    -    -    -    23 001 877  -    -    -    -    -    23 001 877 

 Buildings  20 370 118  81 344  2 463 783  -    -    22 915 245  4 061 251  1 076 410  -    -    -    5 137 661  17 777 584 

 

 Other Assets  31 283 746  592 151  -    13 399  -    31 862 498  9 076 055  4 146 650  -    -    1 018  13 221 687  18 640 810 

 Office Equipment  875 621  -    -    -    -    875 621  461 533  -    -    -    -    461 533  414 087 

 Furniture & Fittings  1 397 623  136 049  -    -    -    1 533 672  874 320  182 355  -    -    1 056 675  476 997 

 Motor vehicles   4 167 382  65 000  -    -    -    4 232 382  1 216 211  693 041  -    -    -    1 909 252  2 323 130 

 Plant and equipment  23 211 315  -    -    -    -    23 211 315  5 791 124  3 019 045  -    -    -    8 810 169  14 401 146 

 Computer Equipment  1 605 469  367 930  -    13 399  -    1 960 000  709 165  252 209  -    -    1 018  960 356  999 644 

 Network Hardware  26 335  23 172  -    -    -    49 507  23 701  -    -    23 701  25 806 

 74 655 741  673 495  2 463 783  13 399  -    77 779 620  13 137 306  5 223 060  -    -    1 018  18 359 348  59 420 271 
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42. FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

The indicators or conditions that indicate that the Entity is financially stable are as follows:-

Financial Indicators

The Entity has revenue generating assets. Due to this, the entity’s revenue generation is improving from year to year. In addition, 
water services has expanded revenue sources for the Entity. 

The Entity secured a two year partnerships with the Department of Labour and Employment for a labour activation programme 
from which it is going to derive implementations fees.

The Entity is working with some of the local municipalities in the O.R. Tambo District and is generating as revenue at-least 6% of 
the value of the project being implement.    

43. GOING CONCERN

The parent municipality, O.R. Tambo District Municipality, will continue providing financial support to the Entity. The Entity has im-
plemented a strategy that is focused on generating own revenue which is aimed at reducing reliance on grant funding. The Entity 
is also persuing strategic partneships with both the public and the private sector.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
30 JUNE 2020

Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd



169168
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Reconciliation of Carrying Value Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Carrying Value

201 Opening 
Balance 
9/2020

 Additions  Transferred 
from Parent 
municipality

 Disposals  Correction of 
prior period 

error

 Closing 
Balance

 Opening 
Balance

 Depreciation 
Charge

 Transferred 
from KFPM

 Impairment  Disposals  Closing Balance

R R R R R R R R R R R R R

 Land and Buildings  41 141 372  2 230 623  -    -    -    43 371 995   3 050 671  1 010 580  -    -    -    4 061 251  39 310 744 

 Land  23 001 877 - - - -  23 001 877  -    -    -    -    -    23 001 877 

 Buildings  18 139 495  2 230 623 - - -  20 370 118  3 050 671  1 010 580  -   -    -    4 061 251  16 308 867 

 Lease Assets - - - - - - - - - - - - -

 Office Equipment (Lease) - - - - - - - - - - - - -

 Other Assets  28 751 102  5 410 278  10 781 346  13 658 980  -    31 283 746  7 379 578  3 046 152  -    -    5 880 181  9 076 055  22 207 691 

 Office Equipment  688 617  206 916  -    19 912  -    875 621  374 405  100 128  -    -    13 000  461 533  414 087 

 Furniture & Fittings  1 267 957  152 893  -    23 227  -    1 397 623  846 991  48 244  -    20 915  874 320  523 303 

 Tractor and other farming equipment  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Motor vehicles   2 420 816  2 429 741  -    683 175  -    4 167 382  1 184 317  646 752  -    -    614 858  1 216 211  2 951 171 

 Plant and equipment  11 058 364  2 075 295  10 781 346  703 690  -    23 211 315  4 077 557  2 087 573  -    -    374 006  5 791 124  17 420 191 

 Computer Equipment  1 470 795  545 433  -    410 759  -    1 605 469  872 606  163 455  -    -    326 896  709 165  896 304 

 Network Hardware  26 335  -    -    -    -    26 335  23 701  -    -    23 701  2 634 

 Orchard  11 818 217  -    -    11 818 217  -    4 530 506  -    -    4 530 506  -    -   

 69 892 474  7 640 901  10 781 346  13 658 980  -    74 655 741  10 430 249  4 056 732  -    -    5 880 181  13 137 306  61 518 435 
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 RECONCILIATION OF CARRYING VALUE - LIVESTOCK  Fair Value - Cattle  Quantities  - Cattle

 R  R

 Opening balance  13 234 502  1 296 

 Total movements  1 855 028  (27)

 Acquisitions  947 790  164 

 Births  121 800  609 

 Deaths  (241 200)  (41)

 Gains from change in fair value  6 482 767  -   

 Losses from change in fair value  -    -   

 Transfers from ORTDM  -   

 Transfers to inventory  (5 456 129)  (759)

 Closing balance  15 089 530  1 269

 RECONCILIATION OF CARRYING VALUE - LIVESTOCK  Fair Value - Cattle  Quantities  - Cattle

 R  R

 Opening balance  11 232 450  1 312 

 Total movements  2 002 052  (16)

 Acquisitions  1 112 401  411 

 Births  94 600  686 

 Deaths  (454 650)  (64)

 Gains from change in fair value  3 918 557  -   

 Losses from change in fair value  -    -   

 Transfers from ORTDM  -   

 Transfers to inventory  -   

 Disposals  (2 668 856)  (1 049)

 

 13 234 502  1 296
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11. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
30 JUNE 2020

30 JUNE 2019

APPENDIX B
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Grant Description Balance
01 July 2019

2019/2020 Allocation 
for the year

Receipts
for the year

Interest
Received

Bank
charges

Transfers (to) / from other
projects or Revenue

Grants
repaid

Conditions met  Balance 
30 June 2020

R R R R R R R R R

Unconditional Grants

District Municipality Grants

O.R. Tambo District Municipality - Operations funding  -    -    43 191 560  -    -    -    -    (43 191 560)  -   

Total District Municipality Grants  -    -    43 191 560  -    -    -    -    (43 191 560)

Conditional Grants

O.R. Tambo District Municipality Project Funds

Wool Improvement  -    -    2 173 913  -    -    -    2 173 913 

Zandukwana Project  -    962 828  (32 364)  (615 387)  315 077 

ORTDM Cooperatives Development Centre  1 046 933  -    -    -    -    (52 124)  -    (868 726)  126 084 

RAFI Implementation  1 801 737  -    4 990 294  -    -    (232 469)  -    (3 874 488)  2 685 073 

Trade and Investment Promotion  177 379  -    (3 062)  (51 027)  123 291 

Total District Municipality Grants  3 026 049  -    8 127 035  -    -    (320 019)  -    (5 409 627)  5 423 438 

Other Grant and Subsidy Providers

Lefa Le Rona Trust  3 095  -    -    -    -    -    (2 975)  120 

Ingquza Hill Local Municipality  261 698  155 117  -    -    (5 217)  -    (86 957)  324 641 

Total Other Grant Providers  264 793  -    155 117  -    -    (5 217)  -    (89 932)  324 761 

Total  3 290 842  -    51 473 711  -    -    (325 236)  -    (48 691 119)  5 748 198 
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ARC   Audit and Risk Committee

BBBEE  Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment

CIPC   Companies and Intellectual Property Commission

DDP  District Development Plan

DRDAR  Department of Rural Development and Agrarian Reform 

ECSECC  Eastern Cape Socio-Economic Consultative Council 

GDP  Gross Domestic Product

GRAP   Generally Recognised Accounting Practice

IDP  Integrated Development Plan 

IDZ  Industrial Development Zone

IoDSA  Institute of Directors of Southern Africa 

IMATU  Independent Municipal and Allied Trade Union 

ISA  International Standards on Auditing

ISAE  International Standard on Assurance Engagements

KFPM   Kei Fresh Produce Market

KSD  King Sabatha Dalindyebo Local Municipality 

MA  Market Agents

MFMA   Municipal Finance Management Act

MPAC  Municipal Public Accounts Committee 

MSA  Municipal Structures Act

NSF  National Skills Fund

OHS  Occupational Health and Safety

ORTCDC   O.R. Tambo Cooperative Development Centre

ORTDM   O.R. Tambo District Municipality

PDP  Provincial Development Plan 

PMS  Performance Management System

RAFI   Rural Agricultural Finance Initiative

REDP  Rural Economic and Development Programmes 

SADC  Southern Africa Development Community 

SEDA   Small Enterprise Development Agency

SAMWU  South African Municipal Workers union 

SETA  Sector Education and Training Authority

SEZ  Special Economic Zone

SHE  Safety, Health and Environment 

SOC   State-Owned Company

TARDI   Tsolo Agriculture and Rural Development Institute

UDF  Ukhanyo Development Farming

UIF   Unemployment Insurance Fund

WSP   Workplace Skills Plan

ABBREVIATIONS 



PB176

No. 5 Textile Road Southernwood, Mthatha, 5099
TEL: 047 531 0346 • FAX: 047 531 4121
POSTAL ADDRESS: P.O. BOX 1134, MTHATHA, 5099


